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40% of the Fortune 100
trust SAVVIS for their global
hosting and IP needs

IDC named
SAVVIS one of
the top three IP
VPN providers oy
global market
share

Tier 1 Research named
SAVVIS one of the top
three hosting providers

Ane we're
not stopping
here




Plug into the power of the new SAVVIS.

Today, SAVVIS is one of the largest IP network and hosting providers
in the world. We are a leader in virtualized, utility-based IP VPN and
hosting services for industries that require high performance,
near-perfect reliability and integrated security.

Now, we are continuing to lead the industry with an expanded portfolio of
IP and hosting services that businesses can “mix and match” to meet their
unique requirements. With our recent acquisition of the assets of Cable &
Wireless America,* we've enhanced our world-class network and hosting
infrastructure with a rich set of products, over 3,000 customers and
deep consulting expertise. The result is that we've further diversified
our revenue stream, enhanced our product mix and strengthened our
position among Fortune 500 companies.

Pluginto an industry leader. Plug into SAVVIS.
There's never been a better time.

*SAVVIS acquired substantially all of the assets of Cable & Wireless USA, inc. and Cable & Wireless Internet Services, Inc. (“Cable & Wireless America” or “CWA").

Financial Highlights

DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT RATIOS AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2003 2002 2001
Total revenues $ 252,871 $236,004 $ 242,795
Gross margin $ 89,265 $ 73926 S 6459
Gross margin percentage 35% 31% 3%

Loss from operations $ (86,577) $(70,152) $(263,675)
Net income/(loss) $ (94,033) $ 13,932 $(288,896)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $(127,356) $ (60,566) $(288,896)
Basic and diluted loss per common share $  (1.34) $  {0.65) S (3.10)
EBITDA"™ $ {1,233) $ 6,105 $ (65,888)
Operating cash flow S (285) $ (44,968) $ (41,906)
Capital expenditures S 18,824 § 5669 $ 24,085
Total assets $ 124,623 $196,474 $ 255,784
Notes payable and capital lease obligations S 56,902 $ 65,149 $ 236,178
Total stockholders’ (deficit) equity $ (927) $ 76,917 $(156,586)
(1) Reconciliation of operating loss to EBITDA
Operating loss S (86,577) $ (70,152) $ (263675)
Plus adjustments as follows:
Depreciation and amortization 55,346 60,621 88,079
Non-cash equity based compensation 13,985 10,952 15,254
Asset impairment and restructuring charges 7,903 4,684 94,454
Loss on sale of data center 8,106 e —

£BITDA ' S (1233 S 6105 $  (65388)




We have successfully diversified our

revenue stream. Managed IP VPN and
hosting comprised 82% of diversified
revenue in 2003, up from 14% in 2000.

Diversified Revenue’ by Product

[ Managed P
1 Hosting

Hl nternet
[ Other

To Our Shareholders:

This was a remarkable year for our company. We met our goals of
diversifying our revenue stream and customer base; achieved
industry-leading growth; and reaped the benefits from the growing
recognition of the value of our utility-based, virtualized managed 2003 / 57%
services model. The past year was one of fremendous growth for e
SAVVIS as we completed three major transactions. In May, we
assumed the management of Intel Online Services” hosting business.
In August, we acquired the assets of WAMINET's commercial busi-
ness. Then on March 5, 2004, SAVVIS closed on the purchase of the
assets of Cable & Wireless America (CWA).

The CWA transaction is a transforming event for our company. The
combination of the CWA Tier 1 network and hosting assets with SAVVIS’
existing world-class IP network and hosting business creates one of the 2002 ‘
world’s largest [P/hosting infrastructure services providers, We are now 57%
positioned to lead the industry with ITinfrastructure, network and host-
ing solutions. And we are well positioned for profitability.

The transaction adds substantial synergistic revenue. The new
SAVVIS is currently projected to have annualized revenues of approxi-
mately $700 million by year-end 2004. The transaction broadens our
product set and significantly expands our customer base among
Fortune 500 companies. And, mostimportantly, it allows us to lever-
age the fixed cost base of our business much faster and to improve
overall profitability. 2001

2003 Results

We had a very successful 2003 in terms of financial performance. We
added new products and services to position SAVVIS for the future.
Revenues for the year increased to $252.9 million from $236.0 mil-
lion in 2002, up 7%.

In 2003, managed services—managed IP VPN and hosting—
became our core business, comprising over 90% of our revenues at
year-end. We achieved 68% growth in existing managed IP serv-
ices—or 95% growth including the WAMINET acquisition. 2000

We continued to diversify our revenue stream. Driven by the growth
in managed services, diversified revenue {revenue from customers
other than Reuters and MoneyLine Telerate) almost doubled this year
and now makes up more than half of our revenue stream.

Gross margins improved to $89.3 millionin 2003 from $73.9 million,
or 35% of revenuesin 2003 from 31% of revenuesin 2002, We continue

. *Revenue from customers other than
to focus on cost control. In addition, because of the automated nature Bridge/Reuters/MoneyLine Telerate.
of our systems, we continue to add profitable revenue on a fixed cost
basis. As our revenue base grows, gross margin increases allowing us




to fund our expansion. In addition, during 2003 our SG&A
declined as a proportion of revenues.

We became operating cash flow breakeven in the fourth
quarter of 2003—a landmark for SAVVIS. In that quarter,
we generated $4 million in cash from operations, which
was sufficient to fund our capital expenditures.

Strategic Highlights

SAVVISisin the business of providing outsourced IT, net-
work and hosting services to enterprises. In late 2003, we
completed the development of what we believe is the
industry’s first truly virtualized managed services platform
for outsourced IT. Our approach solves one of the biggest
problems IT departments face today—that of costly and
underutilized servers and storage devices. SAVVIS'virtual-
ized platform is a unique combination of integrated
virtualized servers, storage appliances and networks from
which our tailored, value-added services can be delivered
in a utility model—freeing up IT resources to focus on the
important process of building and delivering new appli-
cations that create value and boost competitive advantage.
We believe this utility-based, virtualized platform puts us
on the leading edge of the managed services industry.

Over the past year, we stayed focused on adding
value to our platform. During the first half of 2003, we
successfully integrated Intel Online Services (I0S) into
our company, providing a smooth transition for 10S cus-
tomers in the United States, the United Kingdom and
Japan to SAVVIS’ managed services and expanding
SAVVIS' international customer base in the process.

In August, we acquired the assets of the commercial
business of WAMINET, a global leader in content man-
agement and delivery services, adding critical application
expertise in the content management and rich media
industry. With the addition of WAMINET, we also
strengthened our customer base. Thousands of enter-
prises in the film, music, media and publishing industries,
including some of the country’s leading media and news
organizations, now use our media services platform.

Alsoin August, we signed a strategic partnering agree-
ment with AccessLine Communications to jointly provide
managed voice services for enterprise telecom envi-
ronments. As more large and mid-sized enterprises
make the switch to IP-based voice services because of
the increasing complexity of their PBX systems, SAVVIS
is ready with a suite of fully managed, network-based
voice application services.

The Cable & Wireless America Transaction

Our purchase of the assets of CWA creates an industry
powerhouse. SAVVIS has always been a product leader-
ship company. This transaction positions us as a market
share leader in the network services and hosting business.

With this transaction, SAVVIS added a world-class,
Tier 1 IP network with a footprint encompassing 27%
of all Internet routes and providing a range of IP
network services from public Internet to private lines.
The resultis a more cost-effective private network busi-
ness for our managed IP VPN customers as well as the
ability to offer large pipe Internet capability for the
larger customer who needs it. It gives SAVVIS a full
range of managed transport services.

The transaction includes CWA's 15 data centers in the
United States and the company’s U.S. hosting business. As
aresult, we are positioned to expand our hosting services
without the need to develop or lease additional space.
CWA has a successful offering of complex hosting services,
consulting services and managed services to a Fortune
500 customer list. Together with SAVVIS' managed serv-
ices and virtualized platform, we created a company that
has a full range of value-added hosting services.

In addition, the transaction significantly expands our
customer base—adding 3,000 new customers. CWA
counts 40% of the Fortune 100 among its customers.
Our aim is to deliver the same high performance, reli-
ability and customer service, on which our reputation has
been built, to these customers. We are excited about the
opportunity to serve this large customer base and look
forward to offering our clients an expanded portfolio of
value-added, managed utility services.

Looking Forward

This is an exciting time for our company. We have
increased our organic growth potential exponentially.
The combination of SAVVIS and CWA will yield superior
performance and economics for our customers in mul-
tiple vertical industries. It will enable us to deliver a full
range of value-added, managed utility services based
on our virtualized approach.

Our goalis to become the preferred provider of IP net-
work and hosting services. Using the virtualized system
that we've built, the CWA transaction allows us to scale
revenues without scaling operating costs. It positions us to
become one of the few profitable providers in this space.

We'd like to thank all of our customers, shareholders
and employees for your continuing support. We hope
you share in our enthusiasm and look forward to report-
ing progress to you in the year ahead.

Sincerely,

A M

Robert A. McCormick
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Q&A

An interview with Jeff Von Deylen,
Chief Financial Officer

What do you think was SAVVIS' most important
accomplishment since you joined the company?
Unquestionably, our recent purchase of the assets of
Cable & Wireless America (CWA) was the most significant
event. It transforms the company into an industry power-
house, doubling our revenues, employee base and
customer base.

What else would you highlight?

Over the past year, we really accomplished precisely
what we set out to do. We were able to demonstrate,
over the course of the year, our ability to diversify our
revenue stream and generate cash flow. The cash flow
focus, from a financial perspective, is really our number
one objective. In 2001 and 2002, we burned over
$85 million in operating cash. In the fourth quarter of
2003, we were operating cash flow positive. That's a dra-
matic improvement and a major accomplishment.
There aren't a lot of companies that are operating cash
flow positive in this space. We have built a world-class,
global network that has allowed us to grow revenues
and, more importantly, to grow revenues profitably.

In terms of profitability, then, what are the
advantages of the CWA transaction?

Because we operate at a relatively fixed cost, we can
expand revenue at fairly significant incremental margins.
Adding new customers does not generate significant
increases in our cost base.

But CWA owned their own network. Doesn'’t that
mean higher costs?

We acquired the infrastructure at a competitive purchase
price that will replace the leased infrastructure that we
now use. The cost of building such a network is exorbi-
tant. But this one is built and paid for. And, over time, we
expect to reduce our ongoing operating costs.

What about hosting?

We acquired 15 world-class data centers that are fully
operational but underutilized. That gives us ample
room to grow the hosting business and expand into
complex hosting services that we have not offered in
the past, without significantly increasing our fixed
costs. More importantly, we're going into it from a clear
market leadership position—the combined business
is one of the top three service providers in the United
States—and we're adding those capabilities at a very
attractive price.

How much did SAVVIS pay?

We acquired these assets for only $155 million in cash,
plus assumed liabilities. Overall, CWA invested substan-
tial amounts of capital in infrastructure and on their data
centers. These are state-of-the-art facilities.

SAVVIS Communications Significant Events

1995
Founded in
St. Louis, Missouri

Q11999
Bridge Information
Systems buys SAVVIS

Q3 1999

Q1 2000
SAVVIS'initial public offering,
Bridge retains 45% ownership

Q12001

Bridge files

for bankruptcy,
represents 81%
of SAVVIS
revenues

Q3 2001
Reuters buys
Bridge assets
and customers,
enters into five-
yeatr contract
with SAVVIS

Q4 2001

Moneyline buys
Bridge Telerate assets
and customers,
enters into long-term
contract with SAVVIS

SAVVIS creates Intelligent
IP Networking™
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Didn't SAVVIS take on a lot of debt to finance

the purchase?

We issued $200 million of five-year PIK subordinated
notes (the “Notes”) and entered into a $52 millicn
sale/leaseback transaction in conjunction with the CWA
transaction. Only about half of the proceeds from the
issuance of the Notes were needed to finance the pur-
chase price. The rest is a cash cushion to fund the
acquired assets until they are integrated into SAVVIS and
generating positive cash flow. The Notes were issued
to existing SAVVIS shareholders Welsh Carson and
Constellation Ventures, as well as a new partner, Oak Hill
Capital. We view our ability to raise that much moneyin
a short time frame as a real vote of confidence bothin
SAVVIS and the merits of the transaction.

How much debt does SAVVIS have in total?
Overall, SAVVIS now has less than $315 million of total
debt on combined annualized revenues at year-end
2004 of $700 million, which looks pretty good when
compared to our competition. In addition, the majority
of our debt does not currently pay cash interest.

How are you going to pay the Notes back?

The Notes are structured so we may prepay them within
the first year at par. The Notes require no cash interest or
principal payments until their maturity in 2009, so we
have a lot of flexibility to choose the best solution.

Weren't the terms of the Notes highly dilutive to
SAVVIS’ common shareholders?

The Notes were priced competitively for bridge financ-
ing. After shareholder approval, a total of approximately
65.5 million common shares, representing 13% of the
fully diluted common shares, will be issued in con-
junction with the financing. With the value that could
potentially be generated by this transaction, we think
it's a good deal.

So how many common shares do you

have outstanding?

Pending shareholder approval of the terms of the
Notes, we have approximately 175 million common
shares outstanding, 507 million common shares on a
fully diluted basis.

In closing, what is SAVVIS' most important
objective for the coming year?

Clearly, the successful integration of CWA. But that's just
one part of our plan. We always have as our number one
priority the creation of value for all of our shareholders.

Q22002

SAVVIS moves from
10th place to 4th
place in IDC's IP VPN
market share report

Q4 2002

2002
SAVVIS secures over $200 million in new
investment, recapitalizes balance sheet

SAVVIS chosen by Intel Online
Services (I0S) to provide managed
hosting services to 105's clients

SAVVIS network reliability declared
“perfect”in Network Worid maga-
zine's groundbreaking study of ISP
backbone performance

Q2 2003

SAVVIS wins
American Business
Award®™ for “Best
Customer Service
Organization”

Q3 2003

SAVVIS acquires
WAMINET's commer-
cial business

SAVVIS rolls out
next-generation
managed voice serv-
ices for enterprises

Q1 2003
SAVVIS is named third-largest
provider of IP VPNs by iDC

Q1 2004
SAVVIS acquires the assets
of Cable & Wireless America




The Power of the Virtualized Utility
Our services are based on a virtualized utility model—
a model SAVVIS pioneered. We use virtualization
technology to provide managed network, hosting and
application services to businesses. That means SAVVIS
can dynamically provision the server, storage and net-
work services our clients’ applications need with
greater reliability and lower total costs.

SAVVIS has a proven track record of integrating
advanced technology to deliver managed IT infra-
structure services. This experience, combined with
proprietary management and monitoring systems,
gives us a first-mover advantage in an industry that is
moving toward virtualized T infrastructure services.
Analysts at IDC predict that the virtualization/utility
market will grow from $800 million in 2003 to $3.6 bil-
lionin 2007.

"With the acquisition of Cable & Wireless
America’s assets, SAVVIS now holds the
number-two spot in the U.S. hosting
market behind I1BM. Already one of the
top managed IP network infrastructure
providers, IDC expects SAVVIS to extend
its leading position with its new empha-
sis on end-to-end virtualized service
delivery, combined with its heritage of
superior [P infrastructure performance.”

—~Melanie Posey, IDC

The Power of a Different Kind of Outsourcing
Fer most businesses, IT Infrastrueture has historically
fbeen @ competitive advantage. But, ever dme, that
legaey Infrastructure can become an expensive, inflex-
ble ane unrelislble patehwerk of technelogies creating
a significant barrier to suceess. Industry stueies show
thar, s @ result, mest companies spend 50% o 70% of
helr IT reseurces meinteining legacy systems instead of
foeusing on new applications that drive thelr business.”

Today, large and mid-sized enterprises, unable
cost-justify the Investments In technelegy and exper-
tise to deliver IT services, are increasingly turning to
eutseurcing. In fact, @ recent study by AMR Research
foumd that, while 20% of businesses outsource seme
part of thelr IT today, ever are forecasted to rely en
IT sutsourcing by the year 2008,




“Virtualized computing is one of the
very few IT solutions available now
that will deliver rapid payback, pro-
tect existing investments, permit incre-
mental migrations strategies, enhance
business agility and position IT as a
critical key to business success.”

—Summit Strategies

The dhellenge s thiss Wiile tradlifenal outseurcers
can ke overa i3 anel effter some
savings, they simply recreste the cllent’s legacy
Infrastructure in & new date center. SAYVIS delivers @
aifferent king of outseurding that & full range of
serviees wihidh & business’ [T shorg, net
i SAVVIS facilities, bunelles, consulting anel vir-
tuelized services enable businesses to direct thelr
velualle IT resouress o besting the competition, net
loading micrecede. Ane SAYVIS virtualized [T serviees
efffer disrupiive econemies that clients can leverage
over tme to provide cone compuiing, networking and
application services for thelr businesses. Thet males us
the (T Uelliy for Incustry.

RE Researd CIC/SAVAS Stuely, NMewemler 2003,

The Power of Performance
SAVVIS services were built from the ground up to
meet the needs of the world's most demanding cus-
tomers: the financial services vertical. We have a
history of cost effectively delivering real-time appli-
cations to financial institutions worldwide with
5-nines (99.999%) availability. These banks and bro-
kerages depend on mission-critical applications to
execute financial trades with split-second precision.
While SAVVIS is proud to have earned the title of the
Network that Powers Wall Street®, we have success-
fully delivered these services to other demanding
industries, such as media and entertainment, retail,
manufacturing and healthcare, to name a few.

And our recent transactions further strengthen
our ability to deliver [T infrastructure services to
businesses. For example, the acquisition of the com-
mercial business of WAMINET positions SAVVIS as a
leader in delivering and managing rich media and
digital content. Our strategic partnership with
AccessLine Communications integrates best-in-class
Voice over IP (VolP) application technology into our
global IP network and hosting centers. The acquisi-
tion of data centers and customers from Intel Online
Services positions SAVVIS as a top playerin hosting.
Finally, the Cable & Wireless America transaction
adds additional network and hosting proficiency, a
Fortune 500 customer base and high-level consult-
ing capabilities to the mix.




Creating an
Industry Powerhou

Introducing the New SAVVIS:

The Global IT Utility

SAVVIS is a recognized leader and innovator in pro-
viding managed IP services. We were ranked in the
top three in IP VPN global market share by IDC (June
2003), and our network reliability was declared “per-
fect”in Network World magazine’s groundbreaking
study of backbone performance (December 2002).
Our managed hosting services were awarded the
Service Provider Excellence Award by Boardwatch
magazine for our virtualized approach to managed
hosting as well as the Market Engineering Award
from Frost & Sullivan for product differentiation and
innovation. And in April 2003, SAVVIS won the
American Business Award's “Stevie"™in the category
of Best Customer Service Organization.

With the purchase of the assets of Cable & Wireless
America, SAVVIS adds scale, products, expertise and
customers to our proven business model. The new
SAVVIS has one of the broadest and deepest sets of
IP services in the industry. For example, we are now
one of the world’s largest hosting providers in terms
of revenue, market share and facilities. We run one of
the largest content delivery networks in the world. We
possess extensive consulting expertise in areas such
as security, performance optimization and business
continuity. And we have over 7,000 customers, includ-
ing 40% of the Fortune 100.

So the “New SAVVIS"is really the old SAVVIS with
significantly expanded services capabilities that our
clients can choose from to make their businesses
more successful,

S€
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
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B ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003
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(] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Securities Registered pursuant to Section 12{g) of the Act: Common stock, par value $.01 per share

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: {1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months {or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days. HlYes _INo

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S$-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to
the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part I1l of this Farm 10-K or any amend-
ment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). T Yes NERNo

The aggregate market value of the voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of June 30, 2003 was approximately $70,730,669
based upon the last reported closing sales price of $0.90 as reported on the Nasdaq SmallCap Market Index of such equity on such date.

The number of shares of the registrant’s common stock outstanding as of February 19, 2004 was 101,413,324,

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
List hereunder the following documents incorporated by reference and the Part of the Form 10-K into which the document is incorporated:

Portions of the definitive proxy statement for the 2004 annual meeting of stockholders to be held on May 11, 2004, to be filed within 120 days after the
end of the registrant's fiscal year, are incorporated by reference into Part 11, ltems 10-14 of this Form 10-K.
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PART |

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Some of the statements contained in this Form 10-K discuss future expectations, contain projections of results of operations or financial
condition or state other forward-looking information. Any statements in this report that are not statements of historical facts, are intended
to be, and are, “forward-looking statements” under the safe harbor provided by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1935. These
statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause the actual events to differ materi-
ally from those contemplated by the statements. The forward-looking information is based on various factors and was derived using numer-
ous assumptions. In some cases, you can identify these so-called “forward-looking statements” by our use of words such as "may,” "will,”
“should,” "expect,” "plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” "estimate,” "predict,” “project,” “intend” or “potential” or the negative of those words
and other comparable words. You should be aware that those statements only reflect our predictions. Actual events or results may differ
substantially. Important factors that could cause actual events or results to be materially different from the forward-looking statements
include those discussed under the heading “Business—~Risk Factors” and throughout this Form 10-K. Although we believe the expecta-
tions reflected in our forward-looking statements are based upon reasonable assumptions, we can give no assurance that we will attain

"o uon

these expectations or that any deviations will not be material. Except as otherwise required by the federal securities laws, we disclaim
any abligations or undertaking to publicly release any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained in this annual repart
an Form 10-K and the information incarporated by reference in this report ta reflect any change in aur expectations with regard thereto or
any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

The terms "SAVWIS,” “we,” "us,” “the Company,” and “our” as used in this report refer to SAVVIS Communications Corporation, a
Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries, except where by the context it is clear that such terms mean only SAWIS Communications Corporation.

OVERVIEW

SAWIS provides outscurced network, comouting, and application services to businesses worldwide. We strive to deliver fully integrated
solutions, built on SAVVIS' global infrastructure and based on a virtualization technology that offer our customers lower total cost of own-
ership, increased availability, and improved operations.

The SAWVIS service platform was developed to support the most demanding real-time data collection and distribution applications
of the financial services industry. Known as The Network That Powers Wall Street™, SAVVIS connects financial institutions to high per-
formance applications such as market data, electronic trading, and straight through processing. Based on this track record and heritage in
financial services, SAVVIS has expanded its custamer base to include other industries with mission critical applications such as legal,
media, retail, professional services, healthcare, and manufacturing.

As businesses in all industries continue to differentiate themselves through powerful applications, SAVVIS has positioned itself
to deliver the technology infrastructure services needed to support these applications.

HISTORY
SAWIS Communications was incorporated in Delaware in 1998. SAWIS initially offered Internet access to local and regional Internet serv-
ice praviders, pigneering the use of Private Network Access Points (“PrivateNAPs”) to bypass the Internet’s most significant performance
bottlenecks. In April 1999, SAVVIS was acquired by Bridge Information Systems, Inc. (“Bridge”), then a global provider of real-time/
historical financial information and news. Bridge had constructed a highly redundant, fault tolerant netwark and computing infrastructure
based on IP (“Internet Pratocol”) and ATM {“asynchronous transfer mode”) technologies to provide its services to some of the largest finan-
cial companies and institutional investors in the world. In September 1999, the two networks were combined and renamed the SAVVIS
Intelligent IP Network™.

On February 18, 2000, SAVVIS conducted an initial public offering (IPO”) and began trading on the Nasdag under the symbal SWVS.
SAWVIS used part of the proceeds cof the IPO ta acquire the netwark and computing assets of Bridge, and hired the employees of Bridge
who operated those assets. In addition, SAVVIS entered into an agreement to provide network services to Bridge and its world-wide client

PAGE 14




SAVVIS COMMUNICATIONS 10-K

base. In 2001 Bridge went into bankruptcy and Reuters Limited {"Reuters”) and Moneyline Telerate and Moneyline Telerate International
(“Moneyline”) agreed to acquire substantially afl of Bridge’s assets. In the fall of 2001, SAVVIS entered into network service agreements
with Reuters and Moneyline Telerate and Maneyline Telerate International, effectively replacing the agreement with Bridge who was in
the pracess of liquidation.

During 2002, SAVVIS raised over $200 million to reduce our outstanding debt and invest in our sales and marketing opportunities.

Additionally, in 2002, SAVVIS was chosen by Intel Online Services (“10S") to provide managed hosting services to 10S clients in
the United States, United Kingdom and Japan under contracts SAVVIS entered inta directly with former 10S customers. In 2003, the Company
entered into leases and assumed management of [0S data centers located in Santa Clara, California; Chantilly, Virginia; London; and Tokyo
to serve these clients.

In July 2003, SAWIS entered into an agreement with Reuters whereby we sold Reuters our data center located in Hazelwood,
Missouri, leased back approximately one-third of the data center for five years with a five year renewal option, and allowed Reuters to
buy-down a portion of its minimum revenue commitments under their 2001 network services agreement with us.

In August 2003, SAWVIS entered into an asset purchase agreamsnt with WAMINET, Inc. ("WAMINET"), a leading global provider
of content management and delivery services, to acquire certain assets related to its commercial business operations, including their com-
mercial customer contracts and related customer premise and ather equipment. The integration of application services from WAMINET
and SAWIS, alang with SAVIS' global infrastructure, resulted in the creation of the Company's WAMINET Media Services Division.

In January 2004, SAVVIS signed a definitive agreement to purchase substantially al! of the assets of Cable & Wireless USA, Inc.
and Cable & Wireless Internet Services, Inc. together with the assets of certain of their affiliates ["CWA”). CWA, wholly-owned by Cable
and Wireless PLC, provides a range of network and hosting services, including internet access to a Tier T network, collocation, hosting and
other value-added services such as managed security and content distribution. SAVVIS expects to complete the transaction in March 2004.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

SAWIS' business strategy is to provide a portfolio of flexible, integrated, managed, and global outsourced technology infrastructure serv-
ices that can be purchased in part or in whole and to support a broad range of business applications. This product portfolio is particularly
well suited to businesses with high performance applications, offices in multiple countries, and a desire to focus internal IT resources on
developing applications that differentiate their business rather than building and managing network/hosting infrastructure.

SAWIS strategy is based on the following three competencies:

Outsourced Infrastructure Services. SAVVIS' outsourcing approach focuses on delivering managed infrastructure services that
include netwaork, hosting, and applications. Traditional outsourcers offer mainly operational savings over long term cantracts with large enter-
prises. SAWIS has developed an infrastructure services platform from which it can deliver high-availability services to businesses of all
sizes over 1-3 year terms with both operational and technology savings. These solutions leverage a proprietary end-to-end management
system and virtualized technologies so that small to mid-size husinesses, typically Fortune 2000 companies, can receive improved availabil-
ity and flexibility from technalogy infrastructure and allocate their key IT persannel to other value added projects for their business.

End-to-End Management System. Fundamental to SAWVIS' strategy is proprietary management software that provides monitaring
and management. Traditional outsourcers use separate management systems for each client configuration. SAVIS' integrated manage-
ment platform is used to manage all client solutions end-ta-end. Far example, configuring a new product for a client could impact multipte
infrastructure and customer premise systems including edge routers, firewalls, switches, and access devices. This process is automated
through SAVVIS proprietary software. The same is true for monitoring, where proprietary software proactively monitors over 30,000 devices
connected ta the SAWWIS netwark.

Virtualized Technologies. SAVVIS has made strategic decisions to be at the forefront in implementing virtualized technology across
the solution portfolio. Virtualization addresses one of the biggest inefficiencies in a business's information technology operation—under-

utilization of resources. On average, servars, storage, and networks are running at 50% capacity. Through virtuatization, SAVVIS can cre-
ate pools of highly reliable server, storage and network resources that can be dynamically allocated to individual clients. Each client receives
their own dedicated and secured slice of the resource pool completely independent of other clients. Each slice is fully utilized and easily
scalable resulting in significant cost savings and improved availability for the customer.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
Core Utility Services
SAWIS' Core Utility Services portfolio includes managed netwaork and hosting solutions.

MANAGED NETWORK

SAWVIS offers three sets of network services: Private IP VPN, Internet, and Managed Voice. These services can be purchased individually
or in combination. The network portfolio emphasizes high performance and availability, end-to-end management and monitoring, any-to-
any connectivity, security, and cost effectiveness.

IP VPN, SAWIS' Private IP VPN, called Intelligent IP Networking™, is a high performance network platform for a client's managed
voice, video, and data applications. The unique architecture of Intelligent IP allows SAVVIS to deliver network solutions that combine the
reliability, performance and security of private networks with the scalability and flexibility of the Internst.

At the core of Intelligens IP is SAVVIS' global ATM network backbone which extends to 45 countries. Most ather network solutions
require that all applications receive the same network service levels. ATM technology allows SAVVIS to offer private network solutions in
which each application running on the network can be assigned one of five guaranteed service levels. Thus applications receive the net-
work performance they need and clients save money by not over-building their network.

Embedded into the SAVVIS backbone is virtualization technology that aliows SAVVIS to offer any-to-any connectivity without com-
plex meshing schemes or routers at the customer site. Through virtualization, SAVVIS can define thousands of individual, secure networks
using simple software parameters instead of installing, maintaining, and periodically upgrading complicated routers at the customer site.

The combination of ATM and virtualization technologies allow the customer to “plug into” the SAVVIS network cloud and receive
the services they need at a price that is significantly lower than if they built the networks themselves or outsourced to a traditional telecom-
munications company.

Internet Access. SAWVIS provides Internet Access services on a managed or unmanaged basis. The managed offering includes instal-
lation and technical support 1o deliver the service; in-network services such as security are also available, The SAVVIS Internet service is
designed for businesses that run mission critical applications over the Internet. SAWVIS offers its customers a wide range of scalable Internet
access methods ranging from DSL through OC-3 and Ethernet access. SAWIS is also able to include Internet service as part of a private IP
VPN solution so that a company can use a private netwark to cannect its offices, and the Internet to reach it custamers or partners.

SAWVIS pioneered the use of strategically focated PrivateNAPs to provide businesses with the most direct route to the internet.
PrivateNAPs avoid the Internet’s public access points, the source of most performance bottlenecks. Today, SAVVIS operates 14 PrivateNAPs
including international locations in London, Tokyo and Singapare. SAVVIS has also deployed 133 Paints of Presence (PoPs) in 45 countries.
PaPs allow clients ta plug into the SAVVIS netwark via a low cost “local loop.” Customer traffic is then routed through a PrivateNAP result-
ing in a direct connection 1o the ultimate Intermet destination over 95% of the time. In contrast, most competitive 1SPs must traverse mut-
tiple public access points to reach the desired location.

Managed Voice. In the third quarter of 2003 SAVVIS, along with its partner Accessline, launched a managed voice services prod-
uct family, which included services such as conferencing, find me/follow me access, 1-800, and automated voice response as well as inte-
gration with our managed VPN voice service currently under development. These fully managed, network-based 1P-voice solutions are
designed to assist IT organizations improve total cost of awnership, enhance employee productivity and reduce menthly costs by capital-
izing on the benefits associated with converged access of voice and data services,

The virtualized design of these services allows custamers to tap inta all benefits of IP-voice without having to discard existing
equipment or outlay capital for new equipment. SAVVIS' approach is unique and in contrast to large carriers and independent voice providers
who, while offering IP-voice and/or hosted voice services, cannot "mix and match” them with existing legacy systems without additional
capital investment.
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HOSTING
Hosting services from SAVVIS are sofd under the Intelligent Hosting™ brand name. Intelligent Hosting sofutions include the full manage-
ment of custamer hardware, operating systems, and servers within a secure, reliable data center environment. By selecting SAWIS to
outsource their applications infrastructure, clients can eliminate most up-front capital expenditures for equipment, reduce the angoing
expense of supporting computing environments, and can focus on building differentiating services and applications. The SAWIS Command
Center provides clients full visibitity into their hosted environments, giving them greater control and oversight over their systems than is
typically found with an in-house solution.

SAVVIS manages a total of more than 7,500 servers for Intelligent Hosting customers in its data center facilities located in St.
Louis, San Francisco, Santa Clara, Northern Virginia, London, Tokyo and Singapore. Traffic is distributed over SAVVIS” highly rated Internet
backbone or via a private network solution developed to meet the customer's Intranet or Extranet requirements. Through the Intelligent
Hosting product set, SAVVIS can satisfy compiex hosting needs with its tailored “a la carte” service offering or provide pre-packaged “Fast
Pack” solutions designed to support web, enterprise and database applications.

Application Services
On top of its infrastructure platform, SAVVIS is delivering a series of application services designed to enhance industry workflows. In 2003,
SAWVIS launched application services for the media and financial services industries.

WAMINET Media Services. In August, 2003 SAVVIS acquired certain assets of WAMINET, a leading global provider of content
management and delivery services. The integration of application services from WAMINET and SAWVIS, along with SAVVIS' global infra-
structure, resulted in the creation of WAMINET Media Services. This suite of services, designed for the SAVVIS application services for
the media industry provide a shared-managed infrastructure tied to applications that streamline process and workflow around the crea-
tion, production and distribution of digita! cantent for media industries. These services help companies to manage, share, store, and
distribute their digital content inside of their organization, and throughout supply chains outside of their enterprise through a single access
point and a single system.

With an open and scalable infrastructure, SAVVIS media application services enable customers to easily plug into a collaborative
workflow and connect to their global communities of interest easily. Media customers can gain considerable productivity, time-to-market,
and cost-saving benefits while eliminating time-intensive and costly analog steps in their workflows, IT management and maintenance
requirements, and technology ohsolescence that are generally associated with simple software utilities or proprietary netwarks.

Data Delivery Utility. In December, 2003 SAVVIS announced a partnership with HyperFeed, a developer of ticker plant technology,
software and managed services for the financial markets, to launch Data Delivery Utility, a global network distribution service for finan-
cial applications and content. In addition, the new service offers end-to-end Service Level Agreements {SLAs) that guarantee network per-
formance. SAWIS has the exclusive rights to distribute the Data Delivery Utility worldwide.

SAVVIS Data Delivery Utility seamiessly integrates HyperFeed's managed services and software with SAVVIS’ global infrastruc-
ture and management and monitoring systems. This combination allows the industry to “plug intg” a high-perfarmance, vet turnkey util-
ity service for the normalization, data-basing, integration and transmission of high performance, real-time direct data sources. This service
is designed for exchanges, financial institutions, content providers, and applications developers with needs for the consumption and trans-
mission of real-time, directly sourced financial information.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

SAWIS' goal is to provide the highest level of customer service in the industry. We believe that high quality customer service is critical to
attracting and retaining customers. We commenced business in 1996 and have grown our customer base to approximately 3,600 as of
Oecember 31, 2003.

Unlike most other service providers, who typically split customer service into separate discrete departments, SAWVIS built its cus-
tomer service as a cohesive centralized operation. This means that all service calls are assigned a single point-of-contact in one of our
three worldwide Operation Centers located in St. Louis, Landon, and Singapore. This single paint of contact works with team members
who are accountable for the performance of each customer's SAVVIS solution. This unique strategy is the foundation of SAVVIS' customer
care both at service installation and in ongaing support.
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SAWVIS Service Installation Process

We significantly reduce the complexity and cost of the service installation process by having a single point of contact, as well as using
one automated, company-wide system. With SAVVIS’ automated installation process, the local loop is ordered, the customer premises
equipment {“CPE") is configured, routing pelicies are established, and circuits are provisioned once a site is entered into the customer man-
agement system. This single integrated system reduces costs, chance of human error, and install time. Because the CPE is a simple bridg-
ing device, not a complicated router, there is no need for SAVVIS to dispatch highly trained engineers to install connactivity devices at the
customer sites, thus lowering casts to the customer while maintaining a high level of service.

SAVVIS Ongoing Support

Once a customer is up and running with SAVVIS, the customer is turned over to our Client Services Group. This group, which assigns a sin-
gle point of contact to each customer call, is supported by powerful automated systems. SAVVIS proprietary systems monitor 30,000 devices
attached to SAVVIS' network, providing 10 data points every 30 seconds, which exceeds the capability of off-the-shelf software solutions.
In addition, SAWVIS has developad proactive automated systems to help prevent outages before they happen. SAVWIS systems continuously
analyze data against performance thresholds to ensure optimal service. When a threshald is not met, an alert is automatically generated
and routed to a technician who's trained to resolve the issue. As a result of these systems and processes, SAVVIS is abls to alert its cus-
tomers within 15 minutes of an occurrence, regardless of whether the occurrence is service affecting.

Service Level Agreements (“SLA”)
SAWIS offers end-to-end SLAs that provide guarantees for network availability, throughput, latency, packet loss, and jitter. This SLA cov-
ers network performance within SAWIS' globa! infrastructure and to the customer's site.

GLOBAL OPERATIONS
Facilities
SAWIS clients "plug into” the SAWWIS infrastructure and receive services through hundreds of PoPs in 45 countries. PoPs are secured facili-
ties that provide highly reliable, direct access to SAVVIS high-speed telecommunications infrastructure. SAVVIS provides network connec-
tivity through an extensive global infrastructure that includes 300+ ATM and Frame Relay switches, 200+ backbone routers, and 17,000+
access devices on customer locations. .

The SAVVIS network is designed with highly redundant backbone infrastructure including diversely routed long haul and local
access connections from multiple carriers. This backbone network uses a ring architecture so that at least two diverse paths exist between
switching facilities resulting in & self-healing, fault-tolerant network.

Operations Centers

Our global network operations center located in St. Louis, Missouri, operates 24 hours a day, 365 days a year, and is staffed by highly
skilled technicians. SAVVIS also maintains regional network operations centers in London, Singapore, and Tokyo. These regional centers
ensure backup for the St. Louis facility. From the operations centers, SAVVIS remotely manitors the components of the global infrastruc-
ture, performs diagnostics, and maintains equipment. SAVVIS also operates data center facilities around the globe, with one of the high-
est levels of security, redundancy, availability and on-site support. SAVVIS' data centers are located in: St. Louis, San Francisco, Santa
Clara, Northern Virginia, London, Tokyo and Singapore.

Management and Monitoring Systems

SAVVIS uses proprietary systems and software to run the applications infrastructure for its customers. Using this software, SAWVIS pro-
vides real-time monitoring for thousands of servers and storage davices, network circuits, and CPE worldwide. SAVVIS also provides easy-
to-use Web-based tools, allowing clients to menitor the critical elements of their solutions. We have real-time access to system performance
statistics by day, week, or month including views into CPU utilization, disk capacity, processor capacity and netwark interface traffic. These
systems are completely integrated, allowing clients to monitor both hosting and network services.
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SALES AND MARKETING

SAWVIS reaches potential new customers through a combination of direct sales and a network of outside agents and resellers. SAVVIS
also services and up-sells our currant customer base through our internal Client Solutions Team. As of December 31, 2003, 306 full-time
persons were employed in the areas of sales, sales support, product management and marketing.

Direct Sales

SAWIS' direct sales force utilizes a "solution selling” approach to understand a client's application infrastructure requirements. Once a
prospect is qualified, SAVVIS engages product and engineering experts to design the final solution for the customer. With this approach,
SAWVIS is able 1o develop a strong relationship with the client, enabling us to maximize the value derived from SAWVIS solutions. All direct
sales representatives take part in extensive training program designed to develop in-depth consultative selling skills so they can better
understand customers’ complex network, hosting, and application requirements and help develop tailored solutions.

Agent and Resellers
SAWIS partners with leading agents and resellers who either sell SAVVIS products themselves or refer business to one of our direct chan-
nels to close. SAVVIS partnership programs include the following options:
» Referral Partner—SAVVIS recruits agents who can earn a one-time commission when prospects referred by them purchase services
from SAVVIS.
* Sales Partner—SAVVIS recruits agents who are willing to make a dollar level commitment to drive business to SAVVIS, and in turn
can earn a continuous revenue stream as they market SAVYIS products and services.
o Business Partner—SAVVIS Busingss Partners represent SAVVIS with a Certified Partner designation. They receive tailored training,
support, and tools to aggressively sell our services into their own client base.
» Reseller Program—These companies can market and sell SAVVIS' complete line of services to their own customers, either under the
SAWIS brand or their own private label.

Client Solutions
SAWIS' Client Solutions Team is respansible for managing and expanding the refationship with existing customers. The team alerts cus-
tomers when they begin to outgrow their SAVVIS services and works with them to maximize the performance of their solutions. They also
intraduce new SAWVIS services to clients and build a plan, when appropriate, for integrating these services into their current solutions.
Finally, they work closely with clients as their cantract renewal approaches, advising them on the best way to leverage the portfolio of
SAVVIS services.

Marketing

SAWIS is a business-to-business (B2B) company whose marketing programs are targeted at information technology executives, as well
as line of business and finance executives, in the B2B marketplace. SAVVIS uses brand awareness and direct marketing programs to gen-
erate leads, accelerate the sales process, retain existing customers, and promote new products to existing and praspective customers.
SAVVIS print advertisements are placed in trade journals, newspapers and special-interest publications. SAVVIS also participates in indus-
try conferences and uses direct mail, e-newsletters, surveys, telemarketing, Internet marketing, on-line and on-site seminars, collateral
materials, welcome kits and direct response programs to communicate with existing customers and to reach potential new customers.
SAWIS authors and publishes articles about our industry in general and SAVVIS' approach specifically in leading trade journals. Additionally,
SAWVIS works closely with industry analysts and the press so that they understand and can communicate the value of SAVVIS services.
SAWVIS closely tracks the impact and effectiveness of its primary marketing programs.

CUSTOMERS
We currently provide services to approximately 3,600 customers. From December 31, 2002, our customer ¢count has grown by approximately
1,700 customers, with Reuters and Moneyline each representing a single customer.
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In 2001, SAWVIS entered network service agreements with Reuters and Moneyline, effectively replacing the agreement with Bridgs,
which was in the process of liquidation. The Maneyline agreement was extended in Octaber 2002 for an additional three years, expiring
in September 2009. Reuters, representing 33%, 43%, and 13% of revenue for the years ended 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively, is
SAWIS' [argest customer. Maneyline represented 22%, 30%, and 6% of revenue in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Bridge, which was
our largest customer through the fall of 2001, represented approximately 1% and 55% of our 2002 and 2001 revenues, respectively. There
was no revenue from Bridge in 2003. No other individual customer accounted for mare than 5% of our revenues during the year ended
Oecember 31, 2003. SAVVIS also provides services to many financial service companies and a diverse group of enterprises in legal, retail,
media, healthcare and prafessional services industries.

Our contracts with our customers are typically for ane to three years in length. Many of our customer contracts contain service
level agreements that provide for service credits should we fail to maintain specified levels of quality.

COMPETITION

SAWIS competes against traditional telecommunications companies and large-scale systems integratars far network and hosting services,
a wide range of providers in the voice space, and point software and service solutions providers in the application services market. Many
of our competitors provide SAVVIS with underlying infrastructure requirements or incorporate SAVVIS services into their own portfolios.

Traditional Telecommunications Companies. This category includes companies such as AT&T, Equant, MCI, Qwest, and Sprint.
These traditional carriers are attempting to build off of their legacy voice and data business to expand into IP VPNs and Hosting.

Large Scale Systems Integrators. Leading companies in this category include IBM, EDS, and Accenture, These companies tend
to focus on large scale, long-term systems integration projects and outsourcing contracts that include hiring a large portion of the
client’s staff.

Voice Providers. Independent Local Exchange Carriers (ILECs} such as SBC and Verizon, Voice Service Providers (VSPs) such as
Masergy and GoBeam, IntereXchange Carriers {IXCs) such as MCI, Sprint, and AT&T, and hardware manufacturers such as Cisco and Avaya,
are all competing in the growing IP-vaice market.

Companies with more traditional voice experience, such as the ILECs and XCs, are focused on converting their existing customers
from traditional voice to IP-enhanced services such as IP-Centrex and IP-PBX solutions. Companies in the VSP space are focused on offer-
ing enhanced hosted voice services. Hardware manufacturers are seeking to sell IP-voice devices that enable customers to create their
own [P-voice solutions.

Point Software and Service Solutions Providers. The primary competition for WAMINET media services is companies building
their own in-house solutions that include networks, file servers, and software applications for digital file delivery as well as digital
content management. Stand-alone competitors, such as VIO or Quickcut, provide subscription based file delivery via the Internet or
private networks. Finally, shipping services such as Federal Express and United Parcel Service compete by hand delivering printed and
digital media.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Overview

The following section describes laws and regulatory developments that we believe are currently applicable to our business. It does not
cover all present or pending federal, state, local or foreign regulations affecting the communications industry.

Regulatory Analysis by Service Type

SAWIS' provides a portfalio of flexible, integrated, managed, and global cutsourced technology infrastructure services that can be pur-
chased in part or in whole and to support a broad range of business applications. Our portfolio includes a full range of managed commu-
nications as well as applications services, which we market under various trade names. Our communications-related services include
Managed IP, High Bandwidth Internet Access, Hosting, and Managed Voice Services. We also anticipate providing private line services in
the near future in connection with our anticipated acquisition of the Cable & Wireless USA assets.
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Managed IF The core of our managed IP services business is providing managed data networking services to corporate customers.
The managed data netwaorking services that we provide are generally characterized by requlators as data transmission services or value
added services. We are authorized by law or by individual license or a general authorization obtainable by simple notification or declara-
tion by an automatic “class” license to pravide these services in all countries in which we expect to generate significant revenue from
managed IP services, including the United States, United Kingdom, and Japan, as well as other major markets in North America, the
European Union, and Asia.

High Bandwidth Internet Access. The high bandwidth Intermnet access services that we offer generally do not require any authori-
zation beyond those required for managed data networking services and value added services. In many countries, Internet services are
less heavily regulated than other enhanced data services. In the United States, for instance, no individual authorization is currently required
for pravision of Internet access.

However, because Internet and IP technology remains a relatively recent develapment, regulations concerning Internet access
remain ill defined or in flux in many countries, including in the United States. There is a risk, for instance, that customers may attempt to
use our network to access the Internet in countries that may prohibit or restrict such access or, after accessing the Internet, may create or
view content or engage in ather activitigs that certain countries may wish to prohibit or restrict. We may limit this risk by discontinuing
such access if measures are taken or threatened by the pertinent authorities to restrict the use of our network for these purposes.

Hosting. The hasting services that SAVVIS currently provides in the United States and other foreign countries are generally not
considered telecammunications Service per se, however, regulations concerning data protection may be applicable. Our data center faciti-
ties are designed to ensure a secure environment in which customars locate mission critical networking hardware, which enables us to
provide value-added hosting management and service options including server management, operating system management, colocation,
hardware management and space and environmental provisioning. Like in the United States, most countries, hosting is a relatively new
product offering and therefare communications regulations do not specifically address it.

Managed Voice. We offer a wide range of range of voice enhancement capabilities to our business customers. Our hosted
telephony services are designed to enable the layering of a broad set of IT and telephony services on both PBX and IP/SiP-based voice
networks. These services are designed to work with both legacy and IP-based voice networks and additional services can be implemented
as needed. Voice aver the tnternat or vaice over IP {collectively referred to as "VOIP”") may be regulated as traditional voice service in cer-
tain countries. Moreover, countries that today impose few restrictions an the provision of Internet services, including VOIP. may, in the
future, adopt rules regulating VOIP services in a manner similar to the way they regulate basic voice telecommunications services. To date,
the United States' Federal Communications Commission {“FCC*) has declined not to treat VOIP as it does traditional voice services, how-
ever, various state public utility commissians have taken steps to eliminate the regulatory distinctions. Various courts are in the process
of reviewing the state actions and the FCC has initiated a public inquiry to investigate the migration of voice setvices to IP-based networks
and gather public comment to help it develop an appropriate regulatory environment for these services. We cannot predict the ultimate
outcome of these various federa), state and court proceedings, and thus the future regulatory classification of VOIP remains uncertain.

Domestic Private Line and International Private Line Services. In connection with aur anticipated acquisition of the Cable &
Wireless assets in the United States, we anticipate introducing domestic and international private line services during the first quarter of
2004, upon obtaining the required FCC authorizations. Our Private Line Services will provide a digital transmission channe! of defined band-
width between two points. Direct connectivity between fixed points will be available within the United States, between the United States
and the United Kingdom and between the United States and other locations in Europe and Asia where the company has nodes to accom-
modate the service. Because the service is protocol independent and highly resilient, it can be designed to meet a variety of customer
requirements that can carry data, digitized voice, fax, video, multimedia or any other form of digital transmission. Customers will be able
to purchase capacity on 2 wholesale or unmanaged basis; leased annually or on an IRU basis. Services are most often used by large multi-
national companies as part of a private corporate network to carry mixed voice, high speed data or for LAN interconnection and by other
carriers and Internet service providers, Private line services are regulated as telecommunications in the United States by the FCC. We have
obtained domestic 214 autharization from the FCC and applied for international 214 authorization to provide these services. In addition,
we have filed applications with the FCC to approve the transfer of telecommunications assets to us from Cable & Wireless. While we
cannot guarantee when or that we will be awarded the requisite authorizations and approvals, we do not foresee any impediments at this
time 10 our ultimately obtaining them.
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Application Services. Qur broad set of application services are provided over a shared-managed infrastructure and tied together
with various applications ta streamline process and waorkflow for the creation, production and distribution of digital cantent. These serv-
ices allow companies to manage, share, store, and distribute their digital content within their organization and externally throughout their
supply chains using a single access point and system. These application services are not generally subject to communications regulations.

Future Regulatory Developments. With respect to all of our current services, we do not foresee the emergence of any significant
regulatory issues that will prevent us from selling any of them in accordance with our business plan. Even if certain of our services, such
as VOIP, which do not require ficensing today become subject to licensing requirements, we do not anticipate the erection of any signifi-
cant barriers ar impasition of significant costs that would prevent us from abtaining the requisite autharizations in any of aur principal mar-
kets. However, we cannot guarantee that governments will not institute laws and regulations that may impact the provision of these
services and/or increase our costs for providing them.

U.S. REGULATORY MATTERS

With the exception of our anticipated introduction of Private Line Service, our existing Internet access and managed IP, hosting, and voice
services are generally not regulated by the Federal Communications Commissian (“FCC”} or any other government agency of the United
States or public utility commissions of the individual states at the present time, other than regulations that apply to businesses generally.

Federal Regulatory Matters. The United States Telecommunications Act of 1996 distinguishes between telecommunications serv-
ices and infarmation services. This Act defines “telecommunications services” as “transmission, between or among points specified by
the user, of infarmation of the user's chaosing, without change in the form or content of the information as sent and received.” The Act
establishes that the provisioning of interstate telecommunications services or international communications by wire on a common carrier
basis requires FCC autharization, as well as contributions to the federal universal service fund ("USF”). Providers of telecommunications
services on a private carrier basis are not required to obtain a spacific authorization, but are nonetheless required to make USF contribu-
tions based on international and interstate telecommunications revenues.

This Act defines “information services” as "the offering of a capability for generating, acquiring, storing, transforming, process-
ing, retrieving, utilizing, or making available information via telecommunications.” Certain services may have components of both “telecom-
munications” and "infarmation.” In its 1998 Report to Congress on Universal Service the ("Stevens Report”), the FCC identified such services
as "hybrids,” defined as "services in which a provider offers a capahility for generating, acquiring, staring, transforming, processing, retriev-
ing, utilizing or making available information via telecommunications, and as an inseparable part of that service transmits information sup-
plied ar requested by the user.” The FCC has determined that certain hybrid services are exempt from federal regulation and will be treated
like information services.

Excluding Private Line Service which we plan to offer in the near future, we believe that the products and services we offer, whether
on a facilities or resale basis, generally qualify as information services as defined by the Telecommunications Act or exempt hybrid serv-
ices as classified by the FCC and thus are nat subject to federal regulation. There remains some uncertainty at the FCC regarding the dis-
tinction between information and telecommunications services.

For instance, with respect to universal service, in the Stevens Report, the FCC stated that “in those cases where an Internet serv-
ice provider (“ISP”} owns transmission facilities, and engages in data transport over those facilities in order to pravide an information serv-
ice, we do not currently require it to contribute to universal service mechanisms.” The FCC also explained that while it may be “advisable”
to require facilities-based [SPs to contribute, it would refrain from doing so because of “significant operational difficulties associated with
determining the amount of an Internet service provider’s revenues to be assessed for universal service purposes and with enforcing such
requirements.” These same operetional difficulties and enforcement problems could also theorstically apply to other types of facilities-
based enhanced data service praviders.

In addition, at least one federal appeals court has found that, when an ISP owns the transmission facilities, it provides “telecom-
munications” services as defined in the 1996 US Telecommunications Act. In response partially to that decision, the FCC has taken a num-
ber of steps to address the regulatory status of access to the Internet over cable and other facilities. Accordingly, the FCC continues to
cansider whether ar not facilities-hased providers of Internet access services shauld be required to unbundle the “informatian” partion
from the “telecommunications” portion of their services. If the FCC adopts such a requirement, all facilities-based ISPs could be required
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to contribute to the USF based on revenues derived from providing the telecommunications services underlying provision of their informa-
tion service offerings. To the extent that we elect to become or are deemed to be a facilities-based {SP. we could therefore be required ta
make these USF contributions.

There are numeraus proceedings pending hefore the FCC regarding the appropriate regulatory classification of broadband Internet
access services, and other data transmission services. Although the FCC has tentatively conciuded that broadband wireline Internet access
services are “information services,” there is no guarantee that the FCC will adopt this tentative conclusion, or that the FCC will not impose
regulatory obligations on providers of broadband Internet access services, such as USF cantribution requirements. Even if the tentative
conclusion is adopted, it is unclear what effect such a ruling would have on the regulatory classification of our data networking services.
In February 2003, the FCC adopted rules far network unbundling obligations of incumbent focal exchange companies (ILECs). The FCC's
decision has been appealed and court review could lead ta changes in the new policy. Until these appeals have been exhausted, it is
unclear how the FCC's report and order will effect the lavel of competition resulting from changes to the ILEC obligations to provide cer-
tain unbundled network elements to competitars at discount rates.

Advancements in technology are increasingly narrowing the distinctions, from a customer's perspective, between traditignal or
basic telecommunications services and Internet pratacal or Internet-based services with respect ta vaice and thus may lead regulatars to
reassess their treatment of such services. Indeed, in the Stevens Repart, the FCC concluded that some of the services currently offerad
over the Internet, such as phone-to-phane IP telephane services, may be functianally indistinguishable from traditional telecommunica-
tions service offering, and that their non-regulatary status may have to be reexamined. In 2003, a number of state public utility commis-
sions instructed providers of VOIP services to apply for and abtain state autharizations. A number of these providers filed suit, claiming
that the FCC has exclusive jurisdiction in this area. These courts are in the process of reviewing the state actions. Partially in response,
the FCC has initiated a public inquiry to investigate the migration of voice services ta IP-based networks and gather public comment to
help it develop an appropriate regulatory environment for these services. We cannot predict the ultimate outcome of these various fed-
eral, state and court proceedings, and thus the future regulatory classification of VOIP remains uncertain. There is some risk, therefore,
that our VOIP services could be subject to regulation, including requirements to make USF contributions, and that those services could be
treated similarly to voice services provided over conventional circuit-switched network facilities for purposes of making payments to local
telephone companies for origination and termination of call and for other purposes.

In response to our planned roll-out of private line services, we filed applications with the FCC in Janvary 2004 to cbtain both domes-
tic and international 214 authorizations for the provisioning of interstate telecommunications services and international communications
by wire on a common carrier basis. In addition, we have filed applications with the FCC to approve the transfer of telecommunications
assets to us from Cable & Wireless. Our domestic 214 authorization is already in effect. With respect to the rest, we anticipate that the
FCC will grant us these authorizations and approvals, which will enable us to provide certain regulated communications services on both
a facilities and leased basis. Additionally, we would become obligated 1o make USF contributions base on the revenue from the the inter-
state and international portions of the private line services. However, we do not believe at this time that we will be subject to the juris-
diction of individual state regulatory authorities as it relates to intrastate traffic for these services.

State Regulatory Matters. Intrastate telecommunications services are subject to regulation by the relevant state public utility com-
mission and may be subject to licensing requirements, tariffs, and/or subsidy mechanisms. States also regulate telecommunications serv-
ices, including through certification of providers of intrastate services, regulation of intrastate rates and services offering, and other
regulations. Under the US Telecommunications Act, states retain jurisdiction to adopt regulations necessary to preserve universal serv-
ices, protect public safety and welfare, ensure the continued quality of communications services and safeguard the rights of consumers.
Accordingly, the degree of state involvement in local telecommunications services may be substantial. Furthermore, states generally give
municipal authorities responsibility over the access 1o rights-of way franchises, zoning, and other matters of focal concern, which means
that localities may also have involvement in the regulation of the telecommunications industry.

With respect to our managed data, hosting and Internet access services, because SAVVIS bundles its data transmission services
with information services, we do not believe our services are regulated at the state level for similar reasons that our services are not regu-
lated by the FCC. However, very fittle case law exists on the regulation of information or hybrid services at the state level. As such, itis less
clear as to how most states currently regulate these types of services. However, generally, state public utility commissions have foilowed
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federal interpretations in this area and few of aur competitors in the enhanced data service praviders industry have abtained state certifi-
cations. We do not believe that our private line services will be subject to state autharizations because more than 10% of the revenue will
derive from interstate traffic, which places the entire service under federal regulatary jurisdiction. However, as noted, states are beginning
to review the provision of VOIP and some have determined those services to be telecommunications services subject ta regulation. How this
matter will be salved by the various states, courts and FCC remains an open questian.

Future Federal and State Developments. With the exceptions noted above, we believe that the majority of our services are not
subject to state or FCC licensing, reparting or USF obligations. However, various communications services and technologies are currently
the subject of judicial proceedings, legislative hearings and administrative actions which could change, in varying degrees, the manner in
which the telecommunications industry operates. We cannot predict the outcome of these proceedings, or the impact they may have on
the telecommunications or information services industries generally, or on us particularly. In addition, we cannot assure you that future
legislative, regulatory or judicial changes in the United States or other countries in which we operate will not have a material adverse
impact an our business. To the extent that future regulatory licenses or permissions are necessary or useful for us to provide our services,
however, we will seek to obtain those licenses and permissions and do not believe that such applications will be denied or we would face
processing delays that will have a material adverse effect on us. Moreover, if new regulations are imposed on our industry, or existing
regulations are extended to caver our specific services, these reguiations will aimost certainly alsa apply to all similarly situated parties
offering comparable services, including our competitors.

INTERNATIONAL REGULATORY MATTERS

SAVVIS International Operations and Authorizations. Our principal markets outside the United States include the European Union and
the Asia Pacific Rim. We have network operational centers in London, Tokyo and Singapere, where the majority of our non-United States
employees are based. As is true in the United States, the market for our services in each of the major economies within these regions are
open to foreign competition. We believe that we are authorized to provide our services under the applicable telecommunications regula-
tions in all countries where we derive substantial business. In certain countries throughout Asia, Latin America, the Midd!e East and Africa
regulatory and market access barriers, including foreign ownership limitations and entrenched monopolies, continue to prevent us from
providing services directly to customers. As our business plan does not contemplate our selling a significant amount of services in any of
these countries in the near term, we do not believe that our inability to offer services directly to customers in these countries will signifi-
cantly impact us. Nevertheless, in many of the highly regulated countries in these regions, we are able to provide certain services to our
customers indirectly, by partnering with local providers.

European Union. The European Union (EU) adopted measures designed to liberalize the telecommunications networks and serv-
ices of its member countries in 1398. As required, each of the full EU members have incorporated these principles into their respective
domestic legal frameworks while the candidate members, who assume full membership in the EU in May 2004, are each in the process
of implementing liberalized telecommunications regimes as well.

The EU has also adopted a series of directives extending telecommunication regulation to electronic communications networks
and services, including the Internet. Directive 2000/31/EC provides that network services providers are generally exempt from liability
for the content transmitted on their networks and for caching and hosting activities, subject ta certain conditions. This directive also
states that service providers shall not have a general obligation to manitor content. Directive 2002/58/EC obligates network service
providers to implement security measures and to discard customer data as soan as such data is no longer needed for billing. The EU Data
Pratection Directive impases significant natice and access abligations an data “cantrallers,” defined as an entity which determines how
persanal information will be used and processed. Contrallers may engage third parties to assist them in processing the data (e.g., com-
piling, callecting, staring, and disseminating). Requirements far data pracessars are less stringent: they may anly use ar pracess the data
as specified by the contraller and they must implement measures to protect the data from loss, alteration or misuse. We believe that
with respect to the services we provide our customers, we are a data processor not data controller and comply with the applicable data
protection requirements.

While the EU directives were intended to harmaonize regulations across Europe with respect to telecommunications, and to a great
extent have done so, implementation among member countries has been inconsistent in some areas. For instance, the directives do not
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apply to nationa! criminal laws, some of which require service providers to retain data and permit government monitoring, while others
assess fiability for transmitting or storing certain kinds of illegal content. Despite such inconsistencies, and while we cannot predict with
certainty how each country within the European Union will implement the EU directives, we note that the general trend toward removing
regulatory barriers continues throughaut the region, which in turn is conducive to our business in Europe.

United Kingdom. Within the EU, the United Kingdam (UK} is our fargest single market. Qur netwaork operations center for our Europe,
Middle East and Africa {"EMEA") operations is based in London, as are the majority of our EMEA employees, including the bulk of our
European sales force. In addition, we operate a data center outside of London. in 2003, the UK adopted a new Communications Act in
2003, which both replaced the Telecommunications Act 1984 and served to implement the EU liberalization regime. The New Act also cre-
ated a single regulatory body, the Office of Communications, to oversee the entire electronic communications sector. The UK has imple-
mented key EU Directives through various regulations and Acts. In the UK we hold a Telecommunications Services Class License, which
enables us to provide our services to our customers there.

Asfa-Pacific Rim. Degrees of fiberalization vary significantly with respect to telecommunications among the countries in the Asia-
Pacific Rim. Qur two primary markets in the region are Japan and Singapore, and we are authorized to provide our services in both coun-
tries. Additionally, we operate network operations centers in both Japan and Singapore and a data center in Tokyo. The majority of our
Asian employees are based in either Tokyo or Singapore. .

Japan. Japan's Ministry of Public Management, Home Affairs, Posts and Telecommunications ("MPHPT") is in the process of
amending the Telecommunications Business Law, with new rules set to take effect in April 2004. The new system will abolish the current
system of Type | and Type Il Telecommunication businesses. We currently hald a Special Type !l Telecommunications Business License and
a General Type |l Telecommunications License. Under the new regime, providers will obtain authorizations through a simplified registra-
tion or natification system. in addition, the current requirements to file service terms and conditions and tariff are expected to be abol-
ished. These additional steps toward deregulation of the telecommunications sector should afford opportunities to new market entrants
and increase competition for current players, which we expect will benefit praviders relatively new to the market, such as ourselves.

Singapore. Once characterized as a monopoly, the telecommunications market in Singapare is one of the maost fiberalized and com-
petitive in the region. We hold a Service Based Operator {Individua! and Class) License that enables us to provide our services directly to
Our customers.

Global Developments. 1n 1993, 54 countries during the Uruguay Round of Warld Trade Organization {("WT0"} negotiations made
commitments to permit market access for Value-Added Services. This Agreement on Basic Telecommunications Services {the "WT0
Agreement”j formally entered into force, binding the signatory countries, in 1998. By the end of 2003, approximately 90 countries and the
European Union had made commitments with respect to basic services. Another round of WTO negotiations {referred to as the Doha Round)
is underway but not expected to be completed until sometime in 2004, at the earliest.

Despite enactment of the WTO Agreement on telecemmunications services, regulatory obstacles continue to exist in a number of
signatory countries. Some signatory countries made only limited commitments in terms of the services that they were willing to liberalize
and the timeframe in which they were willing to do so. Most of the countries that maintain telecommunications monopolies, however, have
generally not participated in the WTO negotiations. Mareover, some less developed signatary countries are not well prepared for competi-
tion or for effectively regulating a liberalized market; gaining the requisite experience and expertise is likely to be a long and difficult process.
Finally, even in the more liberalized-countries, there remains considerable “post-liberalization red tape,” such as compticated ficensing rulss,
foreign ownership limits, high fees and undeveloped competition and interconnection safeguards. Nevertheless, we believe that, overall,
the WTQ Agreement, and its implementation by the signatory countries, which account for the bulk of global telecommunications revenue,

offers us significant oppartunities to provide our services on a global basis.

OTHER PERTINENT REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS

The faws and regulations relating to the liability of network service providers continues to evelve in the United States and abroad, as the
use and popularity of the Internet and World Wide Web continues to grow. Accordingly, laws and regulations are being and will likely con-
tinue to be adopted at the federal, state, and local levels, as well as in the foreign countries in which we operate, governing such issues
as content liability, privacy, consumer protection, child protection, intellectual property, libel, taxation, mass circulation of unsolicited
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e-mail, gambling, pornographv, law enfarcement and national security, among others. The implementation of any such legislation could
result in direct or indirect regulation of service providers such as ourselves and we may be subject to litigation. In that case, it is likely that
we would have to implement additional palicies and procedures, and incur additional costs, designed to assure our compliance with the
particular legisiation and/or to defend against any claims. These costs could have a material adverse effect on our business.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

We rely on a combination of trademark, service mark, trade secret, patent and other intellectual property law and contractual restrictions
to establish and protect certain proprietary rights in our services. We have registered trademarks for our business name and several prod-
uct and service names and marketing slogans. We have also registered various Internet domain names in the United States and various
other countries in which we operate in connection with the SAVVIS public website. In addition, we have applied for patents and trade-
mark protection for various other products, services and marketing slogans. We do not hold any material licenses, franchises or conces-
sions. We enter into confidentiality and invention assignment agreements with our emplayees and consultants and control access to and
distribution of our proprietary information.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2003, we employed 393 full-time persans, of which 537 were engaged in engineering, operations and customer serv-
ice, 306 in sales, sales support, product management and marketing, and 150 in finance and administration. None of aur employees are
represented by a labor union, and we have not experienced any work stoppages to date. We consider our employee relations to be good.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our internet site is at http://www.savvis.net. We will provide to the public on our website, free of charge, our annual report on Form 16-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a)
of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with, or furnished to, the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”).

RISK FACTORS

in connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, set forth below are cautionary state-
ments identifying important factors that could cause actual events or results to differ materially from any forward-looking statements made
by or on behalf of us, whether ora! or written. We wish to ensure that any forward-locking statements are accompanied by meaningful cau-
tionary statements in arder to maximize to the fullest extent possible the protections of the safe harhor established in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Accordingly, any such statements are qualified in their entirety by reference to, and are accompanied by, the
fallowing impartant factars that could cause actual events or results ta differ materially fram our forward-looking statements.

RISKS RELATED TO QUR BUSINESS
A material reduction in revenue from either of our two largest customers, who combined represented approximately 46% of our reve-
nues in the fourth guarter of 2003, would have a material adverse effect on our business.
Reuters and Moneyline combined accounted for approximately 46% of our revenue in the fourth quarter of 2003 versus 71% in the fourth
guarter of 2002. This reduction from prior year was primarily due to the increase in our diversified customer base. While these customers
are contractually bound to purchase minimum amounts of our services each year, material defaults by us under the agreements or failure
by us to maintain the service level commitments could lead to reductions in the amount of services they purchase and/or termination of
the respective agresments. In addition, the contracts provide that a business downturn that negatively impacts either Reuters or Moneyline
could also Iead to a reduction of their respective obligations to purchase our services.

SAWIS' ravenue from Reuters was $82.7 million, $102.2 million, and $32.3 million in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. This decline
in 2003 resutted from the termination of service locations by Reuters resulting from customier losses and reduced pricing for certain serv-
ices. Likewise, these customer losses and reduced pricing has had a significant impact on Reuters’ revenue from their awn customers over
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the same period of time. Revenue earned from Reuters minimum revenue obligations in 2003 was $82.2 million. Reuters minimum revenue
obligations are $67.7 million, $42.9 millicn, and $18.1 million in 2004, 2005, and 2008, respectively. Furthermore, Reuters owns 51% of a
joint venture company which competes directly with SAVVIS and which was formed to be Reuters preferred network partner. Reuters could
migrate material business from SAVVIS 1o its joint-venture company which could materially reduce our revenues.

Moaneyline revenue was $54.4 million, $70.3 million, and $15.5 million in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. As in the case of
Reuters, this decline resulted from the termination of sarvice locations by Moneyline resulting from customer losses and reduced pricing
for certain services.

The loss of either of these customers or a significant group of our other customers, or a considerable reduction in the amount of
our services that either customer purchases or a significant group of our customers purchase, could materially reduce our revenues which,
1o the extent not offset by cost reductions or new customer additions, could materially reduce our cash flows and financial position. This
may limit our ability to raise capital or fund our operations, working capital needs and capital expenditures in the future.

We expect to continue to incur substantial net fosses.
We incurred a net loss of $94.0 million in 2003, achieved net income of $13.9 million in 2002 due to one-time gains on the extinguishment
of debt in the amount of $37.9 million, and incurred a net loss of $288.9 million in 2001. We had negative cash flows from cperating activi-
ties of $0.3 million, $45.0 million, and $41.9 million, in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. We expect to incur significant net losses at
least through 2004.
Our revenues and operating results are affected by a number of factors including the following:
¢ demand for and market acceptance of our data netwaorking, Internet access and hosting services;
* increasing sales, marketing and other operating expenses;
o the duration of the sales cycle for our services;
* the announcement of introduction of new or enhanced services by our competitors;
¢ changes in the prices we pay for local access connections, Internet cannectivity and longhaul backbone connections;
e the timing and magnitude of capital expenditures, including costs relating to the expansion of operatians.
Accordingly, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations should not be reiied upon as indications of
future performance. In addition, these factors may impact our long-term viability.
It is possible that in some future periods our results of operations may fall below the expectations of investors. In this event, the
price of our comman stack may fall.

We are controlled by parties whose interests may not be aligned with yours.

investment partnerships sponsored by Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe and their affiliates ["Welsh Carson”) own approximately 57%
of our outstanding vating stack as of December 31, 2003. The Welsh Carson affiliates currently have the right to appoint half of the mem-
bers of our Board of Directors. During 2002, in order to obtain additional funding for our operations, we issued $203.1 million of our 11.5%
Series A convertible preferred stock (the “Series A Preferred”), including $139.8 million to investment partnerships sponsored by, and indi-
viduals affiliated with Welsh Carson. The Series A Preferred accrues dividends at the rate of 11.5% annum on the outstanding accreted
value thereof and these accrued but unpaid dividends are added to the outstanding accreted value quarterty. The Series A Preferred is con-
vertible into such number of our common stock equal to the outstanding accreted value divided by the conversion price of $0.75, and votes
with our common stock on an as-converted basis. As of December 31, 2003, the accreted value of Welsh Carson Series A Preferred was
$169.7 million, which was convertible into approximately 226.3 million shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2003, including out-
standing common stock of approximately 15.4 million, Welsh Carson has outstanding vating stock representing a total of approximatety
241.7 million votes. In addition, subsequent to December 31, 2003, we issued warrants to Welsh Carson to purchase shares of our Series
B convertible Preferred Stock (the “Series B Preferred”) that were convertible into approximately 82.5 million shares of our comman stack
in conjunction with the financing of our proposed acquisition of the assets of CWA. The common stock issuable upon conversion of the
Series B Preferred will nat have been registered under the Securities Act and, therefore, may not be transferred or sald except pursuant
to an effective registration statement or pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. We granted
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Welsh Carson demand and piggy-back registration rights and we granted the other financing parties piggy-back registration rights only.
The warrants were exercised by Welsh Carson pursuant to a “cashless” exercise and, as a result, outstanding Series B Preferred held by
Welsh Carsan is convertible into approximately 41.7 million shares of our common stock. The Series B Preferred automatically converts
into comman shares upon SAVVIS stackhalder approval. In change of control situations, the halders of Series A Preferred are entitled to
premiums of up to 25% above the accreted value plus all unaccrued dividends scheduled to acerue through the fifth anniversary of the
original issuance date. These factors, among others, could result in decisions cancerning our operations or financial structure that may
present conflicts of interest between Weish Carson and its affiliates and our other common stockholders.

We have experienced revenue fosses from reductions in services by customers, price reductions on services and customer turnover
in the past and may centinue to do so in the future. If we continue to experience such revenue loss without a corresponding growth
in new customers or services, our business may be adversely affected.

Revenue lass occurs for several reasons, such as individual site reductions in customer netwaorks, price reductions, voluntary discannection
by customers who choose to switch to a competing service and termination for nonpayment of bills or abuse of the network. We have expe-
rienced revenue loss in the past and as our customer base grows these revenue losses may continue or even increase. If, in the future, we
were to lose a large number of customers without signing contracts with new customers, there could be an adverse impact on our business.

Our brand is not as well known as some of our competitors. Failure to develop brand recognition could hurt our ability to
compete effectively.

We need to strengthen our brand awareness to realize our strategic and financial abjectives. Many of our competitors have well-established
brands associated with the provision of data netwarking, Internet access, hosting services, managed voice and application services. The
promotion and enhancement of our brand also will depend in part an our success in continuing to provide high quality services. We cannot
assure you that we will be able to maintain or achieve these levels of quality.

We may not be able to meet the obligations under our service level agreements.

We have service level agreements with substantially all of our customers in which we provide various guarantees regarding our levels of
service. If we fail to provide the levels of service required by these agreements, our customers may be entitled to receive service credits
for their accounts and/or terminate their relationship with us. If Reuters, Moneyline or & significant number of other customers become
entitled to exercise, and do exercise, these rights, our revenues could be materially reduced.

We may not be able to meet the obligations under our agreement with GECC.

Our agreement with General Electric Capital Corparation (“GECC”) bears interest at a rate of 12%. We are not currently required to make
cash payments to repay the interest. However, beginning in January 2005, we will be required to repay the interest with cash on a monthly
basis. Our ability to make these interest payments and avoid defaulting on cur obligation is dependent on our ability to generate positive
cash flow.

We have incurred additional debt in conjunction with our proposed acquisition of the assets of CWA.

In order to finance our acquisition of the assets of CWA and to provide ongoing funding to its operations and capital expenditures, we have
issued $200.0 million in Series A subordinated notes to existing and new investors. Interest on the notes accrues at the rate of 12.5% dur-
ing the first 360 days and thereaftar at 15%. Interest is payable semi-annually in kind. The Notes are due an January 30, 2009. Additionally,
we will assume certain capital lease obligations of CWA and enter into new capital leases for the facilittes being acguired by DuPont
Fabros in conjunction with our acquisition of the CWA assets. As a result, our total debt, including existing and assumed capital lease obli-
gations, will be approximately $311.0 million, causing us to be considered highly leveraged.
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We may make acquisitions or enter inta joint ventures or strategic alliances, each of which is accompanied by inherent risks.
Additionally, we have acquired the assets of WAMINET's commercial business and assumed customers from Intel Online Services
which may continue to pose inherent risks to our business.
If appropriate opportunities present themselves, we may make acquisitions or investments or enter into joint ventures or strategic alliances
with other companies. Risks commonly encountered in such transactions include:
o the difficulty of assimilating the operations and persannel of the combined companies;
* the risk that we may not be able to integrate the acquired services, praducts or technologies with our current services, praducts
and technologies;
» the potential disruption of our ongoing business;
o the inability to retain key technical and managerial personnel;
¢ the inability of management to maximize our financial and strategic position through the successful integration of acquired businesses;
s increases in reported losses as a result of charges for in-process research and development and amortization other intangible assets;
* the adverse impact on our annual effective tax rate;
* difficulty in maintaining contrals, procedures and policies; and
o the impairment of relationships with employees, suppliers and customers as a result of any integration.
¢ losses of acquired base of customers and accompanying revenug.
* the assumption of leased facilities, which could result in excess space and to the extent that such leases could not be renegotiated or
subleased to cover the costs or new business expansion did not occur, they could have a material adverse impact on our profitability
and cash flow.

Our proposed acquisition of the assets of CWA will expose us to significant risks.

On January 22, 2004, we signed a definitive agreement to purchase substantially all the assets of CWA. The transaction has been approved
by the US Bankruptey Court but is subject to certain regulatory and customary closing conditions. We have committed to pay $155.0 mil-
lion in cash, assume certain working capital liabilities, and assume leases for 15 data centers and other facilities. Furthermore, in accor-
dance with the sale agreement, we are funding CWA's working capital losses from January 28, 2004 through the closing date of the
transaction {estimated to close in the first quarter of 2004}, which will be capitalized into the purchase price. Additionally, we entered into
an agreement to sell our rights at closing to acquire four of the CWA data centers and one office facility to DuPont Fabros Interssts LLC
for $52.0 million and lease those facilities back for 15 years. We expect our cash flow to be significantly impacted during the first nine
manths of integration. Furthermore, if the transaction fails to close by March 5, 2004, the transaction is subject to termination, which could
resuft in our losing the $5 milfion deposit and payments made to fund the working capital shortfall from January 28, 2004 through the clos-
ing date of the transaction. This may subject us to damage claims for breach of the transaction. fn addition, each of the risks enumerated
in the prior risk factor where we state that “[we] may make acquisitions or enter into joint ventures or strategic alliances, each of which
is accompanied by inherent risks” are inherent to this deal, and the occurrence of any one of which may have a material adverse effect on
our business.

We may have difficuity implementing in a timely manner the internal controls procedures necessary to allow our management to
report on the effectiveness of our internal controfs.

Pursuant to Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxliey, we will be required to furnish an internal controfs report of management's assessment of the
effectiveness of our internat controls as part of our Annuat Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. Qur auditors
will then be required to attest to, and report on, our assessment. In order to issue our report, our management must document both the
design for our internal controls and the testing processes that support management’s evaluation and conclusion. Qur management has

begun the necessary processes and procedures for issuing its report on our internal controls. However, if we are successful in completing
our propased acquisition of the assets of CWA, we will face significant challenges in implementing the required processes and pracedures
in our acquired operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to complete the work necessary for our management ta issue
its management report in a timely manner, or that management will be able to report that our internal controls over financiat reporting
are effective.
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We may be liable for the material that content providers distribute over our network.

The law relating to the liatility of private netwark operators far information carried on or disseminated through their netwarks is currently
unsettled. We may become subject to legal claims relating to the content disseminated on our network. For example, lawsuits may be
brought against us claiming that material on our network an which one of our customers relied was inaccurate. Claims could also involve
matters such as defamation, invasion of privacy and copyright infringement. Content providers operating private networks have been sued
in the past, sometimes successfully, based on the content of material. If we need to take costly measures to reduce our exposure to these
risks, or are required to defend ourselves against such claims, aur business could be adversely affected.

Failures in our network, including any breach of security, could disrupt our ability to provide our services, increase our capital costs,
result in a loss of customers or otherwise negatively impact our business.

Qur ability tc implement our business plan successfully depends upon our ability to provide high quality, reliable services. Interruptions in
our ability to provide our services ta our customers, through the occurrence of a natural disaster ar other unanticipated prablem, could
adversely affect our business and reputation. In addition, our network could be subject to unautharized access, computer viruses and other
disruptive problems caused by customers, emplayees or others. Unauthorized access, computer viruses or other disruptive prablems could
lead to interruptions, delays or cessation of service to our customers. Unauthorized access could also potentially jeopardize the security
of confidential information of our customers or our customers’ end-users, which might expose us ta liability and also deter potential cus-
tomers. We may be unable to implement disaster recovery or security measures in a timely manner or, if and when implemented, these
measures could be circumvented through the reoccurrence of a natural disaster or other unanticipated problem, or as a resutt of acciden-
tal or intentionat actions. Resolving network faitures or alleviating security problems may also require interruptions, delays or cessation
of service to our customers. Accordingly, network interruptions or breaches of security on our network may resutt in a ioss of customers,
liability and damage to aur reputation.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

We provide our services in a number of countries throughout the waorld, and as a result, are exposed to movements in foreign currency
exchange rates. Operations outside of the United States only account for 6% of revenues in 2003 and 1% of revenues in 2002 and 2001,
respectively. We expect these percentages to decrease in the periods ahead as our United States business base grows, especially with
the addition of CWA. Nevertheless, we have foreign exchange risk related to our foreign operations to the extent that revenues in fareign
currencies do not offset expenses in the same currencies. In the future, we may engage in hedging transactions to mitigate foreign exchange
risk. In terms of foreign currency translation risk, we are exposed primarily to the Euro and the British pound.

RISKS RELATED TQ OUR INDUSTRY
The markets for data networking, internet access and hosting are highly competitive, and we may not he able to compete effectively.
The markets for data networking, Internet access, hosting, and managed voice services are extremely competitive, and there are few sig-
nificant barriers to entry. We expect that competition will intensify in the future, and we may not have the financial resources, technical
expertise, sales and marketing abilities or support capabilities to compete suceessfully in these markets. Many of our existing competi-
tars have greater market presence, engineering and marketing capabilities and financial, technological and personnel resources than we
do. As a result, as compared to us, our competitors may:
* develop and expand their networking infrastructures and service offerings more efficiently or more quickly;
* adapt more rapidly to new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements;
* take advantage of acquisitions and other opportunities more effectively;
* develop praducts and services that are superior to ours or have greater market acceptance;
* adopt more aggressive pricing palicies and devote greater resources to the promotion, marketing, sale, research and development of
their products and services;
¢ make more attractive offers to our existing and potential employees;
* ostablish cooperative relationships with each other or with third parties; and
¢ more effectively take advantage of existing relationships with customars or exploit a mare widely recognized brand name to market
and sell their services.
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Examples of our competitors in the traditional telecommunications companies category include AT&T, Equant, MCI, Qwest, and Sprint.
Large scale systems integration companies competing with our services include IBM, EDS, and Accenture. Companies competing
against us in the hosted voice providers categary include Independent Local Exchange Carriers such as SBC and Verizon; Voice Service
Provider such as Masergy and GoBeam; IntereXchange Carriers such as MC), Sprint, and AT&T; and hardware manufacturers such as
Cisco and Avaya.

SAVVIS may have fo compete with an increased number of competitors.

We sxpect that new competitors will enter the data networking, Internet access and hasting markets. Such new competitors could include
computer hardware, software, media and ather technology and telecommunications companies, as well as satellite and cable companies.
A number of telecommunications companies and online service providers currently offer, or have announced plans to offer or expand, their
data networking services. Further, the ability of some of these potential competitors to bundle other services and products with their data
networking services could place us at a competitive disadvantage. Various companies are also exploring the possibility of providing, or are
currently providing, high-speed data services using alternative delivery methads, including the cable television infrastructure, direct broad-
cast satellites, all optical networks, gigabit ethernet, wireless cable and wireless local access. In addition, Internet backbone providers
may benefit from technological developments, such as improved router technology, that will enhance the quality of their services. Many
RBOCs are also obtaining authority to provide inter-LATA services, and thereby competing directly with data service providers, such as
SAVVIS. In 2003, the FCC through its UNE-P proceeding changed the requirements concerning the pravision by ILEC's of an unbundled net-
work element platform to competitors at discounted rates. Because we purchase telecommunications services from local competitors, this
may result in decreased local competition and increased costs for purchasers of local telecommunications services such as SAVIS, and
thus increased prices to our customer.

Our faifure to achieve desired price ievels could impact our ability to achieve profitability or positive cash flow.

We expect competition and other factars to continue to cause pricing pressure in the markets we serve. Prices for IP VPN's and Internet
access and services have decreased significantly in recent years, and we expect significant price declines in the future. In addition, by
bundling their services and reducing the overall cost of their services, telecommunications companies that compete with us may be able
to provide customers with reduced communications costs in connection with their data networking, Internet access or hosting services,
thereby significantly increasing pricing pressure on us. We may not be able to offset the effects of any such price reductions even with an
increase in the number af our customers, higher revenues from enhanced services, cost reductions or otherwise. In addition, we believe
that the data networking and VPN's and Internet access and hosting industries are likely to continug to encounter consolidation in the
future. Increased price competition or consolidation in these markets could result in erasion of our revenues and operating margins and
could prevent us from becoming profitable.

New technologies could displace our services or render them olisolete.

New technologies or industry standards have the potential to replace or provide lower cost alternatives to our Internet access services,
data networking and hosting services. The adoption of such new technologies or industry standards could render these services obsolete
or unmarketabie. For example, these services rely on the continued widespread commercial use of the set of protocals, services and appli-
cations for linking computers known as Internet protocol. Atternative sets of protocols, services and applications for linking computers
could emerge and become widely adapted. Impravements in Internet protocol could emerge that would allow for the assignment of priori-
ties to data packets in order to ensure their delivery in the manner customers prefer, as well as other improvements, which could elimi-
nate one advantage of the ATM architecture of our network. We cannot guarantee that we will be able to identify new service opportunities
successfully and develop and bring new products and services to market in a timely and cost-effective manner, or that products software
and services or technologies developed by others will nat render aur current and future services non-competitive or absolete. In addition,
we cannot assure you that our current and future services will achieve or sustain market acceptance or be able to address effectively the
compatibility and interoperability issues raised by technological changes or new industry standards. If we fail to anticipate the emergence
of, or obtain access to a new technalogy or industry standard, we may incur increased costs if we seek to use those technologies and stan-
dards, or our competitors that use such technologies and standards may use them more cost-effectively than we do. Additionally, due to
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capital constraining covenants within our agreement with GECC, we may not be able to purchase these new technologies mentioned above,
which could also displace our services or render them obsolete.

The data networking and internet access industries are highly regulated in many of the countries in which we plan to pravide serv-
ices, which could restrict our ability to conduct business internationally.

We are subject to varying degrees of regulation in each of the jurisdictions in which we provide services. Local laws and regulations, and
their interpretation and enforcement, differ significantly among those jurisdictions. Future regulatory, judicial and legislative changes may
have a material adverse effect on our ability to deliver services within various jurisdictions. National regulatory framewaorks that are con-
sistent with the policies and requirements of the World Trade Organization have only recently been, or are still being put in place in many
countries. Accardingly, many countries are still in the early stages of providing for and adapting to a liberalized telecommunications market.
As a result, in these markets, we may encounter more protracted and difficult procedures to obtain licenses and negotiate interconnection
agreements. In addition, many countries have attempted to regulate Internet telepheny and voice-over-Internet protocol {collectively, "VOIP")
as they do traditional basic telephony and the European Union has taken a more restrictive view on these services than the United States.
Within the United States, various proceedings at the state and federal level are underway to address how to classify this emerging tech-
nology. Specifically, VOIP communications which meet certain conditions could be regarded as voice telephony and subject to regulation.
Such policies may complicate or delay efforts we may wish to undertake to roff out VOIP services globally.

Our operations are dependent on licenses and authorizations from gavernmental autharities in most of the fareign jurisdictions in
which we operate or plan to operate and, with respect to a limited number of our services, in the United States. These licenses and author-
izations generalty will contain clauses pursuant to which we may be fined or our ficense may be revoked on short notice. Consequently,
we may not be able to abtain or retain the licenses necessary for our gperations.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMMON STOCK

A significant number of our investors have registration rights and the Bridge estate has the obligation to distribute its holdings of
SAVVIS common stock to its secured creditors if requested. This could reduce our stock price and impair our ability to raise funds
in new stock offerings.

We have approximately 101.4 million shares of common stock outstanding as of February 18, 2004. Additionally, as of December 31, 2003
we have approximately 328.5 million comman shares issuable pursuant ta the conversion of our Series A Preferred and approximately
22.7 million shares of common stock issuable pursuant to the exercise of outstanding warrants. Furthermore, in conjunction with the
financing of our CWA acquisition, we have issued warrants to purchase Series B Preferred which were initially convertible into approxi-
mately 129.4 million shares of aur comman stock. The common stack issuable upon canversion of the Series B Preferred will not have
been registered under the Securities Act and, therefore, may nat be transferred or sold except pursuant to an effective registration state-
ment or pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. We granted Welsh Carson demand and piggy-
back registration rights and we granted the other financing parties piggy-back registration rights only. The warrants were exercised on a
“cashless” basis and, as a result, the outstanding Series B Preferred is convertible into approximately 65.5 million shares af camman stack.
The Series B Preferred automatically converts into common shares upon SAVVIS stockholder approval. On a fully diluted basis including
warrants and stock options, shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of our Series A Preferred represent 67% of our outstand-
ing fully diluted shares. The halders of aur preferred stack and the warrants are entitled ta certain registration rights. Additionally, the
administrator in charge of the Bridge estate, in connection with Bridge creditors, has the obligation to distribute approximately 45.5 mil-
lion shares of SAVVIS" commaon stock to its secured creditors if they request it, all of which will be freely tradabie. Sales of substantial
amounts of shares of our common stack in the public market, or the perception that those sales will occur, could cause the market price
of our common stack to decline. Those sales also might make it more difficult for us to sell equity and equity-related securities in the future
atatime and at a price that we consider appropriate.
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Our stockholders have suffered significant difution.

Since our initial public offering in February 2000, we have issued securities that are convertible or exercisable into a significant number
of shares of our common stock at prices far below are initial public offering price. In 2002, as part of our recapitalization, we issued
$203.1 million of Series A Preferred. The Series A Preferred accrues dividends at the rate of 11.5% annum on the outstanding accreted
value thereof and these accrued but unpaid dividends are added to the outstanding accreted value quarterly. The Series A Preferred is
convertible into such number of our common stock equal to the outstanding accreted value divided by the conversion price of $0.75 per
share, and votes with our commen stack on an as-converted basis. As of December 31, 2003, the accreted value of all Series A Preferred
was $246.4 miltion, which is convertible into approximately 328.5 million shares of common stock. In 2002, also in connection with are
recapitalization, we issued warrants ta purchase 16.1 million shares of our commaon stock with an exercise price of $0.75. Alsg in 2002,
we issued warrants to purchase 10.0 million shares of our common stock with an exercise price of $0.75 of which approximately 3.3 mil-
lion have been exercised and approximately 6.7 million are subject to vesting. In addition, subsequent to December 31, 2003, we issued
warrants to purchase shares of our Series B convertible Preferred Stack that were initially convertible into approximately 129.4 mitlion
shares of our comman stock at $1.63 per comman share in conjunction with the financing of our proposed acquisition of the assets of
CWA. The common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B Preferred will not have been registered under the Securities Act and,
therefore, may not be transferred or sold except pursuant to an effective registration statement or pursuant to an exemption from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act. We granted Welsh Carson demand and piggy-back registration rights and we granted
the other financing parties piggy-back registration rights only.

Our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and Delaware law contain provisions that could discourage a takeover.
Our certificate of incorporation and Delaware law contain provisions which may make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us, includ-
ing provisions that give the board of directors the power to issue shares of preferred stock.

We have also chosen to be subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which prevents a stockholder of more
than 15% of a company's voting stock from entering into business combinations set forth under Section 203 with that company.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Qur corporate headquarters is located in Town & Country, outside of St. Louis, Missouri, and consists of a 156,000 square foot facility,
whase lease is set to expire in 2017. Our second largest office is located in Herndan, Virginia, and consists of an 81,000 square foot facil-
ity with a ten year lease set to expire in 2010. Excluding these offices, we lease approximately 350,000 square feet of facilities for gur
sales offices, network equipment, and data centers in multiple metropolitan areas in the United States, as well as in various foreign cities,
including London, Singapare, and Tokyo.

We beligve that our existing facilities are adequate for our current needs and that suitable additional or alternative space will be
available in the future on commercially reasanable terms as needed.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is subject to variaus legal proceedings and actions arising in the narmal course of its business. While the results of such
proceedings and actions cannot be predicted, management belisves, based on facts known to management today, that the ultimate out-
come of such proceedings and actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial pasition or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to security holders for a vote during the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2003.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(A} MARKET INFORMATION

Our common stock, $0.01 par vaiue per share, is traded on the Nasdaq SmaliCap Market under the symbal “SWVS.” Prior to June 24, 2002,
our common stock was traded on the Nasdag National Market. The following table lists, on a per share basis for the periods indicated,
the high and low closing sale prices for the common stock as reported by Nasdag.

QUARTER ENDED HIGH Low
March 31, 2003 $0.52 $0.39
June 30, 2003 0.95 0.40
September 30, 2003 1.65 0.90
December 31, 2003 1.69 114
March 31, 2002 $1.31 $0.56
June 30, 2002 0.82 0.51
September 30, 2002 0.58 0.37
December 31, 2002 0.68 0.30

(B) HOLDERS
As of February 19, 2004, there were approximately 1,021 holders of record of our common stock.

(C) DIVIDENDS

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock since our inception. We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our
common stock in the foreseeable future. We anticipate we will retain any earnings for use in our operations and the expansion of our busi-
ness. In addition, we are restricted from paying dividends by the terms of our financing arrangements.

(D} SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER EQUITY COMPENSATION

Reference is made to the information set forth under the caption “Equity Compensation Plan Information” appearing in the proxy state-
ment to be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following information should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations,” "Business,” and our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this report. We derived the
selected historical consolidated financial data presented below from our audited consolidated financial statements. We commenced busi-
ness in 1996.

SUCCESSOR® PREDECESSOR™!

PERIOD FROM PERIQD FROM

YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED APRIL?TO  JANUARY 1

DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER21,  DECEMBER31, DECEMBER3!, DECEMBER31,  TOAPRILE,

{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 2003 2002 2000 2000 1999 1999

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA

Total revenues $252871  $236,004  $242795 $186324  §18548  $5440
Loss from operations (86,577) (70,152) {263,675} (160,649) (37.315) (7.940)
Income/(loss) from operations before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle® (94,033) 186,704 (288,896) (164,851) (38,617) (8,075)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle® — {2,772) — — — -

Basic and diluted loss per common share before
cumulative effect of change in accounting principle™  $§ {1.34) § (062) § (3100 $ {189 § (054) $(014)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle® — (0.03) — — — —
Basic and diluted loss per common sharg™? $ (134) § (085 $ (3100 $ (183 § (054) $(0.14)
OTHER FINANCIAL DATA

Net cash used in operating activities $ (285) $(44968) 3 (41,906) $(79.800) $(18273)  §(6,185)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities 13,058 {5,669) (24,085) (153.193) (837) (275)

Net cash provided by/{used in) financing activities $(15799) $ 70816 $ 48204 $262835 $21383  $4,533

SUCCESSOR™!

DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER3, DECEMBER31, DECEMBER3), DECEMBERS3I,
{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
BALANCE SHEET DATA
Total assets $124623  $196,474  $255784  $438,822 $39,296
Notes payable — — 170,403 100,084 —
Capital lease obligations 56,902 65,149 85,775 76,436 5,833
Other ong-term obligations 19,248 10411 18,634 8,146 —

(1) Includes gains on extinguishment of debt in the amount of $37.9 million for the year ended 2002 resulting from the recapitalization of the Company
in March 2002 and the Winstar settlement in November 2002.

{2) Reflects a goodwill impairment charge of $2.8 million taken in the first quarter of 2002.

(3)  On April 7, 1999, Bridge acquired all our equity securities and accounted for this acquisition as a purchase transaction. Since the purchase transac-
tion resulted in our Company becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bridge, SEC rules required us to establish a new basis of accounting for the pur-
chased assets and liabilities. The accounting for the purchase transaction has bgen “pushed down” to the financial statements of SAVVIS, Therefore,
the purchase price has been allocated to the underlying assets purchased and liabilities assumed based on the estimated fair market values of these
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date. As a result of the application of fair value accounting, intangibles, goodwill, other liabilities and stock-
holders’ {deficit) equity were increased in the SAVVIS consolidated balance sheet. The consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 1999,
2000, 2001, 2002, and 2003 and the consolidated statement of operations data for the period fram April 7, 1993 through December 31, 1989 and the
years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002, and 2003 reflect our acquisition by Bridge and are labeled "Successar.” The financial data for the peri-
ods prior to the acquisition are labeled “Predecessor.”
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following discussion contains, in addition to historical information, forward-looking statements within the meaning of the private secu-
rities litigation reform act of 1995 that invalve risks and uncertainties. Qur actual results may differ materially from the results discussed
in the forward-looking statements. You should read the following discussion together with our consolidated financial statements and the
related notes to those financial statements that are included in Part IV, Item 15 of this form 10-K, beginning on page 52 of this report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
SAWIS is a global managed services provider, delivering integrated business solutions and mission-critical IP applications for a diverse
mix of industries. SAVVIS can offer its customers cutting edge technology at an affordable price because its virtualized network and host-
ing infrastructure was built to support real-time IP applications worldwide.

The following briefly describes SAVVIS' core utility and application service offerings.

Core Utility Services

MANAGED NETWORK SERVICES

SAVVIS offers three sets of network services: Private IP VPNs, Internet, and Managed Voice. These services tan be purchased individually
or in combination with other SAVVIS services. The netwark portfolio emphasizes high performance and availability, end-to-end manage-
ment and monitoring, any-to-any connectivity, security, and cost effectiveness.

IP VPN (“Managed IP VPN"). SAVVIS' private IP VPN, called Intelligent IP Networking™, is a high performance network platform
for a client’s managed voice, videa, and data applications. The unique architecture of Intelligent IP allows SAVVIS 1o deliver netwark solu-
tions that combine the reliability, performance and security of private netwaorks with the scalability and flexibility of the Internet.

Internet Access. SAWVIS provides Internet Access services on @ managed or unmanaged basis. The managed offering includes all
eguipment, instaliation and technical support to deliver the service; in-network services such as security are also available. The SAVVIS
Internet service is designed for businesses that run mission critical applications over the Internet. SAVVIS offers its customers a wide
range of scalable Internet access methods ranging from DSL through OC-3 and Ethernet access. SAVVIS is also able to include Internet
service as part of a private IP VPN salution so that a company can use a private network ta connect its offices, and the Internet to reach
it customers ar partners.

Managed Voice. In the third quarter of 2003 SAVVIS, along with its partner Accessline, launched a managed voice services prod-
uct family, which included services such as conferencing, find me/follow me access, 1-800, and automated voice response as well as
integration with our managed VPN voice service currently under development. These fully managed, network-based [P-voice solutions
are designed to assist IT organizations improve total cost of ownership, enhance employee productivity and reduce monthly costs by cap-
italizing on the benefits associated with converged access of voice and data services. No revenue from Managed Voice services was rac-
ognized in 2003.

HOSTING SERVICES
Hosting services from SAVVIS are sold under the Intelligent Hosting™ brand name. Intelligent Hosting solutions include the full manage-
ment of customer hardware, operating systems, and servers within a secure, reliable data center environment. By selecting SAVVIS to out-
source their applications infrastructure, clients eliminate most up-front capital expenditures for equipment, reduce the ongoing expense
of supporting computing environments, and can focus on building differentiating services and applications. The SAVVIS Command Center
provides clients full visibility into their hosted environments, giving them greater control and oversight over their systems than is typically
found with an in-house solution.

SAVVIS manages a total of more than 7,500 servers for Intelligent Hosting customers in its data center facilities located in
St. Louis, San Francisca, Santa Clara, Northern Virginia, London, Tokyo and Singapore. Traffic is distributed aver SAVVIS' highly rated
internet backbone or via a private network solution developed to meet the customer’s Intranet or Extranet requirements. Through
the Intelligent Hosting product set, SAVVIS can satisfy complex hosting needs with its tailored ‘a la carte’ service offering or provide
pre-packaged “Fast Pack” solutions designed to support web, enterprise and database applications.
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Application Services

WAMINET Media Services. In August, Z003 SAVVIS entered into an asset purchase agreement with WAMINET, a leading giobal provider
of content management and delivery services. The integration of application services from WAM!INET and SAWIS, along with SAVVIS'
global infrastructure, resulted in the creation of WAMINET Media Services. This suite of services, designed for the SAVVIS application
services for the media industry provide a shared-managed infrastructure tied to applications that streamline process and warkflow around
the creation, production and distribution of digital content for media industries. These services help companies to manage, share, store,
and distribute their digital content inside of their organization, and throughout supply chains outside of their enterprise through a single
access point and a single system.

With an open and scalable infrastructure, SAVVIS media application services enable customers to easily plug into a collaborative
workflow and connect ta their global communities of interest easily. Media customers can gain considerable productivity, time-to-market,
and cost-saving benefits while eliminating time-intensive and costly analeg steps in their workflows, IT management and maintenance
requirements, and technology absolescence that are generally associated with simple software utilities or proprietary networks. Revenue
from WAM!NET Media services is included with our Managed IP VPN revenue.

Data Delivery Utifity. \n December, 2003 SAVVIS announced a partnership with HyperFeed, a developer of ticker plant technology,
software and managed services for the financial markets, to Jaunch Data Delivery Utility, a global network distribution sesvice for financial
applications and content. In addition, the new service offers end-to-end Service Level Agreements (SLAs) that guarantee netwaork perform-
ance. SAVVIS has the exclusive rights to distribute the Data Delivery Utility worldwide.

SAWIS Data Delivery Utility seamlessly integrates HyperFeed's managed services and software with SAVIS' global infrastructure
and management and monitoring systems. This combination allows the industry to "plug inta” a high-performance, yet turnkey utility serv-
ice for the normalization, data-basing, integration and transmission of high performance, real-time direct data sources. This service is designed
for exchanges, financial institutions, content providers, and applications developers with needs for the consumption and transmission of
real-time, directly sourced financial information. No revenue from Data Delivery Utility services was recognized in 2003.

We commenced business in 1996 and have grown our customer base to approximately 3,600 as of December 31, 2003. From
December 31, 2002, our customer count has grown by approximately 1,700 customers with Reuters Limited {together with all affiliates,
“Reuters”} and Maneyline Telerate {“Moneyline”} each representing a single customer.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We have identified the accounting palicies below as critical to our business operations and to the understanding of our results of opera-
tions and financial position. For a detailed discussion on the application of these and other accounting policies, see Note 2 in the Nates
to the Consclidated Financial Statements in Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Note that our preparation of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of con-
tingent liabilities at the date of our financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
There can be na assurance that actual results will not differ from those estimates.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets. Management evaluates the recoverability of our long-lived assets under the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” {"SFAS 1447}, SFAS 144
requires us to review for impairment our long-lived assets, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset might not be recoverable and exceads its fair value.

Significant factors, which would trigger an impairment review, include the following:

 significant negative industry trends,

¢ significant changes in technology,

* significant underutilization of assets, and

e significant changes in how assets are used or are planned to be used.

When such an event occurs, management estimates the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its
eventual disposition. These impairment svaluations involve estimates of asset useful lives and future cash flows. If the undiscounted
expected future cash flows are less than the carrying amaunt of the asset and the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value, an
impairment loss is recognized. Management utilizes an expected present value technique, which uses a risk-free rate and multiple cash
flow scenarios reflecting the range of possible outcomes, to estimate fair value of the asset. Actual useful lives and cash flows could
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differ from those estimated by management using these techniques, which could have a material affect on our results of operations and
financial position.

There were no asset impairment charges in 2003; however, our restructuring charges totaled $7.9 miflion refated to a previously
vacated facility lease for which we revised our estimated liability to encompass the remaining minimum lease payments throughout the
full term of the lease which expires in March 2011, During 2002 and 2001, we recognized asset impairment charges of $4.7 million and
$89.6 million, respectively, primarily related to equipment with carrying value above its estimated fair market value.

Intangsbles. Management accounts for the commercial customer contracts acquired in the WAMINET transaction in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142"}, The commercial cus-
tomer contracts acquired are valued in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as an asset purchase at an amount which reflects
the allocation of the estimatad purchase price (which will be finalized in April 2004) based on their estimated fair value relative to the esti-
mated fair value of the other assets received, plus the incremental direct costs incurred in effecting the transaction.

Based on our evaluation of the useful life of the existing customer contracts, probability of renewals and projected cash flows frgm
these customers, the assets are being amortized over a 3-year life. SFAS 142 requires management to evaluate the remaining useful life
of the customer cantracts each reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining periad
of amortization. If the estimate of the customer contracts’ remaining useful life changes, the remaining carrying amount is amortized
prospectively over that revised remaining useful life. Actual useful lives could differ from these estimated by management, which could
have a material affect on our operating results and financial position.

Management also assesses the customer contract intangible assets for impairment losses in accordance with SFAS 144, consis-
tent with the policies discussed above in “Valuation of Long-Lived Assets.”

Revenue Recognition. Revenues consist primarily of Managed IP VPN networks, Hosting and Internet Access Service fees, which
are fixed manthly amounts, and ere recognized in the financial statements when earned over the life of the contract. Installation fee reve-
nue and the associated installation costs are deferred in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 104, "Revenue Recognition” {“SAB 104"). Such deferred revenue and costs are recognized into Revenue and Data Communications
and Operations costs in the Consolidated Statements of Operations on a straight-line basis over periods of 18 manths, the estimated aver-
age life of a customer contract. For all periods, any services billed and payments received in advance of providing services are deferred
unti the period such services are earned. Revenues for estimated credits to be issued are recorded as contra-revenue based on historical
credits issued and known disputes.

Amounts paid by Reuters in 2003 related to the buy-down of portions of their minimum revenue commitments have been accounted
for as deferred revenue, and wilt be recognized into revenue over the life of the network services agreement.

Allewance for Doubtful Accounts. We continuously manitor collections from our customers and maintain a provision for estimated
credit losses based upan historical experience and specific customer information; we generally do not require customer deposits or cal-
lateral. There is no guarantee that we will continue to experience the same credit loss history in future periods. If a significant change in
the liquidity or financial condition of a large customer or group of customers were to aceur, it could have a material adverse affect on the
collectibility of accounts receivable and future gperating results.

Data Communication Costs. In the ordinary course of business, invoices from our communications service providers will exceed
the services we have actually taken from them. Qur practice is to identify these variances and engage in discussions with the vendors to
resolve the differences. We maintain accruals for our best estimate of the difference between what we have previously paid the vendar
and the amount that will ultimately be paid 1o them. Purchased communications services are our largest cost item. Variations in this accrual
may have a material impact on our results of operations.

Employee Stock Options. As permitted under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stack-Based
Compensation,” (“SFAS 123") we account for emplayee stock options in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” {"APB 25”). Under APB 25, we recognize compensation cost based on the intrinsic value of
the equity instrument awarded as determined at the measurement date. Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure,” we are required to provide expanded disclosures concerning
stock-based compensation. New accounting standards may be promulgated which would require us to expense employee stock options
at fair value, which could have a material impact on our results of operations.
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Accounting for Income Taxes. We have provided a full valuation allowance on tax loss carry-forwards and other potential tax bene-
fits according to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” As a result, to the extent that we
realize those benefits in future periods, they will favorably impact net income. At December 31, 2003, the Company has approximately
$390.0 miltion in United States net operating loss carry-forwards expiring between 2011 and 2023, of which $247.5 million is subject to
the Section 382 fimitation of the [nternal Revenue Code.

AGREEMENTS AND TRANSACTIONS

Reuters Agreements. On September 28, 2001 Reuters acquired a portion of the assets of Bridge. In connection with the asset acquisition,
Reuters entered into a network services agreement with us, pursuant to which we agreed to provide continuing network services to the
Bridge customers acquired by Reuters as well as Internet access, and colocation sarvices for a period of five years. The network services
agreement provides that our network must perform in accordance with specific quality of service standards. In the event we do not meet
the required quality of service leve!ls, Reuters would be entitled to credits, and, in the event of a material breach of such quality of
service levels, Reuters would be entitled to terminate the network services agreement. We have recognized revenue of $82.7 million,
$102.2 miflion and $32.3 million during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, from RBeuters under the network services agreement, as amended.
Revenue earned from Reuters minimum revenue obligations in 2003 was $82.2 millien. Reuters minimum revenue obligations are
$67.7 million, $42.9 million, and $18.1 million in 2004, 2005, and 20086, respectively.

As a result of the netwaork services agreement, Reuters is our largest customer. We have $0.2 million and $10.5 million of receiv-
ables due from Reuters related to the network services agreement for the years ended 2003 and 2002, respectively. In connection with the
network services agreement, we also entered into a transitional services agreement with Reuters, pursuant to which Reuters has agreed to
provide us with technical, administrative and other services, including help desk support, installation, maintenance and repair of equipment,
customer related services such as processing service orders, accounting functions and the provision of warehousing and other facilities,
pending establishment of aur own capabilities. For the year ended December 31, 2002, we paid Reuters $5.6 miftion with respect to the
transitional services agreement. SAVVIS has since internalized these technical and administrative functions. Accordingly, no such expenses
were incurred in 2003.

On July 28, 2003, we entered into an agreement with Reuters whereby we sold our data center located in Hazelwood, Missouri,
entered into a lease agreement for approximately one-third of the data center for five years with a five year renewal option, and allowed
Reuters to buy-down a partion of its minimum revenue commitments under the existing netwaork services agreement. Furthermare, under
the arrangement Reuters agreed to purchase from SAVVIS new services which may be required in the future by Reuters but not originally
contemplated under the network services agreement provided SAVVIS” bid to provide such service proposes terms equivalent to compet-
ing bids, material service level breaches by SAVVIS have not repeatedly arisen at that time, and Reuters is not contractually bound to
purchase such services from other providers.

As of December 31, 2003, Reuters owns approximately 16% of our voting stock.

Moneyline Telerate Agreement. In Octaber 2002, we entered into a seven year Master Services Agreement {"MSA”) with Moneyline
Telerate that replaced a binding letter of intent dated October 18, 2001. Under the MSA, SAWIS is Moneyting's exclusive netwark supplier
and provides services including network services, calocation, help desk, warehousing and logistics, field installation and repair services. We
have recognized revenue of $54.4 million, $70.3 million and $15.5 million during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, from Moneyline Telerate
under the MSA, as amended.

WAMINET Transaction. On August 1, 2003, we entered into an asset purchase agreement with WAMINET, a leading global provider
of content management and delivery services, to acquire certain assets related to its commercial business apsrations including their com-
mercial customer contracts and related customer premise and other equipment. Under the terms of the agreement we made an initial pay-
ment of $3.0 million for the acquired assets and accrued an additional $4.6 million in current liabilities for the estimated earn-out which will
be determined in April 2004 and paid in nine equal monthly installments. SAVVIS has the option to pay the earn-out in cash or a combina-
tion of cash and up to one-half of the total purchase price in SAVVIS common stock. The final payment amount will be determined based on
revenue performance of the acguired customers. The estimated purchase price has been allocated to property and equipment and customer
contracts based on their relative fair values. Revenue from the customers acquired from WAMINET from August 1, 2003 (purchase date)
through December 31, 2003 was $10.4 mitlion.
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Preferred Stock and Other Transactions. During 2002 we issued Series A convertible preferred stock (the “Preferred”} to entities
and individuals affiliated with Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe {“Welsh Carsan”) and Reuters in the amount of $180.7 million and
Constellation Ventures in the amount of $20.0 million, respectively. Additionally, we issued Preferred of $2.4 million in satisfaction of cer-
tain vendor cbligations. The Preferred accrues dividends at the rate of 11.5% per annum on the outstanding accreted value thereof {ini-
tially $1,000 per share) through March 18, 2010. Thereafter, dividends will be payable in cash or in kind at our option. Accrued but unpaid
dividends will be added to the outstanding accreted value quarterly. The Preferred is convertible into such number of our common stock
equal to the outstanding accreted value divided by the conversion price, $0.75. In connection with this transaction we granted the hold-
ers registration rights with respact to the shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of the Preferred, including demand regis-
tration rights and piggy back registration rights. Additicnally, we incurred $3.0 million in offering casts related to the issuance of the 203,070
shares of Preferred which was recorded as a reduction of the convertible preferred stock balance in Stockholders' {Deficit} Equity in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In June 2002, we issued five-year performance warrants to Constellation Ventures to acquire shares of comman stock at $0.75 per
share, which vest, or become exercisable, upon meeting certain criteria related to aiding us in winning new business. During November
2003, Constellation Ventures met the performance criteria under the warrants for the first of three tranches causing ane-third, or 3.3 mil-
lion warrants to vest resulting in non-cash equity based compensation expense of $3.4 million. When management estimates that
Constellation Ventures will meet the performance criteria for the vesting of their remaining unvested 6.7 million warrants, we will record
a charge based on the fair value of the warrants at that time as calculated using the Black-Scholes model and current market and com-
pany assumptions.

In 2001, Welsh Carson and Reuters purchased $20.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 10% convertible senior secured
notes due 2006 and $37.5 million aggregate principal amount of our 12% convertible senior secured notes due 2005, respectively. All of
the outstanding principal and accrued interest on these notes was exchanged for Preferred in 2002. Additionally, we alsa granted Reuters
and its successors, assignees and affiliates the right, for so tong as they hold any of our notes, preferred stock or common stock compris-
ing or convertible into at least 5% of our outstanding voting stock, among other things, to{1) designate an observer to attend all meetings
of our board of directors or any board committees, and (2) to nominate and elect such number of directars, but not fewer than one, equal
to the product of the percentage of the voting power held by Reuters on a fully-diluted, as-converted basis, multiplied by the number of
seats on the registrant’s board of directors {rounded down tc the nearest whole number). In accordance with the terms of this letter, Reuters
has appointed an abserver to attend all meetings of our board of directors and audit cammittee meetings.

Bridge Transactions. In connection with Bridge's acguisition of SAVVIS in April 1999, Bridge funded our operations during 1999
and up through February 18, 2000, the date of SAVWVIS' initial public offering. In February 2000, we entered into several agreements with
Bridge related to the acquisition of its IP network assets, the provision of network services to Bridge and the provision of technical and
administrative support services to SAVVIS. As a result, Bridge was our largest customer, accounting for approximately 81% and 58% of
revenues, in 2000 and 2001, respectively.

In February 2002, we entered into an agresment that resolved substantially all of the netwark services receivables fram, and note
and accrued interest payable to Bridge. Under the agreement, we agreed to pay Bridge $11.9 million in satisfaction of $27.5 million rep-
resenting all amounts due to Bridge. SAVVIS also agreed not to pursue the collection of $18.7 million of pre-petition receivables owed to
it by Bridge and to assign to Bridge any claims it had against other Bridge entities with the exception of Bridge Canada where we retained
the right to receive a pro-rata distribution of assets from the liquidation of Bridge Canada, which were collected in 2003. All amounts due
to SAVVIS under the settlament agreement were paid in March 2002. In connection with the settlement, we agreed to provide Bridge one
Board representative far a term ending on the earlier of: (a} three years; (b} the date upon which Bridge's awnership of SAWVIS autstand-
ing voting stock falls below 20%; or {c) the date upon which the SAVVIS shares held by Bridge are distributed to its creditors. Bridge has
appointed an observer to attend all meetings of our board of directors. We eamed $2.5 million in revenues from transactions with Bridge
during 2002 primarily for services rendered under the Bridge Network Services Agreement. This amount represented approximately 1% of
our revenue for 2002. There was no revenue from Bridge in 2003.
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STATEMENT OF GPERATIONS CAPTION SUMMARY

Aevenue. Qur revenue is derived primarily from the sale of Managed IP VPN, Hosting and Internet Access Services. Revenue from related
parties, Reuters and Bridge (only in 2001 and 2002] was approximately 33%, 44%, and 63% for 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively, of our
total revenue. For the fourth quarter of 2003, related party revenue was 28% of our total revenue. We expect our revenues from related
parties to decrease as a percentage of our total revenues as we expand our diversified customer base.

We charge an initial installation fee that typically equals ane month's revenue and a fixed monthly fee that varies depending on
the services provided, the bandwidth used and the quality of service fevel chosen. Our customer contracts are typically for 12 to 36 months
in length. Installation fees are recognized as revenue over 18 months, the estimated average life of customer contracts.

Prices for telecommunication services, including the services we offer, have decreased significantly over the past several years
and we expect this trend to continue for the foreseeable future.

Data Communications and Operations. Data communications and operations expenses include the cost of:

¢ leasing local access lines to connect customers to our points of presence (“PoPs");

* leasing backbone circuits to interconnect our PoPs;

e rental costs, utilities, and ather operating costs for hosting space;

¢ salaries and related benefits for engineering, service delivery/provisioning, customer service, and operations personngl, whe maintain
our network, monitor network performance, resolve service fauits, and install new sites; and

» gther related repairs and maintenance items.

Data communications and operations expense have decreased annually as a percentage of revenue from 2000, the year of our IPQ,
as we expand our customer base leveraging our netwaork infrastructure and continue 10 negotiate unit price reductions with our vendors.

Sales, General and Administrative. These expenses include the cost of:

* sales and marketing salaries and related benefits;

* product management, pricing and support, salaries and refated benefits;

* sales commissions and referral payments;

e advertising, direct marketing and trade shows;

® gccupancy costs;

 executive, financial, legal, tax and administrative support personnel and related costs;
¢ professional services, including legal, accounting, tax and consulting services; and

* bad debt expense.

These expenses are expected to continue to increase as we continue to add sales personnel, increase our marketing initiatives to
support the expansion of our customer base, and add to our support personnel, infrastructure and back office systems, as the business
continues to grow.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense consists primarily of the depreciation and amortization of
communications equipment, capital leases, and intangibles. We expect these expenses to decrease resulting from the sale of our Hazelwood,
Missouri data center and as a portion of our fixed assets became fully depreciated in 2003. Generally, depreciation and amortization is
calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life of the associated asset, which ranges from three to seven years.

Non-Cash Equity-Based Compensation. Non-cash equity-based compensation represents charges to earnings for the difference
between the estimated fair market vatue of our common stock and the exercise price for options granted to employses and non-employee
members of our Board of Directors, and compensation expense related to the vesting of the performance warrants granted to Constellation
Ventures as more fully described above under the “Preferred Stock and Other Transactions” caption. We expect the non-cash equity-based
compensation related to options granted to employees and non-employee members of our Board of Directors to decline below $0.2 mil-
lion per quarter in the second guarter of 2004 as our 1999 and 2000 issuances will be fully expensed; however, when management esti-
mates that Constellation Ventures will meet the performance criteria for vesting of their remaining unvested 6.7 miilion warrants, we wili
record a charge based on the fair value of the warrants at that time as calculated using the Black-Scholes model and current market and
company assumptions.

Interest Expense. Historical interest expense prior ta March 2002 is related to indebtedness to banks, vendor financing agreements
convertible notes, faans from Bridge and capitalized leases. The vender financing agreements, the convertible notes and the loans from Bridge
were settled in a series of transactions described above and in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements herein. In March 2002,
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we also refinanced the majority of our capital lease liability. In July 2003 we made a $12.9 million principal payment to GECC from the
proceeds related to the sale of our Hazelwoad, Missouri data center. Interest an our capital lease liability with GECC accrues at 12% and
is compounded until cash interest payments commence in 2005, The aggregate outstanding balance of our GECC lease liability at
December 31, 2003 was $56.6 million. Additionally, in the future, we may pursue other financing arrangements including leases which may
include an interest component.

Income Tax Expense. We have incurred operating losses from inception through 2003 and, therefore, have not recorded a provi-
sion far income taxes in our historical financial statements. We have recorded a valuation allowance for the full amount of our net deferred
tax assets because the future realization of the tax benefit is uncertain. At December 31, 2003, we have approximately $380.0 million in
United States net operating loss carry-forwards expiring between 2011 and 2023, of which $247.5 million is subject to the Section 382
limitation of the internal Revenue Code.

An ownership change as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code restricts aur ability to use future United States taxa-
ble income against the Company’s United States net operating loss carry-forward. Section 382 may also limit the utilization of other United
States carry-over tax attributes upon the occurrence of an ownership change. Such an ownership change occurred during 1999 as a result
of the acquisition of cur company by Bridge and in 2002 as a result of the issuance of $203.1 million of preferred stock. Management
believes that this limitation restricts our ability to offset any future United States taxable income against its net operating loss carry-
forward over the United States Statutory carry-forward periods ranging from 15 to 20 years, to approximately $4.8 million a year before
the net effect of future recognized "built-in” gains or losses existing as of the date of the ownership change. We expect to incur net losses
at least through 2004.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The historical financial information included in this Form 10-K will not reflect our future results of operations, financial position and
cash flows.

The Year Ended December 31, 2003 as Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2002

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY QF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

QOur revenues increased 7% in 2003 as growth in our diversified Managed IP VPN, Hosting, and Internet Access have outpaced declings in
services provided 1o Reuters and Moneyline. Gross margin increased $15.3 mittion or 21% over 2002 to $89.3 miltion or 35% of revenue result-
ing from increases in our diversified customer revenue and unit price reductions in data communications costs. Net loss was $94.0 million, a
change from net income of $13.9 million in 2002 primarily driven by a $3.2 million increase in asset impairment and restructuring charges in
2003, an $8.1 million loss on sale of the data center in 2003 and a decrease in gain on extinguishment of debt of $97.9 million resulting from
our recapitalization, which was recorded in 2002.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

DOLLAR PERCENT
(IN THOUSANDS) 2003 2002 CHANGE CHANGE
Diversified Revenue:
Managed IP VPN § 66,822 $ 34,344 $32,478 95%
Hosting 28,745 8,979 21,766 312%
Internet Access 16,942 16,489 453 3%
Other 3,190 3197 7 {0)%
Total Diversified Revenue 115,699 61,009 54,690 80%
Reuters 82,748 102,244 {19,496) {19)%
Moneyline 54,424 70,287 {15,863} (23)%
Bridge — 2484 (2,464) (100)%
Total Major Customer Revenue 137172 174,995 {37,823} (22}%
Total Revenue $252,871 $236,004 $16,867 7%
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Revenue. Revenue was $252.9 million for the vear ended December 31, 2003, an increase of $16.9 million or 7%, from $236.0 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2002. Diversified Managed IP VPN ravenues increased $32.5 million or 95% to $66.8 million com-
pared to $34.3 million for 2602. The increase in 2003 Managed {P VPN revenue includes $10.4 million of revenue for services billed from
August 1, 2003 through December 31, 2003 to customers acquired from WAMINET. Diversified Hosting revenue increased $21.8 million,
or 312%, to $28.7 million in 2003 from $7.0 million in 2002. The increase in Hosting revenue is atiributable to the completion of the Intel
customer transition which contributed approximately $19.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. Internet Access ravenues
increased 3% to $16.9 million in 2003, compared to $16.5 million for 2002. The increase in Internet Access revenug is due to the economic
stabilization in the Internet sector. Other revenues remained relatively constant at $3.2 miifion in 2003 and 2002.

Reuters and Moneyline revenues were $137.2 million in 2003, a decrease of $35.4 million or 20% from $172.5 million in 2002. The
decline resulted from the termination of service locations by Reuters and Moneyline resulting from customer losses and reduced pricing
for certain services. Additionally, 2002 included $2.5 million of realized deferred installation fees under the terminated Bridge contract.

Data Communications and Operations (Exclusive of Non-Cash Compensation, Depreciation and Amortization). Data communica-
tions and operations expenses were $163.6 million for year ended December 31, 2003, a decrease of $1.5 million, from $162.1 million in
2002. This decline is a result of data communications unit price reductions for long-haul capacity and internet connectivity and reductions
in connections with Reuters and Moneyline partially offset by increases in connections for new diversified customers including Inte! cus-
tomers and customers acquired from WAMINET. Additionally, per unit cost reductions in data communications were offset by newly incurred
facilities and personnef costs associated with the Intel customer transition and increases in Network Operations and Engineering person-
nel required to support the expanding diversified Managed IP VPN and Hosting customers and newly acquired WAM!NET customers,
Furthermare, gross margin was $89.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, an increase of $15.3 mitlion, from $73.9 million in
2002. As a percentage of revenue, gross margin increased to 35% in 2003 as compared to 31% in 2002.

Sales, General and Administrative (Exclusive of Non-Cash Compensation). Sales, general and administrative expenses were $80.5 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2003, an increase of $22.7 million, or 33%, from $67.8 million for 2002. This increase is attributed to increases
in personnel costs of $9.1 million, commissions and other sales incentives of $4.6 million, rent and other facilities costs of $2.5 million and mar-
keting, promotion and consufting expenses of $3.2 million. The increase in personnel costs, commissions and sales incentives is related to growth
in our diversified revenue base and the consolidation of our corporate headquarters personnel to our new facility outside of St. Louis, Missouri.
The new headguarters facility was occupied in mid-2002, which is attributable to the increases in rent and other facilities costs. We expect thesa
costs 1o increase in 2004 as compared to 2003 to accelerate the growth of our diversified customer base.

Deprectation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense was $55.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003,
a decrease of $5.3 million from $60.6 million for 2002. We expect these expenses to decrease resulting from the sale of our Hazelwood,
Missouri data center and as a portion of our fixed assets became fully depreciated in 2003,

Asset Impairment, Restructuring Charges and Other. Asset Impairment and Restructuring Charges totaled $7.9 miflion for the year
ended December 31, 2003, a $3.2 million increase from the $4.7 million recorded in 2002. In June 2003 we revised our estimated fiability
related to a previously vacated facility lease to encompass the remaining minimum lease payments throughout the full term of the lease
which expires in March 2011, resulting in a restructuring charge of $7.9 million. During 2002, concurrent with Yipes Communications, Inc.'s
{"Yipes”) valuntary petition far reorganization under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, we recorded a $1.0 mil-
lion impairment charge related to our investment in Yipes. Additionally in 2002 we recorded a $3.7 million charge related to the write-down
of unused equipment. In 2002 we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 resulting in a $2.8 million goodwill impair-
ment charge which is reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Operations as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

Loss on Sale of Data Center. Loss on sale of data center for the year ended December 31, 2003 of $8.1 million relates to the sale
of our Hazelwood, Missouri data center to Reuters for cash and other consideration whose fair market value was lower than the net book
value of the assets and other costs incurred in conjunction with the transaction.

Non-Cash Equity-Based Compensation. Nan-cash equity-hased compensation expense was $14.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, an increase of $3.0 million from $11.0 million in 2002. The increase is due to the vesting of 3.3 million performance

warrants held by Constellation Ventures resulting in a $3.4 millian charge. We expect the non-cash equity-based compensation related

to options granted to employees and non-employee members of our Board of Directors to decline below $0.2 million per quarter in the

second quarter of 2004 as our 1999 and 2000 issuances will be fully expensed; however, when management estimates that Constellation
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Ventures will meet the performance criteria for vesting of their remaining unvested 6.7 million warrants, we will record a charge based
on the fair value of the warrants at that time as calculated using the Black-Scholes model and current market and company assumpticns.

Net Interest Expense and Other. Interest income amounted to $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 and $0.7 million
for 2002. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 amounted to $8.4 million, a decrease of $3.2 miltion from $11.7 million
in 2002. The decrease in interest expense is largely due 1o a financing and debt restructuring that oceurred in March 2002 which elimi-
nated approximately $171.5 million in debt and a $12.9 million principal payment to GECC in July 2003 from the proceeds of the sale of
our Hazelwood, Missouri data center. The aggregate outstanding batance of our GECC lease fiability at December 31, 2003 was $56.8 mil-
lion. We expect our interest expense to increase in 2004 compared to 2003 as a result of the $200.0 million debt financing to acquire the
assets of Cable & Wireless USA, Inc. and Cable & Wireless Internet Services, Inc. tagether with the assets of certain of thelir affiliates
{“CWA") and $52.0 mitlion of capital leases for the facitities being acquired by DuPont Fabros, which is discussed further below in the
Liquidity and Capital Resources section.

Net Income/{Loss). Tha net loss for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $34.0 million, a $108.0 million increase from the net
income for the year ended December 31, 2002 of $13.9 million. The increase in nat loss is primarily related to a $97.9 million gain an extin-
guishment of debt in 2002, a $3.2 million increase in asset impairment and restructuring charges in 2003, an $8.1 million loss on sale of
data center in 2003, and a $22.7 million increase in sales, general and administrative expenses in 2003. This increase in net loss was
partially offset by a gross margin increase of $15.3 million, a depreciation and amortization decrease of $5.3 million, a net interest expense
and other decrease of $3.5 million, and a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle decrease of $2.8 million.

The Year Ended December 31, 2002 as Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2001
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Our revenues decreased 3% in 2002 as growth in our diversified Managed IP VPN product was offset by reductions in Internet Access and
services provided to Reuters and Moneyline from the level of service provided to Bridge, Reuters and Moneyline in the prior year. Grass mar-
gin increased by approximately $67.5 million as the $6.8 million decrease in our revenuas was offset by $74.3 million of reductions in data
communications costs due 1o reductions in capacity, unit costs, refunds of sales taxes and reduction of aceruals for such costs.

Net incame (lass) improved by $302.8 million due primarily to the improvement in gross margin, a $97.9 million gain on debt extin-
guishment, a $27.5 million reduction in depreciation and amortization, a $14.3 million reduction in interest expense and an $84.9 miilion
reduction of asset impairment charges recorded.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

DOLLAR PERCENT
{IN THOUSANDS) 2002 2001 CHANGE CHANGE
Diversified Revenue:
Managed P VPN $ 34,344 $ 18,840 $ 15504 82%
Hosting 6,979 7,040 {61) {1)%
Internet Access 16,489 30,354 {13,865) (46)%
Other 3197 4,096 - (899) (22)%
Total Diversified Revenue 61,009 60,330 879 1%
Reuters 102,244 32,282 69,962 217%
Maneyline 70,287 15,511 54,776 353%
Bridge 2,464 134,672 (132,208) {98)%
Total Major Customer Revenue 174,995 182,465 (7.470} (4)%
Total Revenue $236,004 $242,795 $ (6.731) (3)%

Revenue. Revenue was $236.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, a decrease of $6.8 million or 3%, from $242.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2001. Diversified Managed IP VPN revenues increased $15.5 million or 82% to $34.3 million compared to
$18.8 million for 2001. The increase in 2002 Managed IP VPN revenue was the result of adding 380 net new customers. Diversified Hosting
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revenue decreased less than $0.1 million, ar 1%, to §7.0 million in 2002. The decrease in Hosting revenue is attributable to turnover of aver half
of our 2001 customer base largely as a result of bad debts related to the economic downturn experienced in the internet sector, partially offset
buy new customer gains, Internet Access revenues decreased 46% to $16.5 million in 2002, compared to $30.4 million for 2001. The decrease
in Internet Access revenue was also due to the economic downturn affecting the Internet sector which resuited in the loss of customers, pric-
ing pressure in the Internet Access business and our continued initiatives designed to encourage customers to purchase access services as part
of their managed network service. Other revenues declined to $3.2 million in 2002 from $4.1 million in 2001, a decrease of 22%.

Reuters, Moneyline, and Bridge revenues were $175.0 million in 2002, a decrease of $7.5 million or 4% from $182.5 million in
2007. The decline resulted from the elimination of excess circuits by Bridge prior to the sale of its assets, the termination of service loca-
tions by Reuters and Moneyline in connection with their integration of the Bridge acquisition, workforce reductions implemented by some
of their customers and reduced pricing for certain services.

Data Communications and Operations (Exclusive of Non-Cash Compensation, Depreciation and Amortization). Data communi-
cations and operations expenses were $162.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, a decrease of $74.3 million, or 31%, from
$236.3 miltion for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decline in data communications costs is a result of significant unit price reduc-
tions for long-haul capacity, reductions in internet connectivity capacity and unit prices, and reductions in local circuit costs resulting from
the elimination of excess circuits in the Bridge network, reductions in connections with Reuters and Moneyline and unit price reductions
from vendors. These costs were afso reduced by $5.5 miifion as a result of reductions in estimated accruals for such costs which we believe
are no longer required and $2.6 million of sales tax refunds related to such costs. Cost reductions in data communications costs were partially
offset by additional employees needed in operations to assume services previously provided by Reuters and Moneyline, and transitional
costs associated with taking over certain services from Reuters. Total operational employees increased by 68% to 428 at December 2002
versus 255 in December 2001. Furthermore, gross margin was $73.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, an increase of $67.5 mil-
lion, from $6.5 million in 2001. As a percentage of revenue, grass margin increased to 31% in 2002 as compared to 3% in 2001.

Sales, General and Administrative (Exclusive of Non-Cash Compensation). Sales, general and administrative expenses were
$67.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, a decrease of $4.5 million, or 6%, from $72.3 million for 2001. This decrease pri-
marily resulted from a $7.5 million decrease in bad debt expense to $2.5 mittion in 2002, fram $10.0 miltion in 2001. Bad debt expense
in 2001 reflected a write-off of $4.7 million in connection with the bankruptcy of Bridge Canada. The decrease in bad debt expense was
offset by increases in rent expense, primarily from the new headgquarters in St. Louis occupied in mid-2002 and increases in personngl
costs. Sales and marketing employees increased 24% ta 317 at December 2002 compared to 256 at December 2001.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense was $60.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,
a decrease of $27.5 million as compared to $88.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease results primarily from the
write down of assets that occurred in 2001, which reduced the depreciable asset base.

Asset Impairment and Other Write-Downs of Assets. in 2002, we recorded a charge of $1.0 million relating to our investment in
Yipes Communications Group, Inc., and a $3.7 million charge related to the write-down of unused equipment. In 2002 we adopted Statement
of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142 resulting in a $2.8 million goodwill impairment charge which is reflected in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations as a cumulative effect of & change in accounting principal.

Asset impairment, restructuring and other write-downs of assets of $34.4 million in 2001 represent:

¢ $31.5 million non-cash charge related to optical equipment for which we do not expect to recover its costs ither through operation or
disposition of such equipment;

* $44.1 million non-cash charge related to our wireless network equipment that has no residual value and which we have no future
expected use for the equipment;

¢ $14.0 million non-cash charge related to the write-down of other unutilized property and equipment; and

» 34.8 million restructuring charge related to exiting certain leased facilities and other related costs.

Non-Cash Equity-Based Compensation. Non-cash equity-based compensation amounted to $11.0 miflion for the year ended
December 31, 2002 versus a $15.3 miltion expense in 2001. These expenses represent amortization charges to earnings for the difference
between the estimated fair market value of our common stack and the exercise price for aptions granted to employees, non-employee
members of our Board of Directors and employees of Bridge on various dates in 1999, 2000 and 2002.
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Net Interest Expense and Other. Interest income amounted to $0.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2002, a decrease of
$6.1 miltion from 2007 a result of the decrease interest rates during 2002. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 was
$11.7 million, a decrease of $14.3 million from 2001. The decrease is a result of debt restructuring executed in the first quarter of 2002
that eliminated $170.0 million of interest bearing liabilities from the balance sheet.

Gafn on Extinguishment of Debt. Gain on extinguishment of debt and liabilities totaled $37.9 million in the year ended December 31,
2002. The gain resulted from the recapitalization in March 2002 and the Winstar Wireless, Inc. ("Winstar”) settiement in November 2002, On
November 5, 2002, we paid Winstar $1.5 million in satisfaction of all amounts owed by us to Winstar. Additionally, we released each other
from any and all claims against the other. This settlement, which was approved by the bankruptey court on November 5, 2002, resulted in a
gain of $39.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2002.

Net (Lass) Income. The net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $13.9 million, an increase of $302.8 miltion from
the net loss for 2001 of $288.9 million. The primary reasons for the improvement are:

¢ Gross margin improvement of $67.5 million;

* Reduction in asset impairment charges of $84.3 million, restructuring charges of $4.8 million and $4.3 million reduction in non-cash
equity-based compensation expense;

» $27.5 million decrease in depreciation and amortization expense;

e (ain of $97.9 million on the extinguishment of debt in 2002; and

* $14.2 million reduction in net interest expense.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Executive Summary of Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2003 our cash belances were $28.2 miltion. We used $0.3 million in operating cash flow during the year ended December 31,
2003, an improvement of $44.7 million or 89% compared to 2002, Several transactions that accurred in 2003 had a material impact on our
liguidity and capital resources. In July 2003, we sold our data center located in Hazelwood, Missouri and recorded a loss of $8.1 million on
the sale of this asset. Additionally, we received $35.0 million in grass proceeds, of which $12.9 million was used to reduce outstanding debt
with General Electric Capital Corporation ("GECC”), approximately $3.1 million related to deposits and expenses associated with the data
center sale, and approximately $19.0 million in net proceeds was added to existing cash balances. In August 2003, we acquired certain
assets related to the commercial business operations of WAMINET. Under the terms of the agreement we made an initial payment of
$3.0 million for the acquired assets and accrued $4.8 million in current liabilities for the estimated sarn-out to be determined in April 2004.

Discussion of Changes in Liguidity and Capital Resources

Cash used in operating activities decreased to $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $45.0 million in 2002. The $44.7 mil-
lion impravement is primarily due to a reduction in the payments of accounts payable of $31.3 million, an increase in collections of account
receivable of $2.5 million and an increase in deferred revenue and other accrued liabilities in 2003 versus 2002, 2002 included payments of
accounts payable that had been delayed in 2001 pending the issuance of the Preferred Stock (“Preferred”) which were settled throughout
the year. The loss of a significant customer or group of customers could have a material impact on our future cash flows and financial posi-
tion which may limit our ability to raise capital ar fund aur aperations, working capital needs and capital expenditures in the future.

Net cash provided by investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2003 was approximately $13.1 miflion, an increase of
$18.7 million from the $5.7 million used during the year ended December 31, 2002. This increase resulted from the receipt of $35.0 million
in cash related to the sale of our Hazelwood, Missouri data center, as described below, partially offset by $3.7 million used in the purchase
of WAMINET's assets, also described below, and an increase in our capital expenditures of $13.2 million primarily for new customer equip-
ment related to the Intel customer transition and certain network enhancements.

Net cash used in financing activities was $15.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to net cash provided by
financing activities of $70.6 million in the prior period. The $15.8 million use of cash in 2003 includes the $12.9 million reduction in debt out-
standing with GECC related to the sale of our Hazelwood, Missouri data center as described below. The cash provided in 2002 was largely
due to our recapitalization which resulted in the issuance of Preferred in March, June and September of 2002. As more fully described below,
we issued approximately $203.1 million of Preferred in exchange for a combination of cash, accounts payable and debt. The proceeds from
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the Preferred were used to settle all outstanding obligations to Bridge, to make scheduled payments on capital ease cbligations and to sup-
port our working capital requirements, including payments of past due balances with certain of our vendors.

On November 5, 2002, we paid Winstar $1.5 million in satisfaction of all amounts owed by us to Winstar, Additionally, we released
each other from any and all claims against the other. This settlement, which was approved by the bankruptcy court on Navember 5, 2002,
resulted in a gain of $39.6 million in the fourth quarter of 2002.

Transactions and Subsegquent Events

On January 22, 2004, we signed a definitive agreement to purchase substantially all of the assets of CWA. CWA, wholly-owned by Cable
and Wireless PLC provides a range of network and hosting services, including internet access to a Tier 1 network, collocation, hesting and
other value-added services such as managed security and content distribution. The transaction has been approved by the US Bankruptcy
Court but is subject to certain regulatory and customary closing conditions. We have committed to pay $155.0 million in cash, assume
certain working capital liabilities and assume izases for 15 data centers and other facilities. Furthermore, in accordance with the sales
agreement we are funding CWA's working capital losses from January 28, 2004 through the closing date of the transaction {estimated to
close in the first quarter of 2004), which will be capitalized into the purchase price. Additionally, we entered an agreement to sell our rights
at closing to acquire four of the CWA data centers and one office facility to DuPont Fabros Interests LLC {“DuPont Fabros”) for $52.0 mil-
lion and lease those facilities back for 15 years. The transaction is being funded by $200 million debt financing from existing stockholders
Welsh, Carsan, Anderson & Stowe {"Welsh Carson”} and Constellation Ventures {“Constellation”), a Bear Stearns asset management fund,
who are joined by Oak Hill Special Opportunities Fund {“Oak Hill” and, with Welsh Carson and Constellation, the “Financing Parties”). The
Financing Parties provided subordinated debt {the “Notes”), which we will use to acquire the CWA assets and fund ongoing capital expen-
ditures and working capital needs associated with the newly acquired assets. The Notes, which mature five years from the date of initial
funding, are subject to redemption by SAVVIS during the first 360 days after the initial funding in an amount equal to the Notes' accreted
value. During this 360 day period, the Notes will bear interest at 12.5%, payable semi-annually in kind. After this period, interest will
increase to 15%, payable semi-annually in kind. The Nates are redeematle at 101% after the fourth anniversary of the initial funding. In
conjunction with this financing, SAVVIS has issued warrants to the Financing Parties to purchase our Series B Preferred that were convert-
ible to approximately 129.4 million shares of SAVVIS common stock at a price of $1.63 per common share. The Financing Parties exercised
those warrants pursuant to a “cashless” exercise and, as a result, the Series B Preferred is convertible into approximately 65.5 million shares
of common stack. The Series B Preferred automatically converts into common shares upon SAVVIS stackholder approval. The common stock
issuable upon conversion of the Series B Preferred will not have been registered under the Securities Act and, therefore, may not be trans-
ferred or sold except pursuant to an effective registration statement or pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the
Securities Act. We granted Welsh Carson demand and piggy-back registration rights and we granted the other Financing Parties piggy-back
registration rights only.

On August 1, 2003 we entered into an asset purchase agreement with WAMINET, a leading glabal provider of content management
and delivery services, to acquire certain assets related to its commercial business operations including their commercial customer contracts
and related customer premise and other equipment. Under the terms of the agreement we made an initial payment of $3.0 million for the
acquired assets and have accrued an additional $4.6 million in current liabilities for the estimated eam-out which will be determined in April
2004 and paid in nine equal manthly instaliments. We have the option t pay the eam-out in cash or a combination of cash and up ta one-
half of the tatal purchase price in SAVVIS common stack. The final payment amount will be determined based on revenue performance of
the acquired customers. The estimated purchase price has been allocated to property and equipment and customer contracts based on their
relative fair valugs.

On July 28, 2003, we closed an agreement with Reuters whereby SAVVIS sold its data center located in Hazelwood, Missouri. We
recorded a loss of $8.1 million on the sale of this asset, praceeds from which were lower than the net hook value of the assets and ather
costs incurred in conjunction with the transaction. In addition, we entered into a lease agreement for approximately one-third of the data
center for five years with a five-year renewal option, which we are using to provide hosting services. Additionally, SAWVIS allowed Reuters
to buy-down a portion of its minimum revenue commitments under the existing network services agreement. These revenue buy-down
amounts will be recognized ratably through September 2006, which is the remaining life of the network services agreement dug to the

ongoing contractual customer relationship with Reuters. Furthermore, Reuters agreed to purchase from SAVVIS new services which may
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be required in the future by Reuters but not originally contemplated under the network services agreement provided our bid to provide such
service proposes terms equivalent to competing bids, material service level breaches by SAVVIS have not repeatedly arisen at that time,
and Reuters is not contractually bound to purchase such services from other providers. Of the $35.0 million in gross proceeds, we used
$12.9 million to reduce outstanding debt GECC, approximately $3.1 million for transaction related deposits and expenses and approxi-
mately $18.0 million in net proceeds were added to existing cash balances.

In September 2002, we raised $22.6 million in cash from the issuance of Preferred to Welsh Carson.

In June 2002, Preferred totaling $20.0 million was issued to Constellation Ventures in exchange for cash. We also issued five-year
performance warrants to Constellation Ventures to acquire shares of common stock at $0.75 per share which it earns the right to exercise
if it meets certain performance criteria related to aiding us in winning new business. During November 2003, the performance criteria was
met for the first of three tranches causing one-third, or 3.3 million warrants to vest resulting in non-cash equity based compensation
expense of $3.4 million. Additional non-cash compensation charges will be recorded over the anticipated vesting period when SAVVIS
estimates that the performance criteria of the remaining 6.7 million warrants will be met based on the fair value of the warrants at that
time as calculated using the Black-Schales madel and current market and company assumptions. In addition, we issued $2.4 million of
Preferred in satisfaction of cartain other vendar obligations.

In May 2002, SAVVIS entered into a 15 year, office facility lease agreement with Duke Realty Limited Partnership ("Duke”} with
total minimum rent payments of approximately $39.9 million. We alsc entered into an agreement with Duke in which SAVVIS may be
required to make payments of up to approximately $1.0 million plus interest accruing at 4.88% from the date of the agreement if certain
events do not occur priar to June 2004. These payments, if required, would be made from July 2005 to June 2007.

On March 18, 2002, we issued approximately $158.1 million of Preferred to (i) Welsh Carson in exchange for approximately $57.5 mil-
lion in cash, approximately $22.2 million in principal and accrued interest in respect to our 10% canvertible senior secured nates and approxi-
mately $30.9 million in notes, and accrued interest, issued pursuant to the credit agreement with Nortel and (i) Reuters upon conversion of
approximately $40.9 million in principal and accrued interest with respect to the 12% convertible sentor secured notes.

In addition, we reached agreements with GECC, Nortel, Bridge and certain other vendors as follows:

Approximately $56.5 million of capital lease obligations were amended with GECC and provides for repayment at the end
of the fifth year. Interest, which accrues at 12% per annum, accrues to the capital lease liability until December 31, 2004, and is
payable in cash thereafter. The principal amount of the amended lease is due on March 8, 2007. Substantially all of the Company
assets serve as collateral under the amended lease.

Release by Nortel from all obligations to purchase optical equipment under the Global Purchase Agreement.

We entered into an agreement with Bridge wherein we agreed to pay Bridge $11.9 million in satisfaction of $27.5 millicn
representing all amounts due to Bridge. We also agreed not to pursue the collection of $18.7 million of pre-petition receivables
owed to it by Bridge and to assign to Bridge any claims it had against other Bridge entities with the exception of Bridge Canada
whereby we retained our right to receive a pra rata distribution of assets from the liquidation of Bridge Canada which were col-
lected in 2003. All amounts due by SAVVIS under the settlement agreement were paid in March 2002.

A release by a certain vendor from all obligations under the agreements in exchange for $2.5 million paid in instaliments
over 18 months and ather commercial arrangements.

As part of the related March 2002 recapitalization, we also issued five-ysar warrants to purchase 16.1 million shares of
SAWIS' commaon stock at $0.75 per share.

In August 2000, we entered into a 20-year agreement with Kigl Center Partners, L.P. (“KCP") pursuant to which we acquired the
naming rights to an arena in St. Louis, Missouri. Total consideration for these rights amounted to approximately $71.8 million, including
750,000 shares of our common stock issued to KCP. which had a fair value of $5.8 million at issuance and $66.0 millicn of cash payments
to be made from 2002 through 2020. The related expense will be recognized over the term of the agreement. As of December 31, 2003,
we had approximately $2.6 million of remaining deferrad charges resulting from the issuance of common stack and $64.6 million of remain-
ing cash payments under this agreement.

Our customer contracts generally span multiple periods, which result in us entering inta arrangements with various suppliers of com-
munications services that require us to maintain minimum spending levels, some of which increase over time, to secure favorable pricing
terms. Qur remaining aggregate minimum spending level allocated ratably over the contract terms are approximately $39.8 million,
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$26.3 million, and $10.1 million in years 2004, 2005, and 20086, respectively. Should SAVVIS not meet the minimum spending level in any
given year, decreasing termination liabilities representing a percentage of the remaining contracted amount may immediately become due
and payable. Furthermore, certain of these termination liabilities are subject to reduction should SAVVIS experience the loss of a major
customer or suffer a loss of revenues from a downturn in general economic activity. Before cansidering the effects of any reductions for
the business downturn provisions, if SAVVIS were to terminate all of these agreements as of December 31, 2003, the maximum termina-
tion liahility would amount to approximately $44.3 million.

PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD

LESS THAN 2-3 4-5 AFTER 5
(IN THOUSANDS) TOTAL 1YEAR YEARS YEARS YEARS
Operating leases and naming rights agreement $165,235 $20,109 $30,766 $26,803 $87 557
Capital Jease obligations™ 80,950 375 15,503 65,072 —
Unconditional purchase obligations 76,334 39,912 36,422 — —
Total contractual cash obligations $322,519 $60,396 $82,691 $91,875% $87.557

(1} includes interest payments of $24.0 mitlion over the remaining life of the capital lease obligation. As discussed abave, we closed an agreement with
Reuters on July 28, 2003, whereby we sold our data center focated in Hazelwood, Missouri and used $12.9 million of the $35.0 million in grass pro-
ceeds to reduce our outstanding debt with GECC resulting in total payments due of $80.8 millien of which $63.8 million is due in March 2007.

We may meet any additional funding needs through a combination of equity investments, debt financings, renegotiation of
repayment terms on existing debt and sales of assets and services. If these additional financings were required, there can be no assur-
ance that we would be successfu! in completing any of these financings or that if we were, the terms of such financings would be favor-
able to us.

We are subject to various legal proceedings and ather actions arising in the normal course of its business. While the results of such
proceedings and actions cannot be predicted, management believes, based on facts known to management today, that the ultimate out-
come of such praceedings and actions will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results or gperations or cash flows.

We have employment agresments with several key executive officers. These agreements contain provisions with regard to base
salary, bonus, stock options, and other employee benefits. These agreements alsa provide for severance benefits in the event of employ-
ment termination or a change in cantro! of SAVVIS.

RECENYT ACCOUNTING PRONQUNCEMENTS

In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force {"EITF”") reached consensus on issue No. 00-21, "Accounting for Revenue Arrangements
with Multiple Deliverables” on a model to be used to determine when a revenue arrangement with multiple deliverables should be divided
into separate units of accounting and, if separation is apprapriate, how the arrangement cansideration should be allocated to the identi-
fied accounting units. The EITF also reach a consensus that this guidance should be effective for all revenue arrangements entered into in
fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003, which for SAVVIS is the quarter ending September 30, Z003. The adoption of EiTF No. 00-21
did not have a materia! impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") reissued Revised FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities,” which addresses the consolidation of variable interest entities in which an enterprise absorbs a majarity of
the entity’s expected losses, receives a majority of the entity's expected residval returns, or both, as a result of ownership, contractual or
other financial interests in the entity. FIN No. 46 is required in financial statement of public entities that have variable interest entities or
potential variable interest entitigs commonly referred to as special-purpose entities created before February 1, 2003 for periods ending
after December 15, 2003, and for all other types of entities is required in financial statements for periods ending after March 15, 2004.
Adoption of the standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2003, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard ("SFAS") No. 149, "Amendment of Statement 133 on
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies financial reporting for certain derivative instruments
and for hedging activities accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and is effective for contracts entered into or modified, and for hedges desig-
nated, after June 30, 2003. Adoption of the standard did not have & material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.
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In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, "Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with characteristics of bath Liahilities
and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 requires that certain financial instruments issued in the form of shares that are mandatorily redeemable as wel!
as certain other financial instrumants be classified as liabilities in the financial statements. SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial instru-
ments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after
June 15, 2003. Adoption of the standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or
cash flows.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Qur primary market risk exposure relates to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Changes in foreign exchange rates did not matsrially impact our results of operations. For the year ended December 31, 2003, 6%
of our service revenue was denominated in currencies other than the United States dolar and 1% of our service revenue for the years
ended 2002 and 2001, respectively. Approximately 23%, 19%. and 21% of our total direct and operating costs, excluding depreciation and
amortization, loss on sale of data center, non-cash equity based compensation, and asset impairments and restructuring charges, were
incurred in currencies other than the United States dollar for the years ended 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. We expect these
percentages to decrease in the periods ahead as our United States business base grows, In the future, we may engage in hedging trans-

actions to mitigate foreign exchange risk.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The 2003 consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto required by this item begin on page 52 as listed in ltem 15 of
Part IV of this document.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
We had no disagresments on accounting or financial disclosure matters with our independent certified public accountants to report under
this tem 8.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

We carried aut an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our “disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined in
Rute 13a-15{e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure contrals and procedures are effective
in timely alerting them to material information relating to the Company {including its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included

in our periodic SEC filings.
There has been no change in our internal controls aver financial reporting during the most recent fiscal year that materially affected
or is reasonably likely 1o materially affect the internal controfs.
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PART tii

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Reference is made to the information set forth under the captions “Election of Directors” and “Compliance with Section 16 of the Securities
Exchange Act” appearing in the Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year, which information is incorpo-
rated herein by reference.

We have adapted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all directors and employees, including our principal exec-
utive, financial and accounting officers. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is posted on our website at www.sawvis.net. We intend
10 satisfy the requirements under Item 10 of Form 8-K regarding disclosure of amendments to, or waivers from, provisions of our Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics that apply, by posting such information on our website.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Reference is made to the information set forth under the captions "Election of Directors—Director Compensation,” "2003 Executive
Compensation” and "Stockholder Return Parformance Graph” appearing in the Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end
of our fiscal year, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED MATTERS

Reference is made to the information set forth under the caption “Equity Compensation Plan Information” and “Ownership of Securities”
appearing in the Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year, which information is incorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
Reference is made to the information set forth under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” appearing in the Proxy
Statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Reference is made to the information set forth under the caption “Principal Accounting Fees and Services” appearing in the Proxy Statement
10 be filed within 120 days after the end of our fiscal year, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

{a) Documents filed as part of this Report:

1.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditors’ Report—Ernst & Young LLP

Independent Auditors' Report—Deloitte & Touche LLP

Consolidated Balance Sheers as of December 31, 2003 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial statement schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission either have been included in the financial statements, or notes thereta, are not required under the related instructions or
are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted.

3. EXHIBITS

The following exhibits are either provided with this Form 10-K or are incorporated herein by reference.

EXHIBIT
INDEX
NUMBER  EXHIBIT DESCRIPTION

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant (incorparated by reference to the same numbered exhibit
to Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-90881), dated November 12, 1999).

32 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant {incorporated by refer-
ence to the same numbered exhibit to Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-90881),
dated January 31, 2000).

33 Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorparation of the Registrant {incorparated by reference
to the same numbered exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002).

34 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Registrant's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003).

43 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to the same numbered exhibit to Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-90881}, dated January 31, 2000).

42 Certificate of Designations relating to the Registrant’s Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to
the same numbered exhibit to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 27, 2002).

43 Warrant Agresment, dated as of March 7, 2002, between the Registrant and General Electric Capital Corporation {incorpo-
rated by reference to the same numbered exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
Mearch 31, 2002}

4.4 Warrant Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2002, between the Registrant and Nortel Netwaorks Inc. (incarporated by reference
10 the same numbered exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

45 Warrant, dated March 18, 2002, to purchase the Registrant’s comman stock issued to General Electric Capital Corporation

{incorparated by reference to the same numbered exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended March 31, 2002).
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EXHIBIT

INDEX

NUMBER  EXHIBIT DESCRIPTION

48 Warrant, dated March 18, 2002, to purchase the Registrant’s common stock issued to Nortel Networks Inc. {incorporated

by reference to the same numbered exhibit to Registrant’s Quarterly Repart on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
March 31, 2002).

47+ Warrant, dated June 28, 2002, to purchase the Registrant's common stock issued to Constellation Venture Capital }l, L.P
(incorparated by reference to the same numbered exhibit to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 8, 2002).

4.8+ Warrant, dated June 28, 2002, to purchase the Registrant’s common stock issued to Constellation Venture Capital Offshore
Il, L.P {incorporated by reference to the same numbered exhibit to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 8, 2002).

49+ Warrant, dated June 28, 2002, to purchase the Registrant’s common stock issued to The BSC Empioyee Fund IV, L.P. {incor-
porated by reference to the same numbered exhibit to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 8, 2002).

410+ Warrant, dated, June 28, 2002, to purchase the Registrant’s common stock issued to CVC Il Partners, L.L.C. {incorporated by
reference to the same numbered exhibit to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 8, 2002).

10.1 1999 Stock Option Plan, as amended {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000},

10.2 Amendment No. 1 to 1993 Stack Option Plan 2001 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the guarterly period ended June 30, 2002},

10.3 Amendment No. 2 to 1999 Stack Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 ta the Registrant’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002).

104 Amendment No. 3 to 1999 Stock Option Plan {incarporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002).

105 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003).

10.6 Emplayee Stock Purchase Plan {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002).

107 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 1999 Stack Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Registrant's Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended {File No. 333-90881], dated December 30, 1993).

108 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the 1939 Stock Option Plan {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7
to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).

109 Farm of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003).

10.10  Employment Agreement, dated December 20, 1999, between the Registrant and Jack M. Finlayson [incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-30681}, dated
January 18, 2000).

10.11 Letter Agreement, dated September 30, 1999, between the Registrant and James D. Mori (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.9 to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-30881), dated December 30, 1999}.

1012 Employment Agreement, dated April 2, 2001, between the Registrant and Robert A. McCormick {incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.46 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000).

1013 Letter Agreement, dated January 6, 2003, between the Registrant and Grier C. Raclin.

1014 Letter Agreement, dated January 2, 2003, between the Registrant and Jeffrey H. Von Deylen.

10.15 Office Lease between WGP Associates, LLC and SAVVIS Communications {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999),

10.16+  Arena Naming Rights Agreement, dated as of August 17, 2000, among the Registrant, Kiel Center Partners, L.P. and Bridge
Information Systems, Inc. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended September 30, 2000).
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1017+

10.18++

10.19

10.20+

1021+

10.22++

10.23++

10.24++

10.25++

10.26++

10.27++

10.28++

10.29

10.30+

10.31+

Agreement and First Amendment, dated June 19, 2002, to Arena Naming Rights Agreement, dated as of August 17, 2000,
among the Registrant, Kiel Center Partners, L.P. and SAVVIS Communications Corporation, a Missouri corporation {incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002).
Settlement Agreement relating to Advertising Inventory under Naming Rights Agreement and Canditionally Modifying Suite
License Agreemsnt, dated as of July 30, 2003, among the Registrant and Kiel Center Partners, L.P. {incorporated by refer-
ence to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003).
Side Letter, dated May 16, 2001, between the Registrant and Reuters Holdings Switzerland SA. {incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 tc the Registrant’s Current Repart on Form 8-K dated June 4, 2001).

Network Services Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and between the Registrant and Reuters Limited {incor-
porated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 2007).

Amendment No. 1, dated March 1, 2002, to Network Services Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and betwsen
the Registrant and Reuters Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.57 to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2002).

Amendment No. 2, dated May 23, 2003, to Network Services Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and between
the Registrant and Reuters Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2003).

Amendment No. &, dated June 15, 2003, to Network Services Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and between
the Registrant and Reuters Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 1o the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2003).

Amendment No. 4, dated March 15, 2003, to Network Services Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and between
the Registrant and Reuters Limited {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003).

Amendment No. 5, dated July 23, 2003, to Network Services Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and between
the Registrant and Reuters Limited (incorporated by reference to Exnibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003).

Amendment No. 6, dated August 19, 2003, to Netwark Services Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and between
the Registrant and Reuters Limited {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repart on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003},

Amendment No. 7, dated July 25, 2003, to Netwark Services Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and between
the Registrant and Reuters Limited (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003).

Amendment No. 8, dated October 1, 2003, to Network Services Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and between
the Registrant and Reuters Limited.

Amendment No. 9, dated October 24, 2003, to Network Services Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and between
the Registrant and Reuters Limited.

Transitional Services Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and between the Registrant and Reuters Limited
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 2001).

Co-location Agreemant, dated as of September 28, 2001, by and between SAVVIS Communications Corporation, a Missouri
corporation, and Reuters America Inc. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2001).
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10.32 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 6, 2002, among the registrant, Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe VIll,
L.P, and the various entities and individuals affiliated with Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe Vill, L.P. listed on Annex |
thereto {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 27, 2002).

1033 Investar Rights Agreement, dated as of March 6, 2002, among the registrant, Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe VIll, LP,
the various entitigs and individuals affiliated with Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe VIll, L.P. listed an the signature pages
thereto, Reuters Holdings Switzerland SA and the other Investors (as defined therein) {incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Bepart on Form 8-K dated March 27, 2002).

10.34  Amendment No. 1, dated June 28, 2002, to the Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of March 6, 2002, among the regis-
trant, Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe VIIL, P, the various entities and individuals affiliated with Welsh, Carson, Anderson
& Stawe VIII, L.P listed on the signature pages thereto, Reuters Holdings Switzerland SA and the Other Investors (as defined
therein} {incarporated by reference to the Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 8, 2002).

10.35  Agreement Resolving All Qutstanding SAVWIS-BIS ssugs, between the Registrant and BIS Administration, Inc., dated as of
February 8, 2002 as approved by the Bankruptey Court on February 13, 2002 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly peried ended March 31, 2002).

10.36 Amendment No. 1, effective February 25, 2002, to the Agreement Resolving All Qutstanding SAVVIS-BIS Issues, between
the Registrant and BIS Administration, Inc., dated as of February 8, 2002 (incarporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.37  Amended and Restated Master Lease Agreement, dated as of March 8, 2002, by and among SAVVIS Communications
Corporation, a Missouri carporation, other signatories named therein and General Electric Capital Corporation (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report an Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.38 Amendment No. 1 and Consent, dated May 28, 2002, to the Amended and Restated Master Lease Agreement, dated as of
March 8, 2002, by and amang SAVVIS Communications Corporation, a Missouri corporation, other signatories named therein
and General Electric Capital Corparation {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Repart an
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002).

10.39+  Amendment No. Z and Consent, dated November 4, 2002, to the Amended and Restated Master Lease Agreement, dated
as of March 8, 2002, by and among SAVVIS Communications Corporation, a Missouri corporation, other signatories named
therein and General Electric Capital Corporation {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.67 to the Registrant’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 37, 2002).

1040  Amendment No. 3, dated February 27, 2003, to the Amended and Restated Master Lease Agreement, dated as of March 8,
2002, by and amang SAVVIS Communications Corporation, a Missouri carporation, ather signatories named therein and
General Electric Capital Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s Guarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003).

10.41 Amendment No. 4, dated April 30, 2003, to the Amended and Restated Master Lease Agreement, dated as of March 8, 2002,
by and among SAWVIS Communications Corporation, a Missouri corporation, other signatories named therein and General
Electric Capital Corporation {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended March 31, 2003).

1042 Security Agreement, effective as of March 18, 2002, between the Registrant and General Electric Capital Corparation, as agent
for itself and other lessars (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
guarterly period ended March 31, 2002},

1043 Security Agreement, effective as of March 18, 2002, between SAVVIS Communications Corporation, a Missouri corporation
and General Electric Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).
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10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

10.54

10.85

10.56

10.57

Security Agreement, effective as of March 18, 2002, between Global Network Assets, LLC and General Electric Capital
Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessars {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

Security Agreement, effective as of March 18, 2002, between SAVVIS Procurement Corporation and General Electric Capital
Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

Security Agreement, effective as of March 18, 2002, between SAWIS Communications International, Inc. and General Electric
Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

Pledge Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between the Registrant and General Electric Capita) Corporation, as agent
for itself and other lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

Pledge Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between SAVVIS Cammunications Carporation, a Missouri carporation and
General Electric Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002},

Trademark Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between the Registrant and General Electric Capital Corporation,
as agent for itself and other lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

Trademark Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between SAVVIS Communications Corporation, a Missouri cot-
paration and General Electric Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors (incorparated by reference to Exhibit
10.13 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

Trademark Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between Global Network Assets, LLC and General Electric
Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

Trademark Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between SAVVIS Procurement Corporation and General Electric
Capital Carporation, as agent for itself and other lessars {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 ta the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

Trademark Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between SAVWIS Communications International, Inc. and General
Electric Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

Patent Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between the Registrant and General Electric Capital Corporation, as
agent for itself and ather lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Farm 10-Q
for the quarterly periad ended March 31, 2002},

Patent Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between SAVVIS Communications Corporation, a Missouri corpo-
ration and General Electric Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.18 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

Patent Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between Glabal Netwaork Assets, LLC and General Electric Capital
Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Repart on Farm 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

Patent Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between SAVVIS Procurement Corporation and General Electric
Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).
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10.88  Patent Security Agreement dated, as of March 18, 2002, between SAWVIS Communications International, Inc. and General
Electric Capital Carporation, as agent for itself and other lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Registrant’s
Quartarly Repart on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.59  Copyright Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between the Registrant and General Electric Capital Corporation,
as agent for itself and other lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.60  Copyright Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between SAVIS Communications Corporation, a Missouri
corporation and General Electric Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.23 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.61 Copyright Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between Global Network Assets, LLC and General Electric Capital
Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to the Registrant's Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.62 Copyright Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between SAVVIS Procurement Corporation and General Electric
Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and cther lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.63 Copyright Security Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2002, between SAVVIS Communications Internatignal, inc. and General
Electric Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.64  Guaranty Agreement, effective as of March 18, 2002, delivered by the Registrant to and in favor of General Electric Capital
Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors (incorparated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.65 Guaranty Agreement, effective as of March 18, 2002, delivered by Global Network Assets, LLC to and in favor of General
Electric Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.66 Guaranty Agreement, effective as of March 18, 2002, delivered by SAVVIS Procurement Corporation to and in faver of General
Electric Capital Corparation, as agent for itself and other lessors {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.67 Guaranty Agreement, effective as of March 18, 2002, delivered by SAVVIS Communications International, Inc. to and in favar
of General Electric Capital Corporation, as agent for itself and other lessors (incarporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to
the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

1068  Fee Letter, dated March 6, 2002, from the Registrant to WCA Management Corparation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.31 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report an Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002).

10.69  Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2002, among the registrant, Constellation Venture Capital Il, L.P,
Constellation Venture Capital Offshore Il, LP, The BSC Employee Fund IV, L.P, and CVC Il Partners, L.L.C. {incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 8, 2002).

10.70  Joinder Agreement, dated June 28, 2002, between registrant, Constellation Venture Capita! If, L.P, Constellation Venture
Capital Offshore Il, LP, The BSC Employee Fund IV, L.P, and CVC 1l Partners, L.L.C. {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 8, 2002).

1071 Board Letter, dated June 28, 2002, to Constellation Venture Capital Il, L.P, Constellation Venture Capital Offshore Il, L.P, The
BSC Employee Fund IV, LP, and CVC Il Partners, L.L.C. from registrant, Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe VI, L.P., Weish,
Carson, Anderson & Stowe VI, L.P, Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe VI, LP, and WCAS Management Corporation {incor-
porated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 8, 2002).
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10.72

10.73

10.74

10.75

10.76+

10.77++

211
231
232
311
312
321

322

Amended and Restated Lease Agreement, dated as of January 25, 2002, by and between General Electric Capital Corporation
and SAWIS Communications Corporation, & Missouri corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's
Quarterly Repart on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002).

Lease Agreement, dated as of May 24, 2002, by and between Duke Realty Limited Partnership and SAVVIS Communications
Corporation, a Missouri corporation {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 3G, 2002).

Missouri Leasehold Deed of Trust, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing, dated June 12, 2002, among SAVVIS
Communications Corporation, a Missouri corporation and General Electric Capital Corporation {incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2002).

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of September 18, 2002, among the registrant, Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe
VIII, L.P and the various entities and individuals affiliated with Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe VIil, L.P. listed on Annex
| thereto (incorporated by reference to the Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 19, 2002).
Master Services Agreement, dated October 1, 2002, by and between Moneyline Telerate and Moneyline Telerate international
and SAVVIS Communications Corporation, a Missouri corporation {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's
Quarterly Raport on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2002).

Purchase Agreement, dated July 25, 2003, between the registrant and Reuters Data LLC, a Delaware limited liability com-
pany (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated August 11, 2003).
Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Emnst & Young LLP.

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant ta Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

+  Confidential treatment has been granted for this exhibit. The copy filed as an exhibit omits the information subject to the request for confidential
{reatment.

+  Arequest for confidential treatment has been submitted with respect to this exhibit. The copy filed as an exhibit omits the information subject to the
request for confidential treatment.

{b) Reports on Form 8-K.

None.

{c) Exhibits.

The list of exhibits filed with this report is set forth in response to Item 15(a)(3). SAVVIS hereby files as part of this report the exhibits listed
in the index to the exhibits.

(d) Financial Statement Schedules.

None.
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on February 23, 2004.

SAVVIS COMMUNICATIONS CORPORATION

By: /s/ Robert A, McCormick

Robert A. McCormick

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of
the registrant, in the capacities indicated below and on the dates indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/s/ BOBERT A. MCCORMICK Chief Exacutive Officer and Chairman of February 23, 2004
Robert A. McCormick the Board (principal executive officer)

/[s/ JEFFREY H. VON DEYLEN Chief Financial Officer and Director February 23, 2004
Jeffrey H. Von Deylen {principal financial officer and

principal accounting officer)

/s/ JOHN M. FINLAYSON President, Chief Operating Officer and Director February 23, 2004
John M. Finlaysan

/s/ JOUN D. CLARK Director February 23, 2004
John O. Clark
/s/ CLIFFORD H. FRIEDMAN Director February 23, 2004

Clifford H. Friedman

/s/ CLYDE A, HEINTZELMAN Director February 23, 2004
Clyde A. Heintzelman

/s/ THOMAS E. MCINERNEY Director February 23, 2004
Thomas E. Mclnerney

/s/ JAMES E. QUSLEY Director February 23, 2004
James E. Ousley

[s{ JAMES P PELLOW Director February 23, 2004
James P Pellow

/[s/ PATRICK J. WELSH Director February 23, 2004
Patrick J. Welsh
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EXHIBIT 31.1

Certifications
I, Robert A. McCormick, certify that:

1
2.

' have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of SAWIS Communications Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does nat contain any untrue statement of a materiat fact or omit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not mislead-

ing with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods pre-

sented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and | are respansible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and proce-

dures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15{e) and 15d-15{e)} for the registrant and have:

a)  Designed such disclosure contrals and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and pracedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based
on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal contro! over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter {the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has mate-
rially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal controi over financiat reporting;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors {or persons per-

forming the equivalent functions):

al Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or aperation af intemal contral aver financial reparting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b)  Anyfraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the regi-
strant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 23, 2004

By. /s/ Rabert A. McCarmick

Robert A. McCormick

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

I, Jeffrey H. Von Deylen, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of SAVVIS Communications Corporation;

2 Based on my knowledge, this report daes not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not mislead-
ing with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this repart, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods pre-
sented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s| and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controfs and prace-
dures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15{e}} for the registrant and have:

a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

b} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our con-
clusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pracedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

¢)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter {the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has mate-
rially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting;

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s} and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal contral over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors {or persons per-
forming the equivalent functions):
al Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or aperation of internal cantrol over financial reparting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and repgrt financial
information; and

bl Any fraud, whether or not materia!, that invalves management or other employees who have a significant role in the regi-
strant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 23, 2004

By: /s/ Jeffrey H. Von Deylen
Jeffrey H. Von Deylen

Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Executive Officer of SAVVIS Communications Corporation {the “Company”), hereby certifies that, to his knowl-
edge on the date hereof:
(a) the Annual Report an Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2003, filed on the date hereof with the Securities
and Exchange Commissian (the “Repart”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of tha Securities Exchange
Act of 1934: and
(b) infermation contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

Date: February 23, 2004

By: /s/ Robert A, McCormick

Robert A. McCormick

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification of Chief Financiai Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer of SAVWIS Communications Corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, to his knowl-
edge on the date hereof:
(a) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the annual period ended December 31, 2003, filed an the date hereof with the Securities
and Exchange Commission {the "Report”} fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 and
{b) information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations
of the Company.

Date: February 23, 2004

By: /s/ Jeffrey H. Von Deylen
Jeffrey H. Von Deylen

Chief Financial Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of SAVV!S Communications Corporation

St. Louis, Missouri

We have audited the accampanying conselidated balance sheet of SAVVIS Communications Corparation and subsidiaries (“SAWVIS”) as
of December 31, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ (deficit) equity, and cash flows for
the year ended December 31, 2003. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of SAVVIS, Our respansibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accardance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supparting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for qur opinion.

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posi-
tion of SAWIS Communications Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the year ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Sarct ¥ LLP

St. Louis, Missouri
February 4, 2004
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

SAWIS Communications Corporation

Herndan, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of SAVVIS Communications Corporation and subsidiaries [SAVVIS) as of
December 31, 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders” (deficit) equity, and cash flows for
each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s man-
agement. Our responsibility is to express an apinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those stan-
dards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of mate-
rial misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

[n our opinion, such consolidated financial statements prasent fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of SAWVIS
Cammunications Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

As discussed in Note 2, in 2002, SAVVIS changed its method of accounting for goodwil! to conform with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142.

Llg sl 75l 262

/

McLean, Virginia
February 6, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31,

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AMOUNTS) 2003 2002
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 28173 $ 32189
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,162 and $1,023

in 2003 and 2002, respectively, {includes accounts receivable from affiliates as

defined in Note 3 of $200 and $10,917 in 2003 and 2002, respectively) 11,305 15,117
Prepaid expenses 2467 1,691
Other current assets 2,682 2,119
Total Current Assets 44,627 51,086
Froperty and equipment, net 59,357 129,262
Restricted cash - 7.843 6,384
Intangibles, net 4898 —
Other non-current assets 7,898 9,742
Total Assets $124,623 $196,474
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 26.771 $ 28528
Other accrued liabilities 22,944 18,174
Total Current Liabilities 49,715 46,702
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion 56,587 62,444
Other accrued liahilities 19,248 10,411
Totai Liabilities 125,550 119,557

Commitments and Contingencies (Note16)
Stockholders’ {Deficit) Equity
Canvertible preferred stack at accreted value; 50,000,000 shares autharized, 203,070
issued and outstanding in 2003 and 2002 243,334 217,006
Common stack; $.01 par value, 800,000,000 shares authorized, 96,478,900 and
94,059,956 shares issued in 2003 and 2002, 96,447,599 and 94,028,381

shares outstanding in 2003 and 2002, respectively 965 941
Additional paid-in capital 330,890 351,772
Aceumulated deficit {572,465) {478,432)
Deferred compensation (1,438) (12,270}
Treasury stock, at cost, 31,301 and 31,575 shares in 2003 and 2002, respectively {16} (18
Accumulated other comprehensive 1oss:

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustment {2,197) {2.084)
Total Stockholders’ (Deficit) Equity (927) 76,917
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ {Deficit) Equity $124,623 $196,474

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 2003 2002 2001
Total Revenues" $252,871 $236,004 $242,795
Data communications and operations expenses? 163,606 162,078 236,336
Gross Margin 89,265 73,926 6,459
Sales, general, and administrative expenses® 90,498 67,821 72,347
Depreciation and amortization 55,348 60,621 88,079
Asset impairment and other write-downs of assets — 4,684 89,633
Restructuring charges 7.903 — 4,821
Loss on sale of data center 8,106 — —
Non-cash equity-based compensation® 13,989 10,952 15,254
Tota! Other Dperating Expenses 175,842 144,078 270,134
Lass from Operations (86,577} {70,152} (263,675}
Non-0perating Income/(Expenses}
Net interest expense and other (7.456) (11,003} (25,221}
(Gain on extinguishment of debt — 97 859 —
Total Non-Operating Income/(Expenses) (7.456) 86,856 {25,221)
Income/(Loss) from Operations hefore Cumulative
Eifect of Change in Accounting Principle (94,033) 16,704 (288,896)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (Note 2) — (2772 —
Net Income/(Loss) {94,033) 13,932 (288,896}
Accreted and deemed dividend on preferred stock (33,323) {74,498) —
Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders $(127,356) $ {60,566} $(288,896)
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Common Share before
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle® $ (134 $ (062} $ (310)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — {0.03} —
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Common Share § (1.34) § (0.65) § (3101
Weighted Average Common Shares Qutstanding® 94,738,124 93,558,891 93,113,823

{1} Includes $82.7 million, $104.7 miltion, and $167.0 million from affiliates as defined in Nate 3 for the years ended 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

{2) Excludes $2.0 million, $1.5 million, and $2.1 million of non-cash equity-based compensation for the years ended 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively,
as well as exclusive of depreciation included below.

(3) Excludes $8.6 million, $9.4 millian, and $13.2 million of non-cash equity-based compensation for the years ended 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

{4) Includes $3.4 million of nan-cash equity-based compensation relating to the vesting of certain Constellation Ventures perfarmance warrants for the
year ended 2003 as discussed in Note 5.

{5} As the effects of including the incremental shares associated with options, warrants, and convertible Preferred Stack are anti-ditutive, they are not
included in the weighted average common shares outstanding.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' {DEFICIT) EQUITY

NUMBER OF SHARES

CONVERTIBLE CONVERTIBLE
PREFERRED COMMON TREASURY PREFERRED
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) STOCK STOCK STOCK STOCK

Balance at December 31, 2000 — 93,831,066 38,876 $ -
Net loss
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Comprehensive loss
Recognition of deferred compensation costs
Issuance of common and/or treasury stack

upon exercise of stock options 126,163
Balance at December 31, 2001 — 93,857,229 38,876 —
Net income
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Comprehensive income
Issuance of preferred stock 203,070 203,070
Offering costs of preferred stock (2,939)
Proceeds of preferred stock issuance

allocated to beneficial conversion feature (52,690)
Deemed dividends on preferred stock 74,498
Beneficial conversion feature of deemed

dividends on preferred stock (4,933)
Issuance of warrants

Recognition of deferred compensation costs
Issuance of common and/or treasury

stack upon exercise of stock options 102,727 {7.30%)
Balance at December 31, 2002 203,070 94,059,956 31,575 217,006
Net loss
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Comprehensive loss
Deemed dividends on preferred stock 33,323
Beneficial conversion feature of

deemed dividends on preferred stock (6,918)
Legal fees related to the {ssuance of preferred stack (77
Recognition of deferred compensation costs
Issuance of common and/or treasury stock

upon exercise of stock options 2,418,944 {274)
Issuance of warrants

Issuance of immediately vested stock options with
exercise price below market value on date of grant
Balance at December 31, 2003 203,070 96,478,900 31,30 $243,334

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ACCUMULATED
ADDITIONAL OTHER
COMMON PAID-IN ACCUMULATED DEFERRED TREASURY ~ COMPREHENSIVE
STOCK CAPITAL DEFICIT COMPENSATION STOCK LOSS TOTAL
$938 $359,586 $203,468) $39,581) $118) $ {526) $116,930
(288,896) {288,896)
62 62
{288,834)
(3,205) 18,459 15,254
2 §2 64
940 356,443 (492,364} (21122) (19) (464) (156,586)
13932 13932
{1.620) {1,620}
12,312
203,070
{2,939}
52,690 —
{74,498} —
4,933 -
10,053 10,053
210 8,852 10,853
1 50 3 54
I %1772 (478,432) (12,270) (16} {2,084} 76,917
(94,033) {94,033)
(113) {113)
{94,148}
{33,323) —
6918 —
(77)
(243] 10832 10,589
24 1,405 1429
3,400 3,400
961 961
$965 $330,890 $(572,465) $ (1438) $(16) $(2,197} § (977)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 2003 2002 2001
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income/{loss) $(94,033) $ 13,932 $/288,896)
Reconciliation of net income/{loss) to net cash used in operating activities:
Gain on extinguishment of debt — {97,859) —
Deferred financing costs — — 3,845
Asset impairment and other write-downs of assets — 4684 89,633
Restructuring charges 7,903 — 4821
Loss on sale of data center 8,108 — —
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle — 2,772 —
Accrued interest 6.996 8,794 2,612
Depreciation and amortization 55,348 80,621 88,079
Non-cash equity-based compensation 13.989 10,952 15.254
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable 3812 1,266 16,642
Prepaid expenses and other current assets {1,339} 663 (277)
Other non-current assets 1,675 2,273 {125)
Accounts payable (4,245) (35,589) 8,291
Other accrued liabilities 1,505 (17.477) 18,216
Net cash used in aperating activities (285) (44,968) (41,906)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures {18,824) {5,669} {24,085)
Purchase of WAMINET assets (3,118) — —
Proceeds from sale of data center 35,000 — —
Net cash provided by/{used in) investing activities 13,058 {5.669) {24,085)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of preferred stock, net of issuance costs — 97,161 —
Proceeds from convertible senior secured notes — — 57,500
Payments under capital lease obligations (15,769) {9,980} (10,661}
Repayment of borrowings — (14,297) (202
Other (30) {2,268) 1,567
Net cash provided by/{used in) financing activities (15,799} 70,618 48,204
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {960) [2,225) {70)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (3,986) 17,754 (17.857)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 32,199 14,405 32,282
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $28,173 $ 32,159 $ 14,405
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for interest § 304 $ 111 $ 6959
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of preferred stock in settlement of debt 58 — $102,970 $ —
Accrual of WAMINET earn-out (Note 4) 4,600 — —

The accampanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{TABULAR DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS}

NOTE 1—NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Organization and Business. SAVVIS Communications Corporation, a Delaware corporation, together with its wholly-owned subsidiary,
SAWIS Communications Carparation, a Missauri corporation {"SCC"}, and its predecessar campany, SAYVIS Communications Enterprises
LLC.{"LLC"), are referred to herein collectively as the "Company,” and “SAVVIS.” The Company was formed in November 1995 and com-
menced commercial operations in 1996. SAWVIS is a global managed service provider, delivering Managed IP VPN, Hosting, and Internet
access services to a diverse mix of industries.

On April 7, 1998 (the "acquisition date”), the Company was acquired by a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bridge Infarmation Systems,
Inc. ("Bridge"} in an all stock transaction that was accounted for as a “purchase transaction” under Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 16. The vaiue of the Bridge shares and options issued and the costs incurred by Bridge in connection with the acquisition aggregated
$31.7 million. In accordance with the accounting requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, purchase transactions that
result in one entity becoming substantially wholly-owned by the acquirer establish a new basis of accounting in the acquired entity’s records
for the purchased assets and liabilities. Thus, the purchase price has been allocated to the underlying assets purchased and liabilitigs
assumed based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date.

An initial public offering of the Company's common stock was completed in February 2000. A total of 17 million shares were sold in
the offering, 14,875,000 shares sold by the Company and 2,125,000 shares sold by Bridge, all at $24 per share. The Company received net
proceeds from this offering of approximately $333 million, of which approximately $127 million was paid to Bridge. After the offering, Bridge
owned approximately 43% of the Company’s outstanding stock, and stockholders of Bridge owned approximately 26% of the Company's
outstanding stack. As of December 31, 2003 the Bridge estate owns approximately 11% of the Company’s outstanding voting stock.

In 2002, the Company executed a recapitalization when it issued approximately $203.1 million of convertible preferred stock to
entities and individuals associated with Welsh Carson Anderson & Stowe {“Welsh Carson”), a group of funds {“Constellation Ventures”),
Reuters plc (“Reuters”) and to various vendors.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation. The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cast and Cash Equivalents. The Company classifies cash on hand and deposits in banks, including commercial paper, money mar-
ket accounts and other investments with an original maturity of three manths or less, that the Company may hold from time to time, as
cash and cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash. Restricted cash consists of amounts supporting outstanding letters of credit, principally related to office space.

Property and Equipment. Communications equipment and data center equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the
straight-line method over estimated usefu! lives of three to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their
estimated useful lives or the term of the related lease which is usually five to seven years. Oata centers are generally depreciated over
twenty years.

Equipment under Capital Leases. The Company leases certain of its data communications equipment and other fixed assets under
capital lease agreements. The assets and liabilities under capital leases are recorded at the lesser of the present value of aggregate future
minimum lease payments, including estimated bargain purchase options, or the fair value of the assets under lease. Assets under these
capital leases are amartized over the terms of the leases, which approximate the useful lives of the assets of three to five years.

Other Non-Current Assets. Other non-current assets consist primarily of deferred financing costs on capital leases and the unamor-
tized cost of naming rights to an arena in St. Louis, Missouri.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets. The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets under the provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, "Accounting for the impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” {"SFAS 144"}, SFAS 144
requires the review for impairment of long-lived assets, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset might not be recoverable and exceeds its fair value.
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Significant factors, which wauld trigger an impairment review, include the foliowing:
* significant negative industry trends,
* significant changes in technology,
¢ significant underutilization of assets, and
¢ significant changes in how assets are used or are planned to be used.

When such an event occurs, the Company estimates the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its
sventual disposition. These impairment evaluations involve estimates of asset useful lives and future cash flows. If the undiscounted
expected future cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the asset and the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value, an
impairment loss is recognized. Management utilizes an expected present value technique, which uses a risk-free rate and multiple cash
flow scenarios reflecting the range of possible outcomes, to estimate fair value of the asset. Actual useful lives and cash flows could dif-
fer from those estimated by management using these techniques, which could have a material affect on our results of operations and
financial position.

There were no asset impairment charges in 2003; however, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of $7.9 million related
to a previously vacated facility lease for which the Company revised its estimated liability to encompass the remaining minimum lease
payments throughout the full term of the lease which expires in March 2011. During 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized asset impair-
ment charges of $4.7 million and $89.6 million, respectively, primarily related to equipment with carrying value above its estimated fair
market value.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets. The Company accounts for the commercial customer contracts acquired in the WAMINET trans-
action in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” ("SFAS 142").
The commercial customer contracts acquired were based on their estimated fair value relative to the estimated fair value of the other
assets received, including the incremental direct costs incurred in effecting the transaction.

Based on our evaluation of the useful life of the existing custamer contracts, probability of renewals and projected cash flows from
these custamars, the assets are being amartized over a 3-year life. SFAS 142 reguires management to evaluate the remaining useful life
of the customer contracts each reporting period 10 determine whether events and circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining period
of amortization. If the estimate of the customer contracts’ remaining useful life changes, the remaining carrying amount is amortized
prospectively over that revised remaining useful life. Actual useful tives could differ fram those estimated by management, which could
have a material affect on our operating results and financial position.

The Company also assesses the customer contract intangible assets for impairment losses in accordance with SFAS 144, consis-
tent with the policies discussed above in "Valuation of Long-Lived Assets.”

In accordance with SFAS 142, in the first quarter of 2002, the Company assessed the Goadwill in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
and determined that the Goodwill was impaired. As a result, the Company recorded a $2.8 million charge in 2002 which is reflected in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. The Company currently does not have
any goodwill recorded.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, restricted cash,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values.

Revenue Recagnition. Revenues cansist primarily of Managed IP VPN networks, Hosting and Internet Access Service fees, which are
fixed monthly amounts, and are recognized in the financial statements when earned aver the life of the contract. Installation fee revenue and
the associated installation costs are deferred in accordance with Securities and Exchange Commissien Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104,
“Revenue Recognition” (“SAB 104" ). Such deferred revenue and costs are recognized into revenue and data communications and operations
costs In the Consolidated Statements of Operations on a straight-line basis over periods of up to 18 months, the estimated average life of a
customer contract. For all periods, any services billed and payments received in advance of providing services are deferred until the period
such services are earned. Revenues for estimated credits to be issued are recorded as contra-revenue based on historical eredits issued and
known disputes.

Amounts paid by Reuters in 2003 related to the buy-down of a partion of its minimum revenue commitments under its existing net-
work services agreement were recorded to deferred revenue, and is being amortized on a straight line basis into revenue through September
20086, the remaining term of the network services agreement.
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Trade Receivables. The Company classifies amounts owed to the Company and due within twelve months, arising from the sale
of goads or services in the normal course of business to an unrefated party, as trade receivables. Trade receivables due after twelve months
are reclassified as other long-lived assets.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The Company continuously monitors coliections from its customers and maintains a pravision
for estimated credit losses based upon historica! experience and specific customer infarmation, generally not requiring customer deposits
or collateral. There is no guarantee that the Company will continue to experience the same credit loss history in future periods. If a signifi-
cant change in the liquidity or financial condition of a targe customer or group of customers were to oceur, it could have a material adverse
affect on the collectibility of accounts receivable and future operating results.

Data Communication Costs. In the ordinary course of business, invaices from communications service providers will exceed the
services the Company has actually taken from them. The Company's practice is to identify these variances and engage in discussions with
the vendors to resolve the differences. Accruals are maintained for the best estimate of the difference between what was previously paid
to the vendor and the amount that will ultimately be paid to them. Purchased communications services is the Company's fargest cost item.
Variations in this accrual may have a materia! impact on our results of operations.

Advertising Costs. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001 were $1.6 mitlion, $1.3 million, and $1.3 million, respectively.

Employee Stock Options. As permitted under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation” ("SFAS 123"}, the Company accounts for employes stock options in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, "Accounting for Stack Issued to Employees” ("APB 25”). Under APB 25, compensation expense is recognized based on the intrinsic
value of the equity instrument awarded as determined at the measurement date. Compensation expense was recognized related to option
grants accounted for in accordance with APB 25 in the amounts of $10.6 million, $11.0 miliion, and $15.3 miilion during the years ended
2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and
Disclosure” {"SFAS 148"}, the Company is required to provide expanded disclosures concerming stack-based compensation. New account-
ing standards may be promulgated which would require the Company to account for employee stack options in accordance with SFAS 123
which could have a material impact on the results of operations. Pro forma information regarding net income has been determined as if
the Company had accounted for its stock options granted to employees and non-employee members of its Board of Directors under the fair
value method of the statement. The fair value of options was estimated at the date of grant. The calculation of the fair value of the aptions
granted in 2003, 2002, and 2001 assumes a weighted average risk-free interest rate of 4.9 percent, 5.1 percent, and 4.8 percent, respec-
tively, volatility of 103.5 percent, 116.0 percent, and 195.5 percent, respectively, an assumed dividend yield of zero, and an expected life
of the options of four years. For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over
the options’ vesting periods.

Had compensation cost for the Company's stock options been determined consistent with the provisions of SFAS 123 based on the
fair value at the grant date, the Company's pro forma net foss would have been as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Net loss attributable to common stockholders
As reported ${127.356) $(60,566) $(288,896)
Adjustment to net loss for:
Stock based compensation expense as reported™ 10,589 10,952 15,254
Pro forma stock based compensation (14,021) (12,636) {12,582}
Pro forma net loss $(130,788) $(62,250) $1286,224)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share
As reported $  (1.34) $ (0.65) $ (310)
Pro forma $ {138 $ (0.57) $ .07

(1) Excludes $3.4 million of non-cash equity-based compensation relating to the issuance of Constellation Ventures performance warrants for the year
ended December 31, 2003,
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Income Taxes. Incame taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability methad, which provides for the establishment of
deferred tax assets and liabilities for the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and for income tax purposes, applying the enacted statutory tax rates in effect for the years in which dif-
ferences are expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are established when it is more likely than not the deferred tax assets will not be
realized. The Company has provided a full valuation allowance on tax loss carry-forwards and other potential tax benefits according to
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 103, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” As a result, to the extent that those benefits are
realized in future periods, they will favorably impact net income. At December 31, 2003, the Company has approximately $390.0 million in
United States net operating loss carry-forwards expiring between 2011 and 2023, of which $247.5 million is subject to the Section 382
limitation of the Internal Revenue Code.

Foreign Currency. Results of operations of our foreign subsidiaries are translated from the designated functional currency to the
United States dollar using average exchange rates during the period, while assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate in
effect at the reporting date. Resulting gains or losses from translating foreign currency financial statements are included in accumulated
other comprehensive loss, a seperate companent of stockholders' {deficit) equity.

{ncame/{Loss) Per Share. All income or losses per share amounts for all years have been presented ta conform to the provisions of
SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” All stock options, warrants, restricted stock subject to repurchase and convertible preferred shares
outstanding have been excluded from the computations of diluted loss per share, as their effect would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, there
is no reconciliation between basic and diluted loss per share for the years presented. Weighted average shares issuatle upon the exercise
of stock options and warrants, conversion of preferred stack and shares of restricted stock subject to repurchase, which were not included
in the computations because they were anti-dilutive, was 488,603,122, 447,875,885, and 96,077,408 in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

Concentrations of Cradit Risk. Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist prin-
cipally of accounts receivable. The Company periodically reviews the credit quality of its customers and generally does not require collateral.

Reclassifications. Certain amounts from prior periods have been reclassified ta canform ta current period presentation,

New Accounting Standards. In November 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force {“EITF”) reached consensus on issue No. 00-21,
“Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables,” which provides a model to be used to determine when a revenue
arrangement with multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of accounting and, if separation is appropriate, how the
arrangement consideration should be allocated to the identified accounting units. The EITF alse reached a consensus that this guidance
should be effective for all revenue arrangements entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003, which for SAVIS was the
quarter ending September 30, 200%. The adoption of EITF No. 00-21 did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated finan-
cial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) reissued Revised FASB Interpretation Na. 48, “Consolidation
of Variable Interest Entities,” which addresses the consolidation of variable interest entities in which an enterprise absorbs a majority of
the entity’s expected losses, receives a majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or both, as a resuit of ownership, contractual or
other financial interests in the entity. FIN No. 46 is required in financial statements of public entities that have variable interest entities or
potential variable interest entities commonly referred to as special-purpose entities created before February 1, 2003 for periods ending after
Becember 15, 2003, and far all ather types of entities is required in financial statements for periods ending after March 15, 2004, Adoption
of the standard did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies financial reporting for certain derivative instruments and for hedging activities accounted for under
SFAS No. 133 and is effective for contracts entered into or modified, and for hedges designated, after June 30, 2003. Adoption of the stan-
dard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial pasition, results of aperations or cash flows.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, "Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with characteristics of hoth Liabilities
and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 requires that certain financial instruments issued in the form of shares that are mandatorily redesmable as well
as certain other financial instruments be classified as liabilities in the financial statements. SFAS Na. 150 is effective for financial instru-
ments entered into or medified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after
June 15, 2003. Adoption of the standard did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position, results of opera-
tions or cash flows.
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Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the cansolidated finan-
cial statements and accompanying notes. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates. Estimates utilized in the Company’s financial
statements include reserves for commercial disputes and billing errars by vendars, atlowance for doubtful accounts, valuation of long-lived
assets, and the valuation of intangible assets.

NOTE 3—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Reuters Transactions

On September 28, 2001 Reuters acquired a portion of the assets of Bridge. In connection with the asset acquisition, Reuters entered into a
network services agreement with the Company, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide continuing netwaork services to the Bridge
customers acquired by Reuters as well as Interet access, and colocation services for a period of five years. The network services agreement
provides that SAVWIS' network must perform in accordance with specific quality of service standards. In the event SAWIS does not meet the
required quality of service levels, Reuters would be entitled to credits, and, in the event of a material breach of such quality of service levels,
Reuters would be entitled to terminate the network services agreement. The Company has recognized revenue of $82.7 million, $102.2 mil-
lion and $32.3 million during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, from Beuters under the network services agreement, as amended.

Revenue earned from Reuters minimum revenue obligations in 2003 was $82.2 miflion. Reuters minimum revenue obfigations are
$67.7 million, $42.9 million, and $18.1 million in 2004, 2005, and 2008, respectively.

As a result of the network services agresment, Reuters is SAWIS' largest customer. The Company has $0.2 million and $10.5 mil-
lion of receivables dug from Reuters related to the netwaork services agreement for the year ended 2003 and 2002, respectively. In connec-
tion with the network services agreement, the Company also entered into a transitional services agreement with Reuters, pursuant to
which Reuters has agreed to provide the Company with technical, administrative and other services, including help desk support, instal-
lation, maintenance and repair of equipment, customer related services such as processing service orders, accounting functions and the
provision of warehousing and other facilities, pending the Company establishing its own capabilities. For the year ended December 31,
2002, the Caompany paid Reuters $5.6 million with respect to the transitional services agreement. The Company has since internalized
these technical and administrative functions. Accordingly, no such expenses were incurred in 2003.

On July 28, 2003, the Company closed an agreement with Reuters whereby the Company sold its data center located in Hazelwood,
Missauri. The Company recorded a loss of $8.1 million on the sale of this asset, praceeds from which were tower than the net bock valus
of the assets and other costs incurred in conjunction with the transaction. In addition, the Company entered into a lease agreement for
approximately one-third of the data center for five years with a five-year renewal aption, which the Company is using to provide hosting
services. Additionally, SAVVIS allowed Reuters to buy-down a portion of its minimum revenue commitments under the existing network
services agreement. These revenue buy-down amounts will be recognized over the life of the network services agreement due to the ongo-
ing contractual customer relationship with Reuters. Furthermore, Reuters agreed to purchase from SAVVIS new services which may be
required in the future by Reuters but not originally contemplated under the network services agreement provided SAVVIS bid to provide
such service proposes terms equivalent to competing bids, material service level breaches by SAVVIS have not repeatedly arisen at that
time, and Reuters is not contractually bound to purchase such services from other providers. Of the $35.0 million in gross proceeds, the
Company used $12.9 million to reduce outstanding debt with General Electric Capital Corporation {"GECC"), approximately $3.1 million for
transaction related deposits and expenses and approximately $19.0 million in net proceeds were added to existing cash balances.

Reuters owned approximately 16% and 15% of our outstanding voting stock as of December 31, 2003, and December 31,
2002, respectively.

Bridge Transactions
In connection with Bridge's acquisition of SAVVIS in April 1989, Bridge funded the Company's operations during 1993 and up through
February 18, 2000, the date of SAVVIS' initial public offering. In February 2000, the Company entered into several agreements with Bridge,
related to the acquisition of its IP network assets, the provision of netwaork services to Bridge and the pravision of technical and administra-
tive support services to SAVVIS. As a result, Bridge was SAWIS' largest customer, accounting for approximately 81% and 58% of revenues
in 2000 and 2001, respectively.
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In February 2002, the Company entered into an agreement that resolved substantially all of the netwark services receivables fram
and note and accrued interest payable to Bridge. Under the agreement, the Company agreed to pay Bridge $11.9 million in satisfaction of
$27.5 million representing all amounts due to Bridge. The Company also agreed not to pursue the collection of $18.7 million of pre-petition
receivables owed to it by Bridge and to assign to Bridge any claims it had against other Bridge entities with the exception of Bridge Canada
where the Company retained its right to receive a pro rata distribution of assets from the liquidation of Bridge Canada, which ware collected
during the six months ended June 30, 2003. Alf amounts due under the settlement agreement were paid in March 2002. The Company earned
$2.5 million in revenues from transactions with Bridge during the year ended December 31, 2002 primarily for services rendered under
the Bridge Network Services Agreement. This amount represented approximately 1.0% of the Company’s revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2002. There was no revenue from Bridge in 2003.

Revenue from affitiates was as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Bridge 3 — 3 2464 $134,672
Reuters 82,748 102,244 32,282
Total $82,748 $104,708 $166,954

NOTE 4—WAMINET AND INTEL ONLINE SERVICES TRANSACTIONS

On August 1, 2003 the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement with WAMINET, a leading global provider of cantent manage-
ment and delivery services, to acquire certain assets related to its commercial business operations including their commercial customer
contracts and related customer premise and other equipment. Under the terms of the agreement the Company made an initial payment of
$3.0 million for the acquired assats and accrued an additional $4.6 million in current liabilities for the estimated earn-out {which will be
determined in Aprii 2004 and paid in nine equal monthly instaliments). The Company has the option to pay the earn-out in cash or & com-
bination of cash and up to ane-half of the total purchase price in SAWIS camman stack. The final payment amount will ba determined
based on revenue performance of the acquired customers. The estimated purchase price has been allocated to property and equipment
and customer contracts based on their relative fair values. Revenue from WAMINET customers from August 1, 2003 {purchase date) through
December 31, 2003 was $10.4 million.

In November 2002, the Company was chosen by Intel Online Services {“I0S”) to provide managed hosting services to 10S clients
in the United States, United Kingdom and Japan. Under the agreement, the Campany provides managed services to {0S customers from
the 10S data centers located in Santa Clara, California; Chantilly, Virginia; London; and Tokyo. In 2003, the Company entered into leases
and assumed the management of these data centers. Additionally, the Company offered the 10S customers the ability to transfer from an
I0S contract to a SAWVIS contract, at which time the Company acquired equipment, software licenses, and assumed respansibility for mani-
toring, management, and maintenance of the Intel customers who are now SAVVIS customers. The 10S customer transition was
completed in 2003 and contributed approximately $19.3 million in hosting revenue for the year ended December 31, 2003.

NOTE 5—COMMON AND PREFERRED STOCK TRANSACTIONS
Common Stock
An initial public offering of the Company's common stock was completed in February 2000. A total of 17 million shares were sold in the
offering, 14.9 million shares sold by the Company and 2.1 million shares sold by Bridge, all at $24 per share. The Company received net
proceeds from this offering of approximately $333 million, of which approximately $127 million was paid to Bridge. After the offering,
Bridge owned approximately 49% of the Company's outstanding stock, and stockholders of Bridge owned approximately 26% of the
Company's outstanding stack. As of December 31, 2003, the Bridge estate owns approximately 11% of our outstanding voting stock.

In 2002, the stockholders of SAVVIS approved the autharization of up to 900 million shares of commaon stock

Preferred Stock
in September 2002, the Company raised $22.6 million from the issuance of Series A convertible preferred stock (the “Preferred”) to
entities and individuals affifiated with Welsh Carson. As of December 31, 2003, Welsh Carson owns approximately 57% of the Company’s
outstanding voting stock.

PAGE 76




SAVVIS COMMUNICATIONS 10-K

In June 2002, the Company issued Preferred totaling $20.0 million to Constellation Ventures in exchange for cash. SAVVIS also
issued five-year performance warrants to Constellation Ventures to acquire shares of common stock at $0.75 per share which it will earn
the right to exercise if it meets certain performance criteria related to aiding the Company in winning new business. During November
2003, Consteliation Ventures met the performance criteria under the warrants for the first of three tranches causing one-third, or 3.3 mil-
lion warrants to vest resulting in non-cash equity based compensation expense of $3.4 million. When management estimates that
Constellation Ventures will meet the performance criteria for the vesting of their remaining unvested 8.7 million warrants, the Company
will record a charge based on the fair value of the warrants at that time as calculated using the Black-Schales madel and current market
and company assumptions. In addition, the Company issued $2.4 million of Preferred in satisfaction of certain vendor obligations in 2002.

in March 2002, the Company issued $158.1 million of Preferred. Preferred totaling $117.2 million was issued to entities and indi-
viduals affiliated with Welsh Carson in exchange for $57.5 million in cash, satisfaction of all of the outstanding principal and accrued inter-
est an the Company's 10% canvertible senior notes totaling §22.2 millian, and satisfaction of all of the principal and interest owed in
respect of notes issued pursuant to the Credit Agreement with Nortel Networks, Inc., or Nortel, totaling $90.9 million. Preferred totaling
$40.9 million was also issued to Reuters in satisfaction of all of the outstanding principal and accrued interest on the Company’s 12% con-
vertible senior notes totaling $40.9 million. In connection with these transactions, the Company also issued five-year warrants to purchase
approximately 16.1 million shares of its comman stock at $0.75 per share. The Company incurred $3.0 miltion in offering costs related to
the issuance of 203,070 shares of the Preferred which was recorded as a reduction of the convertible preferred stock balance in Stockholders'
(Deficit) Equity in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The Preferred accrues dividends at the rate of 11.5% per annum on the outstanding accreted value thereof {initially $1,000 per share).
Dividends may nat be paid in cash until after the sighth anniversary of the original issuance date. Accrued but unpaid dividends are added
to the outstanding accreted value quarterly. As of December 31, 2003, accrued and unpaid Preferred dividends totaled $55.1 million. The
Preferred is convertible into such number of our common stock equal to the outstanding accreted value divided by the conversion price of
$0.75. The Preferred is entitled to vote on all matters {other than any voluntary repurchase of the Preferred) submitted to the common stock-
holders on an as-if-converted basis and represented approximately 77% of the voting stock of the Company as of December 31, 2003. The
conversion price of $0.75 was set a few days before the commitment date for the Preferred issued in March 2002. On the commitment date,
the closing price of the Company’s common stock was $1.00. Accardingly, the Company recorded a non-cash beneficial conversion feature
of $52.7 miltion, representing the $0.25 per share intrinsic value of that feature, as a return to the Preferred stockholders in March 2002.
The Company also recorded a non-cash beneficial conversion feature of $6.9 miltion and $4.9 million related to accrued dividends for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively.

Below is a summary of Prefarred transactions as of December 31, 2003.

PREFERRED

ISSUANCE DATE SHARES ISSUED VALUE
March 2002 158,070 $158,070
June 2002 22,400 22,400
September 2002 22,600 22,600
203,070 203,070
Accrued dividends net of beneficial conversion feature 43,280
246,350
QOffering costs of Preferred {3.016)
Balance of Preferred as of December 31, 2003 $243.334

Number of common shares Preferred is convertible into based
on the conversion price of $0.75 at December 31, 2003 328,466,554

Capital shares reserved for future issuance as of December 31, 2003 include 328,466,554 issuable upon conversion of the Preferred
and 22,744 929 of shares issuable upon exercise of warrants.
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NOTE 6—PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Communications equipment and data center equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line methad over estimated
useful lives of three to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the term of the
related lease which is usually five to seven years, Data centers are generally depreciated over twenty years.

USEFUL LIVES DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 31,

(IN YEARS) 2003 2002
Communications equipment 3 $168,070 $ 146,401
Data center 20 — 46,534
Data center equipment 3 13,908 13,872
Equipment under capital leases 3-5 96,485 95,791
Leaseholds, office equipment and other 57 17,495 12,904
Total 295,958 315,502
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization {236,601} (186,240)
Total $ 59,357 $129,262

Accumulated amortization for equipment under capital ieases was $60.9 million and $69.0 miltion for 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Depreciation and amortization expense exclusive of amortization expense for intangible assets was $54.7 million, $60.6 million
and $77.0 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

NOTE 7—GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES

During 2003 the Company recorded an intangible asset in the amount of $5.5 million for the commercial customer contracts and other fees asso-
ciated with the WAMINET asset purchase agreement, as more fully described in Note 4. The Company accounts for the commercial customer
contracts acquired in accordance with SFAS 142. The commercial customer contracts acquired are valued in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets as an asset purchase at an amount which reflects the allocation of the estimated purchase price based on their estimated fair
value relative to the estimated fair value of the other assets received, plus the incremental direct costs incurred in effecting the transaction.

Based on the evaluation of the useful life of the existing customer contracts, probability of renewals and projected cash flows from
these customers, the assets are amortized over a three-year life. Accordingly, the Company has recorded $0.6 million in amortization
expense as of December 31, 2003. SFAS 142 requires the Company to evaluate the remaining useful life of the customer contracts each
reporting period to determine whether events and circumstances warrant a revision to the remaining period of amortization. If the esti-
mate of the customer contracts’ remaining useful life changes, the remaining carrying amount is amortized prospectively over that revised
remaining useful life. Actual useful lives could differ from those estimated by the Company, which could have a material affect on our oper-
ating results and financiat position.

Additionally, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142 adopted on January 1, 2002, SAVVIS recognized a $2.8 million charge,
as the balance of goodwill and other intangibles was impaired. Amortization expense related to goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles
was $11.1 miflion for the year ending 2001. Excluding this amortization, adjusted net loss for 2001 was $277.8 million and the basic and
diluted adjusted toss per comman share was $2.98. The Company does nat have any goodwill recorded as of December 31, 2003.

NOTE 8—ASSET IMPAIRMENT, RESTRUCTURING CHARGES, AND OTHER

In June 2003, the Company revised its estimated liability related to a previously vacated facility lease to encompass the remaining mini-
mum lease payments throughout the full term of the lease which expires in March 2011, resulting in a restructuring charge of $7.9 million
or $(0.08) per basic and diluted common share for the year ended December 31, 2003. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the
Company paid $0.8 million related to the exited property and has $0.7 million current and $6.4 million noncurrent remaining in the accrual
at the end of the year.

In 2002, the Company recorded a $3.7 million charge related to the write-down of unused equipment for which the Company has
no future expected use and the equipment has no salvage value. Additionally in 2002, concurrent with Yipes Communications, Inc.’s (“Yipes”)
filing of a voluntary petition for reorganization under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, the Company recorded
a $1.0 million impairment charge related to its investment in Yipes.
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The Company recognized asset impairment, restructuring, and ather write-downs of assets of $94.4 million in 2001, which include:
« $31.5 million non-cash charge related to optical equipment for which the Company does not expect to recover its costs either through
operation or disposition of such equipment;
* $44.1 million non-cash charge related to the Company’s wireless network equipment that has na residual value and the Company has
no future expected use for the equipment;
¢ $14.0 million non-cash charge related to the write down of other property and equipment; and
« $4 8 million restructuring charge related to exiting certain leased facilities and other related costs.

NOTE 9—ACCRUED LIABILITIES
The following table summarizes the components of current and noncurrent other accrued liabilities greater than 5% of total current and
noncurrent liabilities, respectively.

DECEMBER 31, DECEMBER 31,

2003 2002
Current other accrued liabilities:
Wages, employee benefits, and related taxes $ 3,652 $ 3,086
Deferred revenue 3.815 1,417
Capital fease obligations 315 2,705
QOther taxes 2,758 5,103
WAMINET earn-out 4,800 —
Other current liabilities (individual items less
than 5% of tatal current liabilities) 7.804 5,863
Tota! current other accrued liabilities 22,944 18,174
Nancurrent other accrued liabilities:
Deferred revenue 2453 4,853
Deferred rent 4,029 —
Other taxes 5,585 5,558
Restructuring 6,439 —
Other noncurrent liabilities {individual items less
than 5% of total current habilities) 742 —
Total noncurrent other accrued liabilities $19,248 $10.411
NOTE 10—NOTES PAYABLE

In 2000, the Company entered into and amended a credit agreement with Nortel for the financing of approximately $235 million to pur-
chase network equipment and installation services from Nortel and to pay certain third party expenses. As of December 31, 2001, the
Company had drawn approximately $85.3 million under this financing agreement. In March 2002, the Company paid all of the outstanding

obligations under the Nortel credit agreement.

During 2000, the Company executed two agreements to acquire telecommunications equipment and refated services with Winstar
Wireless, Inc. ("Winstar”), resulting in the financing by Winstar of approximately $25 million of equipment, aver six years at 11% inter-
est. Principal and interest were payable quarterly, in installments over the term of the notes. On Apri} 18, 2001, Winstar filed for bank-
ruptey under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. On October 23, 2002, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with Winstar
under which the Company agreed to pay Winstar $1.5 million in satisfaction of all amounts owed by the Company to Winstar, which was
paid in the fourth quarter of 2002. Additionally, the Company and Winstar agreed to release each other from any and all claims against
the other. This settlement, which was approved by the bankruptcy court an November 5, 2002, resulted in a gain of $39.8 miilion in the
fourth quarter of 2002.

PAGE 78

‘-—



SAVVIS COMMUNICATIONS 10-K

As aresult of the settlement with Winstar, the Company's financial position changed significantly including a reduction of debt by
§25.0 million, a reduction of other accrued liabilities of $8.4 million which included $4.3 million of accrued interest, a reduction of deferred
revenue of $7.7 million and a reduction in cash position by $1.5 million.

In 2001, Welsh Carson purchased $20 millien of 10% convertible senior secured notes due in 2008, convertible into common stock
at $1.31 per share. The notes were collateralized by the Company’s data center building in Hazelwood, Missouri. Interest was payable in
kind, compaunded on a semi-annual basis, in the form of additional notes, which were convertible into common stack at a conversion price
of $1.31 per share commencing August 31, 2001 through maturity. Under the terms of the notes, Welsh Carson had the right to declare the
notes due and payable upon acceleration of any of our indebtedness. In March 2002, the Company exchanged all of the outstanding notes
for Preferred.

In 2001, Reuters purchased $37.5 million of 12% convertible senior secured notes due in 2005, convertible into comman stock at
$1.35 per share. The notes were collateralized by the Company’s data center building in Hazelwood, Missouri. Interest was payable in kind,
compounded on a semi-annual basis, in the form of additional notes, which were convertible into common stock at a conversion price of
$1.35 per share commencing August 1, 2001 through maturity. Reuters had the right to declare the notes due and payable upon accelera-
tion of any of our indebtedness. In March 2002, the Company exchanged all of the outstanding notes for Preferred Stock.

There were no notes outstanding as of December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002.

NOTE 11—INCOME TAXES
The Company incurred operating losses from inception through December 31, 2003 and, therefore, has not recorded a provision for
income taxes.

No United States or foreign income taxes were pravided for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, as
the potential deferred tax benefit, resulting primarily from the net operating losses, was fully offset by a valuation allowance against such
deferred tax benefit.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company recorded a valuation allowance of $185.2 million and $155.8 million, respectively,
against the net deferred tax asset due to the uncertainty of its ultimate realization. The valuation allowance increased by $29.4 million
from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003 and decreased by $17.0 million from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002.

The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows at December 31:

2003 2002
Deferred income tax assets:

Net operating loss carry-forwards $ 166,032 $ 141,683
Asset impairment 7.847 7.984
Deferred revenue 144 83
Fixed assets 2,688 —
Accrued payroll 496 1,859
Other 8,022 5,174
Gross deferred tax assets 185,230 156,763

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Fixed assets — (935)
Cther — {37)
Gross deferred tax liabilities — (972
185,230 185,791
Valuation allowances {185,230) {155,791}
Net deferred tax assets $ — $ —
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The components of income/(loss) before income taxes consist of the following:
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2003 2002 2001
Domestic operations $(100,139) $37,970 $(268,506)
Fareign operations 6,106 {24,038} {20,330}
Total income/{loss) before income taxes $ (94,033) $13,932 $(288,896)

An ownership change as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, restricts the Company's ability to use future United
States taxable income against the Company’s United States net operating loss carry-forward. Section 382 may also limit the utilization of
other United States carry-over tax attributes upon the occurrence of an ownership change. Such an ownership change occurred in 2002
as a result of the issuance of $203.1 million of preferred stock. Management believes that this limitation restricts our ability to offset any
future United States taxable income against its net operating loss carry-forward over the United States Statutory carry-forward periods
ranging from 15 to 20 years, to approximately $4.8 million a year befaore the net effect of future recognized “built-in” gains or losses exist-
ing as of the date of the ownership change.

At December 31, 2003, the Company has approximately $390.0 miffion in United States net operating loss carry-forwards expiring
between 2011 and 2023, of which $247.5 million is subject to the Section 382 limitation.

At December 31, 2003, net operating loss carry-forwards for our foreign subsidiaries are about $47.4 million primarily from the United
Kingdom, Singapore, Germany, Australia and Hong Kong. The aforementioned countries each have unlimited carry-forward periods.

The effective income tax rate differed from the statutory federal income tax rate as follows:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2003 2002 2001
Federal statutory rate 34% 34% 34%
State taxes, net of federal benefit 4 4 4
Change in valuation allowance primarily
due to net operating loss carry-forwards (25) (72) (30)
Nan-deductible goadwill amartization — 5 {3)
Non-deductible compensation {13) 29 {5)
Effective income tax rate 0% 0% 0%

NOTE 12—EMPLOYEE SAVINGS PROGRAM

The Company has a 401{kj retirement plan for the benefit of qualified emplayees. All employees are eligible to participate and may con-
tribute a portion of their compensation to the plan. The Company matches 50% of employee contributions up to a maximum of 6% of total
compensation or $2,400, whichever is less. Company contributions under this plan vest ratably over three years, and totaled $0.9 miflion
for 2003, $0.6 miltion for 2002, and $0.8 million for 2001, respectively.
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NOTE 13—EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

In 2003, the Company’s Board cf Directors adopted the 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan (“the 2003 Plan”) and authorized 20 million stock
options to be granted under the plan. In addition to stock options, the 2003 Plan provides for the grant of stock appreciation rights, restricted
stock, unrestricted stock, stock units, dividend equivalent rights and cash awards. Any of these awards may, but need not, be made as per-
formance incentives to reward attainment of annual or long-term performance goals. Stock options granted under the 2003 Plan may be
non-gualified stock options or incentive stock options. Stock options were granted under the 2003 Plan beginning June 2003.

Prior to the 2003 Plan, the Company’s Board of Directors had adopted the 1999 Stack Optign Plan {“the 1999 Plan”) in 1999, which
only provided for the grant of stock options, and authorized 12 million stock options to be granted under the 1999 Plan. in 2002, the Beard
of Directors amended the 1933 Plan to 46 million shares available for grant. Subsequent to June 2003, no shares were granted from the
1999 Plan.

The following table summarizes the Company's stack option activity {for both the 2003 Plan and the 1999 Plan) and related infor-
mation for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001:

2003 2002 2001

WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED

AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE

{IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT EXERCISE EXERCISE EXERCISE
WEIGHTED AVERAGE AMOUNTS) OPTIONS PRICE OPTIONS PRICE  OPTIONS PRICE
Outstanding at beginning of year 34979 $1.14 2,964 $6.20 4417 $7.29
Granted 12,657 0.75 34,644 0.72 232 0.94
Exercised (2419) 0.59 (110 0.50 (126} 0.50
Cancelled/Forfeited (2,564) 1.16 (2,519) 3.08 {1,659) 291
Outstanding at end of year 42,653 $1.07 34,979 $1.14 2,964 $6.20
Exercisable at end of year 13,779 $1.60 1,662 $6.03 1,316 $5.02

The following table summarizes information regarding stock options outstanding and exercisable (for both the 2003 Plan and the
1999 Pian) at December 31, 2003 {in thousands except weighted average amounts):

OPTIONS QUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
EXERCISE NUMBER REMAINING EXERCISE NUMBER EXERCISE
PRICE RANGE OUTSTANDING LIFE PRICE EXERCISABLE PRICE
$0.31-% 0.73 8,164 8.60 years $ 045 3,228 $ 0.44
0.74- 075 29,488 8.37 years 075 9,370 0.75
0.76- 500 3,957 8.41 vears 1.31 281 1.95
5.01- 24.00 1,044 5.36 years 14.02 900 14.46
$0.31-824.00 472 853 8.47 years $1.07 13,779 § 160

The Company expenses over the vesting period any options granted in which the exercise price is less than the fair value at the
date of grant. During 2003, the Company granted options to purchase 12.7 million shares of common stock. Included in these options grants
were options to purchase 2.5 million shares with exercise prices below the then fair market value. These option grants were accrued for
in 2002 in canjunctian with the Company's banus program.

PAGE 82




SAVVIS COMMUNICATIONS 10-K

Buring 2002, the Company granted options to purchase 34,6 million shares of common stock. Included in these option grants were
options to purchase 31.0 million shares with exercise prices below the then fair market value. At the date of the grant, the Company
recorded $2.9 million in deferred compensation expense which will be recognized ratably over the respective vesting periods. In 2002, the
Company granted options 10 purchase 195 thousand shares of our common stock to three non-employee members of our Board of Directors.
At December 31, 2003, $1.2 million remains in deferred compensation to be amortized over the remaining vesting periad.

In accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Invalving Stock Compensation” (“FIN 44"} the
accounting for stock options granted to non-employees (excluding non-employee members of the Company's Board of Directors) changed
effective July 1, 2000. These non-employee stock options were accounted for under the fair value method of SFAS 123. The weighted aver-
age fair value of these options was $0.50 as of December 31, 2001, and the Company recognized $0.5 million and $0.6 million of compen-
sation expense in 2000 and 2001, respectively related to these non-employee grants. All of these non-employee options were either
exercised or cancelled by end of 2001.

The following table summarizes information regarding the weighted average fair values and weighted average exercise prices af
options granted {for both the 2003 Plan and the 1999 Plan} with exercise prices {"exercise”) that equals, exceeds, or is less than the mar-
ket price {“market”) of the stock on the grant date for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001:

2003 2002 2001
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGE  AVERAGE AVERAGE  AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
OPTIONS  EXERCISE FAIR OPTIONS EXERCISE FAIR OPTIONS EXERCISE FAIR
GRANTED PRICE VALUE GRANTED PRICE VALUE  GRANTED PRICE  VALUE
Exercise = Market 10126 $0.84 $0.93 3,604 $0.53 $0.52 232 $0.94 $0.94
Exercise > Market — — — — — — — — —
Exercise < Market 2531 0.39 0.77 31,040 0.75 0.84 — — —

NOTE 14—CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS
The Company leases various types of equipment under capital leases. The table below summarizes future minimum lease payments under
capital leases as of December 31, 2003.

DECEMBER 31,

2003

2004 § 375
2005 7,757
2006 7,746
2007 65,072
2008 —
Total capital lease obligations 80,950
Less amount representing interest (24,048)
Less current portion (315)
Capital lease obligations, less current portion $ 56,587
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In March 2002, the Company entered into a $56.5 million amended and restated master lease agreement with GECC. The amended
lease carries a 12% interest rate, which accrues through December 31, 2004, payable in cash thereafter. The principal emount of the
amended lease is due on March 8, 2007. Substantially all of the Company assets serve as collateral under the amended lease. The amended
lease calls for excess cash flow, as defined, to be used first for the payment of any accrued and unpaid interest and second for the pre-
payment of principal on the capital leases. As discussed below, the Company paid $12.9 million of excess cash flow to GECC related to
the sale of the Hazelwood, Missouri data center during 2003. Furthermore, the amended lease contains a debt covenant which limits the
level of capital expenditures that can be made by the Company and restricts the payment of dividends. As of December 31, 2003, the
Company was in compliance with the debt covenant. Additionally, in cannection with the March 2002 transaction, the Company issued
five-year warrants to purchase 9.6 million shares of its common stack at $0.75 per share. The fair value of the warrants at the date of
issuance of $6.0 million has heen recorded as a deferred financing cost and is being amartized over the term of the capital lease.

In conjunction with the Company’s Hazelwood, Missouri data center sale on July 28, 2003, discussed in Note 3, Related Party
Transactians, the Company used 312.9 million of the $35.0 million in gross proceeds to reduce outstanding debt with GECC. Besides reduc-
ing our obligation to GECC, the $12.9 million pay down of debt did net affect the terms of the March 2002 amended and restated master
lease agreement.

Amartization of assets recorded under capital leases is disclosed in Note 6, Property and Equipment.

NOTE 15—0PERATING LEASES
The Company leases communications equipment and office space under various operating leases. Future minimum lease payments at
December 31, 2003 are as follows:

2004 $ 17,769
2005 16,189
2008 12,257
2007 11,666
2008 10,657
Thereafter 32,161
Total $100,609

Rental expense under operating leases for 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $12.7 million, $12.1 millicn and $12.6 million, respectively.

in May 2002, SAVVIS entered into a 15 year, office facility lease agreement with Duke Realty Limited Partnership {"Duke”} with
total minimum rent payments of approximately $39.9 million. The Company also entered into an agreement with Duke in which SAVVIS
may be required to make payments of up to $1.0 million plus interest accruing at 4.88% from the date of the agreement if certain zoning
approvals do not occur prior to June 2004. These payments, if required, would be made from July 2005 to June 2007.

NOTE 16—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company's customer contracts generally span multiple periods, which result in the Company entering into arrangements with various
suppliers of communications services that require the Company to maintain minimum spending levels, some of which increase over time,
to secure favorable pricing terms. The Company’s remaining aggregate minimum spending level allocated ratably over the contract terms
are approximately $39.9 million, $26.3 million, and $10.01 million in years 2004, 2005, and 2006, respectively. Should SAWIS not meet the
minimum spending level in any given year, decreasing termination liabilities representing a percentage of the remaining contracted amount
may immediately become due and payable. Furthermore, certain of these termination liabilities are subject to reduction should SAWVIS expe-
rience the loss of a major customer or suffer a toss of revenues from a downturn in general economic activity. Before considering the effects
of any reductions for the business downturn provisions, if SAVVIS were to terminate all of these agreements as of December 31, 2003, the
maximum termination liability would amount to approximately $44.3 million.
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On August 1, 2003, the Company entered into an asset purchase agreement with WAM!INET, a leading global provider of content
management and delivery services, to acquire certain assets related to their commercial business operations including their commercial
customer contracts and related customer premise and other equipment. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company made an initial
payment of $3.0 million for the acquired assets and have accrued an additional $4.6 million in current fiabilities for the estimated eamn-
out (which will be determined in April 2004) and paid in nine equal monthly installments. The Company has the option to pay the earn-out
in cash or a combination of cash and up to one-half of the total purchase price in SAVVIS comman stock. The final payment amount will
be determined based on revenue performance of the acquired customers. The estimated purchase price has been allocated to property
and equipment and customer contracts based on their relative fair values.

In August 2000, the Company entered into a 20-year agreement with Kiel Center Partners, L.P. {"KCP") pursuant to which it acquired
the naming rights to an arena in St. Louis, Missouri. Total consideration for these rights amounted to approximately $71.8 million, includ-
ing 750,000 shares of its common stock issued by the Company to KCP, which had a fair value of $5.8 million at issuance and $66.0 mil-
lion of cash payments to be made from 2002 through 2020. The related expense will be recognized over the term of the agreement. As of
December 31, 2003 the Company had approximately $2.6 million of remaining deferred charges resulting from the issuance of common
stock and $64.6 million of remaining cash payments under this agreement.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedings and other actions arising in the normal course of its business. While the results
of such proceedings and actions cannot be predicted, management believes, based on facts known to management today, that the ulti-
mate outcome of such proceedings and actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position, results or oper-
ations or cash flows.

SAWIS has employment agreements with several key executive officers. These agreements contain provisions with regard to base
salary, bonus, stock options, and ather employee benefits. These agreements also provide for severance benefits in the event of employ-
ment termination or a change in control of the Company.

NOTE 17-—CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK AND SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS
The Company invests its excess cash with high credit quality financial institutions, which bear minimal risk, and, by policy, limit the amount
of credit exposure to any one financial institution.

Historically, we have not incurred significant losses related ta accounts receivable.

Revenue from the Company's major customers is identified below:

2003 2002 2001
% OF % OF % OF
AMOUNT REVENUE AMOUNT REVENUE AMOUNT REVENUE
Reuters $82,748 33% $102,244 43% $ 32,282 13%
Moneyline Telerate 54,424 22% 70,287 30% 15,51 6%
Bridge — 0% 2,464 1% 134,672 55%
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NOTE 18—INDUSTRY SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC REPORTING
The Campany's operations are organized inta three geagraphic operating segments: Americas, Europe and Asia. Each geographic operating
segment provides outsourced managed network, hosting, and application services to businesses in the legal, media, retail, professional
services, healthcare, manufacturing, and financial services industries. The Company evaluates the performance of its segments and allc-

cates resources to them based on revenue and operating income or loss. Prior to June 30, 2003 the Company did not allocate centrally
incurred network management and support, executive and other administrative costs to the geographic segments as is currently reflected.
Accordingly, the prior period amounts have been restated to conform to the current period presentation. Financial information for the Company's
geagraphic segments for the year ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is presented below. Far the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002, and 2001 revenues earned in the United States represented approximately 53%, 65%, and 79%, respectively, of total revenues.

2003 AMERICAS EUROPE ASIA  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
Revenues $151,329 $ 49,842 $51,700 5 — $252.871
Depreciation and amortization 51,858 2,194 1,294 — 55,346
Restructuring charges 7,903 — — — 7.903
Loss on sale of data center 8,106 — — —_ 8,106
Non-cash equity based compensation 13,989 — — — 13,989
Loss from operations (51,698) (25,597) {9,282) — (86,577)
Net interest expense and other 7,456 — — — 7,456
Loss from operations before cumulative

effect of change in accaunting principle (59,154) (25,5987} (9,282} — (94,033}
Identifiable assets 148,152 12,227 3,894 (39,650 124,623
2002 AMERICAS EUROPE ASIA  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
Revenues $153,994 $37.344 $44 666 § - $236,004
Depreciation and amortization 56,572 2,630 1,419 — 60,621
Asset impairment and other write-downs of assets 4,684 —_ — — 4684
Non-cash equity based compensation 10,952 — — — 10,952
Loss from operations {35,712) {19,917} (14,523) — (70,152)
Net interest expense and other 11,003 — — — 11,003
Gain on extinguishment of debt 97,859 — — — 97,859
Income/{loss) from operations before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle 51,144 (18817 {14,523) — 16,704
identifiable assets 234,873 4,003 3,734 (46,136) 196,474
2001 AMERICAS EUROPE ASIA  ELIMINATIONS TOTAL
Revenues $ 207,975 $ 20,395 $ 14,425 3 — $2427%
Depreciation and amortizatian 80,825 4774 2,480 — 88,079
Asset impairment and other write-downs of assets 89,633 — — — 89,633
Restructuring charges 4,821 — — — 4,821
Non-cash equity based compensation 15,254 — — — 15,254
Loss from operations (211,533) (31,234) (20,908) — (263,675)
Net interest expense and other 25,221 — — — 25,221
Income/(loss| from operations before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle (236,754) (31.234) (20,908) — (288,896}
ldentifiable assets 267,570 8,581 5,061 (25,428) 255,784
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NOTE 19-—QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

2003 (by quarter) FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH
Revenues $ 55,201 $ 60,350 $67,922 $69,398
Gross margin 18,469 20,020 25,527 25,249
Restructuring charges — 7,903 — —
Loss on sale of data center — — 8.106 —
Loss from operations before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle (22,472) (27,978} (21,705} (14,422)
Basic loss per common share before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle $ (35 $ (471 $ (0.34) § {25
Dilutive loss per comman share before cumulative effect

of change in accounting principle $ (35 $ (41 $ (0.34) $ (25
Net loss (24,450) (30,123} (23,709) (15,751
Net loss attributable to common stockholders : (32,430) (38,333} (32,154} (24,439)
2002 (by quarter) FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH
Revenues $62,180 $61,212 $ 56,656 $ 55,956
Gross margin 17,085 17,700 18,985 20,156
(Gain on extinguishment of debt 58,625 (340) — 39,574
Income/(loss) from operations before cumulative effect

of change in accounting principle {18,960) (17.212) {13,740) {20,240)
Basic loss per common share before cumulative effect

of change in accounting principle $ (23 3 (29 $ (24) $§ 0
Dilutive lass per comman share before cumulative effect

of change in accounting principle § (23 $ (28 $ (24 $ 05
Net income/{foss) 32,166 (19,762) (15,756) 17,284
Net income/(loss) attributable to comman stockholders (21,467) (25,870) {22,756) 9,527

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of per share amounts are made independently. Therefare, the sum of per share amounts
for the quarters may not agree with per share amounts for the year.

NOTE 20—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Activity in the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts was as follows for the periods presented:

ADDITIONS
BALANCE AT CHARGED TO BALANCE
BEGINNING OF COSTS AND AT END
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, PERIOD EXPENSES DEDUCTIONS OF PERIOD
2001 § 800 $10,020 $(9,685] $1,125
2002 1125 2519 {2.621) 1,023
2003 1,023 1,467 {1,328) 1162
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NOTE 21—SUBSEQUENT EVENT (UNAUDITED)

On January 22, 2004, the Company signed a definitive agreement to purchase substantially all of the assets of Cable & Wireless USA, Inc.
and Cable & Wireless Internet Services, Inc. together with the assets of certain of their affiliates {"CWA"). CWA, wholly-owned by Cable
and Wireless PLC pravides a range of netwark and hasting services, including internet access to a Tier 1 netwaork, collocation, hosting and
cther value-added services such as managed security and content distribution. The transaction has been approved by the US Bankruptey
Court but is subject to certain regulatory and customary closing conditions. The Company has committed to pay $155.0 million in cash,
assume certain working capital liabilities and assume leases for 15 data centers and ather facilities. Furthermare, in accardance with the
sale agreement the Company is funding CWA's warking capital lasses from January 28, 2004 through the closing date of the transaction
{estimated ta close in the first quarter of 2004}, which will te capitalized into the purchase price. Additionally, the Company entered an
agreement to sell its rights at closing to acquire four of the CWA data centers and one office facility to DuPont Fabros Interests LLC ("DuPont
Fabros"} for $52.0 million and [2ase those facilities back for 15 years. The transaction is being funded by $200.0 million debt financing
from existing stockholders Welsh, Carson, Anderson & Stowe ("Welsh Carson”} and Canstellation Ventures {“Canstellation”), a Bear Stearns
asset management fund, who are joined by Oak Hill Special Opportunities Fund {"Oak Hill" and, with Welsh Carson and Constellation, the
“Financing Parties”). The Financing Parties provided subordinated debt (the “Notes”}, which the Company will use to acquire the CWA
assets and fund ongoing capita! expenditures and working capital needs associated with the newly acquired assets. The Notes, which
mature five years from the date of initial funding, are subject to redemption by the Company during the first 360 days after the initial fund-
ing in an amount equal to the Notes' accreted value. During this 380 day period, the Notes will bear interest at 12.5%, payable semi-annu-
ally in kind. After this period, interest will increase to 15%, payable semi-annually in kind. The Notes are redeemable at 101% after the
fourth anniversary of the initial funding. In conjunction with this financing, the Company has issued warrants to purchase Series B Preferred
which were initially convertible into approximately 128.4 million shares of SAVVIS common stock at a price of $1.63 par common share.
The warrants were exercised an a “cashless” basis and, as a result, the outstanding Series B Preferred is currently convertible into approxi-
mately 65.5 million shares of common stock. The common stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B Preferred will not have been
registered under the Securities Act and, therefore, may not be transferred or sold except pursuant to an effective registration statement
or pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act. The Company granted Welsh Carson demand and
piggy-back registration rights and the Company granted the other Financing Parties piggy-back registration rights only.
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